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Summary of Financial Information
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Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t—-HLEE

RESULTS £ 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—%-0\f | “F—tF -EF-AF -T-8F -F-OF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

TEx AT TET FEx FET

Revenue gy 410,858 368,832 363,306 401071 398,068

(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEHA (B518) /&7 (23,279) (55,307) (51,859) (5773) 27,788

Income tax expense FEHRX (1,966) (879) (1987) (205) (5036)

(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (B8B),/ &5 (25,245) (56,186) (53,846) (5978) 2752

As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

“E-N\E | 22—+F —Z-—RF —T-RHF —T-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FEL AT FEx FEL

Current assets MEEE 167,854 260,363 334748 60,887 66,468

Non-current assets ERBEE 403,645 191,541 105493 118541 127435

Total assets BEE 571,499 451904 440,241 179428 193903

Current liabilities MEBE 357,561 283,743 393,536 79,969 89,724

Non-current liabilities L ER=N 50,870 37,00 14,019 12874 11,616

Total liabilities BafE 408,431 320943 407,555 92843 101,340

Net assets BEFE 163,068 130961 32686 86,585 92,563
Equity attributable to KREEEA

owners of the Company iR 104,986 130961 32,686 86,585 92,563

Non-controlling interests kR 58,082 - - - -

163,068 130961 32,686 86,585 92,563

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board (“Board") of directors ("Directors”) of U Banquet Group
Holding Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Restaurant Operations

The Group has been operating 10 restaurants under three brands, namely “U
Banquet” (including “U Banquet - The StarView"), “U - Kitchen” and “U - Pot”
during the year under review. In the year 2018, the performance of restaurant
operation for both wedding banquet and dining services had been improved
as compared to the year in 2017. It is primarily due to the loss of revenue
during the decoration period of U Banquet (Mong Kok) (I) and (Il), U Banquet
- The StarView (Kwun Tong) and U Banquet (Wong Tai Sin) for the year ended
31 December 2017 while no restaurants had such decoration period for
the year ended 31 December 2018. In addition, the Group had successfully
implemented new strategy for several restaurants with positive result. As
a result, the loss for the year decreased significantly for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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Apart from the traditional, single service-focused Chinese restaurants in Hong
Kong, our Group specialises in the provision of one-stop Chinese wedding
banquet services. The Group focuses on promoting itself as a Chinese
wedding banquet specialist which provides full-service dining services. We
strive to become a premier Chinese restaurant chain operator offering full-
service wedding planning capabilities. Since 2012, our “U Banquet” brand has
been awarded the Hong Kong Top Services Brand by the Hong Kong Brand
Development Council and The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong
Kong. It marked the seventh consecutive years that we have been awarded
and the accolade clearly and widely demonstrated the quality as well as the
success of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement T i # &

Environmental Maintenance Business

The Group starts to engage in the environmental maintenance business in
the PRC after the completion of acquisition of BYL Property Holdings Group
Limited ("BYL") on 22 October 2018. Since then, it has already generated
significant service income and segment profit for our Group.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a turnover of
HK$410,858,000, representing an increase of 11.4% from HK$368,832,000
as compared to last year. It is mainly due to the revenue contribution of
new segment from environmental maintenance business accounted for
approximately HK$31,938,000. With the effect of increase the revenue and
decrease of operating cost during the year 2018, loss for the year decreased
from HK$56,186,000 for the year 2017 to HK$25,245,000 for the year 2018.
Basic loss per share was HK5 cents (2017: HK11 cents).

PROSPECTS

Apart from continuing to enhance its core business, the Group will explore
business opportunities to strengthen its revenue base. After the completion
of acquisition of BYL on 22 October 2018, the Group starts to engage in the
environmental maintenance business in the PRC.
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Chairman's Statement F i # &

The Company believes that the environmental maintenance industry in
the PRC will enjoy a sustainable growth in the future and thus enhance the
business development and financial prospect of the Group.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | wish to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, customers
and business partners for their ongoing support and trust. Also, | would like
to express my appreciation to my fellow Directors and the staff of the Group
for their solid contribution and unwavering dedication to the Group. Based
on our success, we remain optimistic about the prospects of the Group's
future business development. We intend to execute our well-established
business strategies to enhance the Group's value and to bring a desirable
return to our shareholders.

Sang Kanggiao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

& 2 g it i X 77 B

BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Following a change in the Group's operating and reporting structure, starting
from the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has three reportable
and operating segments (i) Chinese restaurant and wedding business, (ii)
property leasing business, and (iii) securities trading business. The Group
ceased the franchise of restaurants operation and wedding service business
in July 2017 and December 2017 respectively. The Group will consider
potential franchisees if and when opportunities arise in the future.

Apart from continuing to develop its core business, during the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group starts to engage in the environmental
maintenance business in the PRC which is a new business segment through
acquisition of BYL Property Holdings Group Limited (“BYL"). Details of the
business combination are disclosed below section.

Restaurant Operations

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Group operated a
total of 10 restaurants, six of which were under “U Banquet (2% ) " brand
(including “U Banquet - The StarView (2 Z.27F) "), two were under “U -
Kitchen (22 F) " brand and two were under “U - Pot (£2$/) " brand.

We position ourselves entirely different from traditional, single service-
focused Chinese restaurants in Hong Kong. For our dining services, we aim to
attract customers with preferences for fresh and tasty Cantonese dishes and
quality servicing standards in hygienic and modernly designed restaurant
venues suitable for family and friends, gatherings and corporate functions.
For wedding banquet services, we target customers with specific standards
and expectations for venue design and decoration, banquet dishes and
wedding services and we help them to simplify and smoothen their wedding
planning and preparation process by offering one-stop wedding solutions
and the choices of creatively-designed venues as alternatives to traditional
Chinese restaurants.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & P J& & iig & 7 I

The management resolved to improve the operating efficiency and control
expenditures of the Group. The Group reviewed the work allocation of
the staff from time to time to enhance labour efficiency. The Group also
entered into long term tenancy agreements to maintain the operating lease
payments at reasonable level.

We believe that high product quality, service reliability and management of
operations are key success factors in business growth and sustainability. We
have a reliable management team to oversee daily restaurant operations and
wedding banquet services, to maintain quality control standards, to monitor
workforce performance and to implement expansion strategies. Our senior
management and the management at restaurant-level consist of members
with solid experience in the Chinese restaurant and wedding service industry
and they are familiar with different aspects of operations of these industries.

Distribution of Goods

Our distribution of goods business consists of sourcing fresh vegetables,
fruits, seafood and frozen meat to mainly local restaurants and other
food ingredient suppliers. In late 2017, due to the continued competitive
environment, we discontinued the distribution of goods to external
customers and solely distribute the goods to Group's restaurants which aim
to minimise the cost of materials consumed.

Environmental maintenance business

The Group starts to engage in environmental maintenance business in the
PRC after the completion of acquisition of BYL on 22 October 2018. The
scope of services mainly include (i) janitorial services on streets, in green belts
zones, gullies and other public areas, such as street cleaning, mechanical
cleaning and dust removal; (i) waste management, such as disposal and
recycling of solid waste, bulky garbage, construction waste and food waste;
and (iii) facility maintenance management, such as provision of cleaning and
maintenance services (including minor repair and maintenance) for public
facilities, containers and refuse collection points.

The Group deploys sufficient cleaning staff and supervisors, specialised
vehicles and cleaning equipment in carrying out such specialized cleaning
services such as dust removal with the use of mist cannon trucks to reduce
haze pollution. All cleaning works were generated from contracts with the
government officials via tendering and such contracts generally dealt with
public areas of between approximately 300,000 and 1,600,000 square meters,
mainly in Chengdu, the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & P J& & g J 7

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The table below sets forth the revenue breakdown of the Group's for the two
years ended 31 December 2018:

Bt %5 [0 R
W 2

TERBFAEERBE-_T—N\F+ A
=+ —BEREEE 2 WA

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Chinese restaurant and FREERIBEEK:
wedding business:
Revenue from Chinese restaurant FREELEERR
operations Wz 374,673 362,538
Revenue from provision of IR AR TS A Wi e
wedding services - 1,636
Revenue from distribution of goods 7388 m e W e - 671
Franchise income LSRN - 529
374,673 365,374
Property leasing business: EZ NS
Rental income WA 4,228 3,269
Securities trading business: BHFEEEK:
Dividend income g S A 19 189
Environmental maintenance business: RIBHEEK:
Services income for provision of RHIR IS M E R AR TS
environmental maintenance A 31,938 -
Total revenue Bz 410,858 368,832

SRR BuEEEREARAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis & P J& & iig & 7 I

Chinese restaurant and wedding business accounted for over 91.2% of total
revenue during the year (2017: 99.1%).

Revenue of the Chinese restaurant and wedding business increased by
approximately 2.5% from approximately HK$365.4 million in 2017 to
approximately HK$374.7 million in 2018. It was mainly due to strong growth
of revenue contribution from U Banquet - The StarView (The One). Its revenue
increased from approximately HKS$49.7 million in 2017 to approximately
HKS$70.4 million in 2018 which made up the decrease in revenue contributed
from U Banquet (Tsim Sha Tsui), which was closed during the year 2018.

Rental revenue increased by approximately 27.3% from approximately HK$3.3
million to approximately HKS$4.2 million, as a result of full year revenue
contribution of an office property located in Beijing.

The revenue from provision of environmental maintenance services for the
year ended 31 December 2018 reached approximately HK$31.9 million since
the Group completed the acquisition of BYL by end of October.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Operating Performance by Restaurant

The table below sets forth the seat turnover rate, average spending per
customer and average daily revenue generated by each of the Group’s

restaurants for the two years ended 31 December 2018:

& 2 Jg it im R 71 B

Year ended 31 December

EREERR
TREJAEEEEERRE-_Z—N\F
ToA=t-BURMEFEEE EREBE
- GURPTHHEBRRTHE AR

Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-H BEt-A=t-H BET-A=t-H
LEFE LFE LFE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-\F “T-t% “E-N\§ —E-t% “E-N\E ZTtF
Seat turnover rate (\oze /) Average spending per customer Average daily revenue
BRESEER (Mit1) BUEFTIHE FHERYE
Wedding Wedding
Dining banquet Dining banquet
customer customer customer customer
BREF BEEF REEFP H2EP
Times Times HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
ft g =H A B B iy Vi3 B
U Banquet (Mong Kok) (1) and BE(EA) R

U Banquet (Mong Kok) (2 22 (HA)Q 3.36 301 100 621 % 609 203,102 195768
U Banquet (Tsim Sha Tsu) 22 (4PH) NATER 312 NAREAR  NATER 89 607 NATER 68612
U Banquet (Kwun Tong)/ 22 (B%) /2228

U Banquet - The StarView (B%) (W)

(Kwun Tong) (Note 4) 424 387 101 619 100 613 143,968 104,772
U Banquet (Causeway Bay) 22 (&%) 218 225 108 641 104 646 98,553 108,99
U Banquet (North Point)/ EE(4LA) /BB (LA)

U - Kitchen (North Point) and REHR(LE) (M)

U+ Pot (North Point) (Note 3) 2.66 245 95 533 92 653 138,511 123524
U Banquet (Wong Tai Sin) and 22 (X R

Hot Pot Cuisine Restaurant/ RGRERAH/

U +Kitchen (Wong Tai Sin) and EE(BEA R

U~ Pot (Wong Tai Sin) (Votes 2) B4 (FAU)

(Hi2) 3.01 30 81 541 8 612 170,922 169873
U Banquet (Sino Plaza) 22 (FHES) 241 296 137 589 12 646 78,487 85572
U Banquet  The StarView (The One) B &+ 8(The One) 127 102 270 785 3n 812 192,952 136,139
Note: Mt -
1. The seat turnover rate was calculated by dividing the total number of diners 1. EREERTIZEREENRERAR (B

(including wedding banquet diners) by the total number of seats available
for regular dining service in the relevant restaurant then divided by the total

number of operation days for the relevant year.

SRR BuEEEREARAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

2. We have changed the restaurants names from “U Banquet (Wong Tai Sin)” and
“Hot Pot Cuisine” to U-Kitchen (Wong Tai Sin) and U-Pot since March 2017, the
restaurants are mainly focus on dining business.

3. U Banquet (North Point) was renamed to U-Kitchen (North Point) and U-Pot
(North Point) in late July 2017, the restaurants are mainly focus on dining
business.

4. U Banquet (Kwun Tong) was changed to U Banquet - The StarView (Kwun Tong)
on Mid-September 2017, the restaurants are mainly focus on wedding banquet
business.

Analysis of Chinese restaurants operations for the Two Years Ended
31 December 2018

The average spending per customer for wedding banquets of all of the
Group's comparable restaurants increased from approximately HK$686 in
2017 to approximately HK$702 in 2018, representing an increase of 2.3%
while the average spending per customer for dining of all of the Group's
comparable restaurants remained stable for approximately HK$100 in 2017
and 2018. Revenue from all Chinese restaurant operations increased by
approximately 3.4% from approximately HK$362.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately HK$374.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. It was mainly due to the increase of revenue contribution
from U Banquet - The StarView (The One) and U Banquet « The StarView
(Kwun Tong) from approximately HK$87.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately HK$123.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The revenue generated from wedding banquets of these
restaurants increased from approximately HK$39.7 million for the year ended
1 December 2017 to HK$73.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
Hence, the revenue generated from wedding banquets for all restaurants
increased by approximately HK$15.8 million from approximately HK$88.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$104.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing an increase of
approximately 17.9%. Save for the contribution from U Banquet (Causeway
Bay) and U Banquet (Sino Plaza), the revenue from all comparable restaurants
increased by HK$43.6 million from HK$266.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately HK$310.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, representing an increase of approximately 16.4%. It was
mainly due to the increase in number of wedding banquets held and average
spending per customer for wedding banquets for comparable restaurants
as well as the increase in the number of diners for the provision of dining
services despite the decrease of average spending per customer for dining.
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Save for the U Banquet (Causeway Bay), U Banquet (Sino Plaza) and U -
Kitchen (Wong Tai Sin) and U - Pot (Wong Tai Sin), the seat turnover rate of
all other comparable restaurants increased for the year ended 31 December
2018 as compared to that in 2017 as the total numbers of wedding banquet
customers and dining customers have increased for all these restaurants. The
directors believed that the increase in the seat turnover rate was a result of
a) none of the restaurants has undergone any renovation for the year 2018
while the restaurants located in Wong Tai Sin, North Point and Kwun Tong
had been renovated in the year 2017; and b) successfully implemented new
strategies for several restaurants with positive result. Hence, even with the
closure of U Banquet (Tsim Sha Tsui) during the year ended 31 December
2018, the aggregated revenue generated from the restaurant operation
still increased from approximately HK$362.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately HK$374.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The seat turnover rate of U Banquet - The StarView (The One) was
comparatively lower than other restaurants while the average spending
per customer for both wedding banquets and dining were higher than
other restaurants. The wedding banquet revenue from U Banquet - The
StarView (The One) contributed to approximately 83% of the total revenue
of the shop, whilst the average wedding banquet revenue generation ratio
is approximately 16% for the rest of the restaurants in 2018. The directors
believed that U Banquet - The StarView (The One) located in the prime area of
Tsim Sha Tsui with artistic and sophisticated decorations including a balcony
viewing full glory of Victoria Harbour, attracts more potential wedding
banquet customers.

Environmental maintenance business

The Group starts to engage in the environmental maintenance business in
the PRC after the completion of acquisition of BYL on 22 October 2018. Since
then, it has generated approximately HK$31,938,000 service income and
HK$4,654,000 segment profit to the Group.

Cost of Revenue

The cost of revenue is mainly comprised of cost of materials consumed
for Chinese restaurant business and environmental maintenance business.
Cost of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$107,257,000 (2017: HK$98,854,000), representing an
increase of approximately 8.5% as compared to last year. The increase in cost
of revenue mainly arose from the environmental maintenance business since
the Group completed the acquisition of BYL in October 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

Employee Benefits Expenses

The Group had 1,128 employees as at 31 December 2018 (31 December
2017: 480 employees). The increase in the number of employees was mainly
due to the acquisition of the environmental maintenance business in
October 2018.

Employee benefits expenses for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to approximately HK$135,138,000 (2017: HKS$122,977,000),
representing an increase of approximately 9.9% compared to last year. The
Group would regularly review the work allocation of the staff to improve and
maintain a high standard of service.

Operating Lease Payments

Operating lease payments for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$77,005,000, representing a decrease of approximately
3.0% as compared to last year. The decrease was mainly due to the closure of
U Banquet (Tsim Sha Tsui) in January 2018, which have a full year impact in
2017 operating lease payments.

Utilities Expenses

Utilities expenses for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$33,922,000 representing an increase of approximately 4.6%
as compared to last year. The increase in utilities expenses was in line with
increase of revenue from Chinese restaurants operations.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

Having considered the consistently, unfavourable sales performance of
one Chinese restaurant, the management of the Group has consequently
determined to impair the property, plant and equipment pertaining to this
Chinese restaurant business amounting to approximately HK$2,831,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$9,369,000).
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Other Expenses

Other expenses mainly represent expenses incurred for the Group's
operation, consisting of consultancy service fee, kitchen consumables,
laundry, cleaning, repairs and maintenance, advertising and promotion, legal
and professional, etc. For the year ended 31 December 2018, other expenses
amounted to approximately HK$65,086,000, representing an increase of
approximately 7.4% as compared to last year. The increase was in line with
the increase of revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Loss Before Tax and Loss For The Year

During the year under review, the performance of restaurant operation for
both wedding banquet and dining services had been improved as compared
to the year in 2017. It is primarily due to the loss of revenue during the
decoration period of U Banquet (Mong Kok) (I) and (Il), U Banquet « The
StarView (Kwun Tong) and U Banquet (Wong Tai Sin) for the year ended 31
December 2017 while no restaurants had such decoration period for the
year ended 31 December 2018. In addition, the Group had successfully
implemented new strategy for several restaurants with positive result. Hence,
despite the closure of the U Banquet (Tsim Sha Tsui) during the year 2018,
the aggregated revenue generated from restaurant operation still increased
from approximately HK$362.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017
to approximately HK$374.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The operating cost which includes depreciation and operating lease
payment had been decreased as closure of the U Banquet (Tsim Sha Tsui) for
the year ended 31 December 2018. Also, the impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment had been decreased approximately HK$6,538,000 as
compared to last year. With the effect of increase the revenue and decrease
of operating cost and impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
mentioned above, the Group’s loss before tax and a loss for the year had
been decreased from approximately HK$55,307,000 and HK$56,186,000,
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately
HK$23,279,000 and HK$25,245,000, respectively for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Resources
Capital Structure

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors its capital on the
basis of the gearing ratio. The Group's strategy, which was unchanged during
the year ended 31 December 2018, was to lower the gearing ratio to an
acceptable level.

Cash Position and Pledged Bank Deposit

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$117,635,000, representing a decrease of 40.1% as
compared to approximately HK$196,335,000 as at 31 December 2017. The
Company and Mr. Sang Kanggiao (“Mr. Sang”), a controlling shareholder and
chairman of the Board, entered into a loan facility agreement for a term of 2
years from 1 November 2016 of which Mr. Sang has agreed to make available
to the Company from time to time an unsecured loan facility amounting to
HK$300,000,000 with an interest rate of 4.5% per annum. The loan facility was
renewed during the year for another term of two year ending in October
2020.

As at 31 December 2018, HK$95,043,000 was drawn from the above facility
as loan due to a shareholder to provide bridging liquidity to the Group for
the acquisition of BYL in October 2018. In addition, in anticipation for the
payment conditions of the contingent consideration will be fulfilled, on
March 2019, the Group had further drawn down HK$50,000,000 from Mr.
Sang under the loan facility.
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Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Mr. Sang has confirmed to the Group
that he will not demand for repayment of the outstanding balances as at 31
December 2018 and the amount subsequently drawn down by the Group,
totaling HK$145,043,000 in the coming twelve months from the date of this
report.

There were no pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Loans from a director of certain subsidiaries

On 9 May 2017, the Group entered into a loan facility agreement with a
director of certain subsidiaries in which the director of certain subsidiaries has
agreed to make available to the Group, from time to time an unsecured loan
facility amounted to HK$60,000,000 with an interest rate of 4.5% per annum
for a term of 2.5 years. As at 31 December 2018, a total of HK$19,000,000
(2017: HK$45,000,000) of this loan was drawn down.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in January 2019, the Group further
drew down a loan of HK$15,000,000 for capital expenditure of existing shop
renovation and new shop decoration. This director of certain subsidiaries
has confirmed that he will not demand for repayment of the outstanding
balances as at 31 December 2018 and all the fund subsequently remitted to
the Group for a period of twelve months from the date of this report.

Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's trade receivables were approximately
HK$12,024,000, representing an increase of approximately 515.0% as
compared to the last year. The trade receivables were mainly comprised of
trade receivable from the Chinese restaurants operation and newly acquired
environmental maintenance business. The increase of trade receivables
mainly arose from the environmental maintenance business acquired in
October 2018.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since most of the revenue and expenditure are made in Hong Kong dollars,
the Group is not exposed to significant foreign exchange exposure.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Group's assets was charged or subject
to any encumbrance.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had 1,128 (2017: 480 employees) employees as at 31 December
2018. The Group's remuneration practices are in line with the prevailing
market practice and are determined on the basis of performance,
qualification and experience of individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Remuneration
Committee, with reference to their respective contribution of time, effort and
expertise on the Company’s matters.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as consideration payables, loans from a director of certain
subsidiaries, loans from a shareholder less cash and cash equivalents. Total
capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet
plus net debt. As at 31 December 2018, the Group's gearing ratio was 40%. As
at 31 December 2017, the Group is at a net cash position, hence, no gearing
ratio is disclosed.

Dividends

The directors do not recommend payment of final dividends in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions or Disposal
of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies and Plans for Material
Investment or Capital Assets

Completion of Acquisition of Environmental Maintenance Business

On 9 February 2018, Wild South Limited, (the “Purchaser”), a directly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Mr. Wan Zhong (“The Vendor”)
entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Vendor has conditionally
agreed to sell the sale shares, representing 51% of the entire issued share
capital of BYL Property Holdings Group Limited (“The Target Company”) as at
the date of the Stock Purchase Agreement and Completion, at the aggregate
consideration of RMB132,600,000 (subject to adjustments) (equivalent to
approximately HK$154,106,000) ("Acquisition”).

Under the Stock Purchase Agreement, the Vendor shall provide the profit
guarantee to the Purchaser and pursuant to which the Vendor shall
guarantee that the audited consolidated net profit after tax of the Target
Company and its subsidiary (“The Target Group”) for the three financial years
ending 31 December 2020 shall not be less than RMB94,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$118,125,000) in aggregate. For due observance and
punctual performance of the Vendor's obligations under the profit guarantee,
the Vendor shall upon the Completion (i) procure certain landed properties
in the PRC to be charged to Shenzhen Huashu, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company; and (i) charge the remaining 49% of the entire issued share
capital of the Target Company to the Purchaser. A circular setting out, among
other things, details of the above matters was published on 15 June 2018
(“the Circular”).

An extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") of the Company was held on 16
July 2018, the Acquisition has been approved by the shareholders of the
Company and the Acquisition was completed in October 2018.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 9
February 2018, 16 March 2018, 16 April 2018, 16 May 2018, 29 May 2018, 12
June 2018, 20 June 2018, 8 August 2018, 13 August 2018 and 22 October
2018, the poll results announcement of the Company dated 16 July 2018 and
the Circular.
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Possible Subscription of New Shares Under Specific Mandate

On 15 March 2018, the Company entered into the Former Subscription
Agreement with CASIC Investment Fund Management (Beijing) Limited
Company* (fi A Bl T & H © B 12 (ILR)BMRAF]) (‘the Former
Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Former Subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for (or procure the subscription by its nominee(s))
and the Company has agreed to allot and issue 180,000,000 new Shares
at the Subscription Price of HK$1.80 per Subscription Share to the Former
Subscriber (or its nominee(s)). A circular setting out, among other things,
details of the above matters was published on 15 June 2018 (“the Circular”).
An EGM of the Company was held on 16 July 2018, the Possible Subscription
has been approved by the shareholders of the Company and it is expected to
be completed in due course. For details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 15 March 2018, 19 March 2018, 29 May 2018 and 20
June 2018, the poll results announcement of the Company dated 16 July
2018 and the Circular.

As disclosed in the Circular, completion of the Subscription is conditional
upon the fulfillment (or waiver, if applicable) of the various conditions
precedent as set out in the Subscription Agreement (as supplemented
by the Subscription Supplemental Agreement) on or before 31 July 2018
(the “Long Stop Date”) or such later date as the Company and the Former
Subscriber may agree in writing. Since additional time is required for the
fulfilment of the conditions precedent to the completion, the Company and
the Former Subscriber agreed to extend the Long Stop Date subsequently
to 31 March 2019 and another EGM will need to be held for the shareholders
to reconsider the subscription agreements. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 31 July 2018, 13 August 2018, 31
October 2018 and 31 January 2019.
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On 29 March 2019 (after trading hours), the Company and the Former
Subscriber entered into the deed of termination, pursuant to which the
Company and the Former Subscriber have mutually agreed to terminate the
Former Subscription Agreement and to release and discharge each other
from its respective obligations under the Former Subscription Agreement
with effect from the date of the termination deed. Pursuant to the deed of
termination, all obligations of the parties under or in respect of the Former
Subscription Agreement shall be fully discharged and no party to the Former
Subscription Agreement shall have any claim of any nature whatsoever
against the other party arising from or in connection with the Former
Subscription Agreement. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 29 March 2019.

Possible Subscription of New Shares Under General Mandate

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into the a subscription agreement
with China Aerospace Environmental Holdings Group Limited ( #1 Bd i X
RIRIEAREB B A RF]), a limited company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, (“the New Subscriber”), pursuant to which the New Subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for (or procure the subscription by its
nominee(s)) and the Company has agreed to allot and issue 30,000,000 new
Shares at the subscription price of HK$1.70 per subscription share to the
New Subscriber (or its nominee(s)) (“the New Subscription Agreement”). The
new subscription is subject to the fulfillment of the conditions precedent
set out in the New Subscription Agreement. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 29 March 2019.

Save as disclosed, the Group did not have any significant investments and

had no other material acquisitions or disposal of investments during the
period and under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & P J& & iig & 7 I

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

During the year, the Group disposed all financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss and recorded realised gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss, fair value gain of financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss and dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss in the amount of HK$302,000, HK$0 and HK$19,000
respectively (year ended 31 December 2017: HK$2,206,000, HK$108,000 and
HK$189,000).

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company has conducted the following equity fund raising activities
during the year and subsequently after 31 December 2018:

Proposed Use of Proceeds from the Possible Subscriptions

On 29 March 2019, the Company entered into a new subscription agreement
with China Aerospace Environmental Holdings Group Limited ( F B A
IRIRIZEREB AR AR, a limited company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, (“the New Subscriber”) pursuant to which the New Subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for (or procure the subscription by its
nominee(s)) and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue
30,000,000 new Shares at the Subscription Price of HK$1.70 per subscription
share to the New Subscriber (or its nominee(s)). The gross proceeds from
the subscription are estimated to be approximately HK$51,000,000. The net
proceeds from the subscription after deducting the related expenses are
estimated to be approximately HK$49,600,000, which will be applied for the
repayment of a shareholder’s loan.

Save as disclosed above and the Company’s announcement dated 29
March 2019, the Company has not conducted any other equity fund raising
activities for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the period immediately
prior to the date of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & P J& & g J 7

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities.

Share Option

On 17 May 2017, the Company has granted share options (the “Options”)
under its share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) adopted on 19
November 2013 to certain eligible grantees (the “Grantees”), which, subject
to acceptance by the Grantees, will enable the Grantees to subscribe for an
aggregate of 11,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company as stated in the announcement of the
Company dated 17 May 2017. No option had been exercised during the year.
As at 31 December 2018, 240,000 options was lapsed, 560,000 options was
forfeited and there were 10,800,000 options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme.

Event After the Reporting Period

(i) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, shareholder loans amounting
to HKS$142,920,000 were repaid to minimise the interest expenses
incurred by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

PROSPECTS

In light of the continued fierce competitive environment in the food and
beverage industry, the rising cost of materials and the continuing high
rental cost in Hong Kong, the financial performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 remained under pressure. The operating
environment in Hong Kong is expected to remain challenging for the
foreseeable future. The management had decided not to renew the lease
contract of U - Kitchen (Wong Tai Sin) and U - Pot (Wong Tai Sin) which
expired since February 2019 as continuing poor performance of this
restaurant. Nonetheless, the management is confident that the Group can
succeed and enhance the shareholders’ value. The Group will continue to
deploy different marketing strategies, adding creative features to the existing
and new restaurants, meanwhile, implementing effective cost control
measures and minimising the operating costs on rental, raw materials and
labour accordingly. The Group had entered a lease contract in December
2018 with a landlord for a restaurant in Sha Tin, namely, U Banquet - The
StarView (Sha Tin) which is expected to be opened in the second quarter of
2019. With the strong revenue contribution from U Banquet - The StarView
(The One), the management expected that U Banquet - The StarView (Sha
Tin) would become another major income stream for the Group and enlarge
the Group’s market share within the industry. In addition, a renovation
of U Banquet (Causeway Bay) had been commence since February 2019
and expected to be re-open in May 2019. The management believed that
the new outlook of U Banquet (Causeway Bay) can attract both wedding
banquet and dining customers in foreseeable future.

The Group starts to engage in the environmental maintenance business in
the PRC after the completion of acquisition of BYL on 22 October 2018. Since
then, it has already generated significant service income and segment profit
to the Group. The Company believes that the environmental maintenance
industry in the PRC will enjoy a sustainable growth in the future and thus
enhance the business development and financial prospect of the Group.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to utilise its available resources
to engage in and develop its current business. Apart from this, the Group
will also explore business opportunities to strengthen its revenue base such
as acquisition of potential properties in Hong Kong and/or China which is
expected to generate a stable and constant stream of rental income to the
Group.
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Biographical Details Of Directors

And Senior Management
EFERGREHEREF G

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sang Kangqiao (&), aged 43, was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 27 October 2016 and is the Chairman of
the board of directors of the Company. He is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Sang obtained a bachelor's degree in electrical engineering from Beijing
Institute of Technology. Mr. Sang has over 16 years of experience in the
securities investment industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Xu Wenze (FF302) , aged 55, was appointed as executive director
of the Company on 27 October 2016. Mr. Xu obtained a master's degree
in business administration from Tsinghua School of Economics and
Management. Mr. Xu has been the president of Guorun Construction Group
Limited since 1996 and the general manager of Beijing Rixing Property
Development Limited since 2004. From 2014 to present, Mr. Xu has been
employed as the president of Guorun Holdings Group Limited. He is also the
director of Asia Pacific Aviation Leasing Group from 2016.

Mr. Cui Peng (£B) , aged 45, was appointed as executive director of
the Company on 27 October 2016. Mr. Cui obtained a bachelor's degree
in money and banking from Beijing Business School in 1997. Mr. Cui was
employed as the assistant general manager of Sinotrans & CSC Holdings
Co., Ltd's finance department from 1997 to 2012. From 2012 to 2014, Mr. Cui
was the managing director of capital operations of ABCl China Investment
Corporation Limited. Mr. Cui has over 19 years of experience in the securities
investment industry in PRC and over 10 years of experience in Hong Kong's
securities industry.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management # % J% & %

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. XU Zhihao (# &%) , aged 47, was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 27 October 2016. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr Xu graduated with
a bachelor's degree in laws from Guangzhou Jinan University in 1994 and
obtained a master of laws from the graduate school of China University of
Political Science and Law in 2004. Mr. XU Zhihao was employed by a real
estate company prior to working at Huabang (Guangdong) Century law firm.
From 2001 to 2003, Mr. XU Zhihao worked in Guang Dong Rong Guan law
firm. Mr. XU Zhihao is currently a senior partner in Jincheng Tongda & Neal
(Shenzhen) and has extensive experience in the operation of banks and non-
bank financial institutions, including trusts, securities and financing leasing
institutions. Mr. XU Zhihao is skilled in various real estate financing, including
trust support and equity financing.

Mr. LAM Ka Tak (#E &), aged 37, was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 October 2016. He is also
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Lam graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a bachelor's degree in accounting in 2003 and obtained a master of
business administration from the Hong Kong University in 2013. Mr. LAM
Ka Tak was employed by RSM Nelson Wheeler (currently known as RSM
Hong Kong) before working as an audit manager at KPMG. Mr. LAM Ka Tak
currently serves as the chief financial officer and company secretary of Beijing
Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited (Stock Code: 2389), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. LAM Ka Tak is
also employed as an executive director by Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited (Stock Code: 1803), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. LAM Ka Tak has over 13 years of experience
in accounting and financial matters.

JBJE JE it

BYFHTES
BEERE 4750 R RFTA-TE
REZRERARRBULIFNTES WIS
ERZEGMNREZEERB -HREEN
—MNANEEXRENERAR BERESE
T8 IR -BEMFRENDEBUEKR
B OEEEELTEM - NEBRERERE
Eﬁ%i‘kﬁﬁ BREBEEZER —RBERE
RAE MR _TE-—FE_FTET=F FEA
TR B R BB EMES - ﬁlwu
AR B R EWEZE ORI A E B AR
BREBALNEERITRIFRITEREE
(BRER BB EHERE) TEES
wgﬁéﬁ HEEREBRREEFMER
BREEAFERBRARE -

MEBEE 375 R_F—R"F+H-+t
AEZEIRARRBILIFNTES KIS
BERREGTRMFMEEERE -MEL
M*"? FEENRBEERIKRE B
BB YR - =FREFBRE
ﬁﬁ@ﬁi%hﬂ%%%@aﬁﬁ$ﬁ%
EEZEKERN MERTERERERE
gtanTT CRRBATIRESE (B8) @FtmE

iﬂﬁfr)f%?ﬁ BELREEHIMEIRLET
RELEEERFEXEBEER AR ()

K57 1 2389) 2 BATS B EE R A RITE - 31
SETVER R TER ET AR REE L
EXSEEBRAG (RO 1803)ETEA
WITEE MEBEERSHERUBERES
EHE A B13F 45 o

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2018

33



34

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management # % J% & #%

Mr. WONG Sincere (ZF i 2 ), aged 54, was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 September 2018. He is
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s
degree of social science from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong
Kong in December 1986. Mr. Wong was admitted as a solicitor of Hong Kong
and England and Wales in October 1993 and February 1994, respectively. Mr.
Wong is the founder and currently a partner of Wong Heung Sum & Lawyers
(formerly known as Sincere Wong & Co.). He is also a non-executive director
of MOS House Group Limited (Stock code: 1653) and an independent non-
executive director of Bank of Gansu Co., Limited (Stock code: 2139).

He was an in-house counsel for Hutchison Whampoa Group from September
1996 to January 2005 and China Resources Enterprise, Limited (Stock code:
291), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (now
known as China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited) from February
2005 to November 2006, chief legal officer of Shui On Construction and
Materials Limited (Stock code: 983), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange from November 2006 to June 2010, as well as the head
of the legal department and company secretary of Sateri Holdings Limited
(@ company previously listed on the Stock Exchange, the name of which
was later changed to Bracell Limited but has subsequently been privatized)
from July 2010 to May 2011. He worked at the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
from August 2011 to April 2016, and was a vice president of Listing &
Regulatory Affairs Division at the time of his departure from the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, primarily responsible for reviewing listing applications and
providing recommendations to the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange regarding listing applications.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Kin Man Duncan (R 3 ), aged 46, was appointed as the
Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer of the Company on 19
December 2016. Mr. Yu holds a master degree in Professional Accounting
and Corporate Governance in The City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yu has
over twenty years of experience in accounting, financial management and
corporate finance. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.
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Report of the Directors

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents its annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review are set out in the section of "Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14 to 31.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Following a change in the Group's operating and reporting structure, starting
from the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has three reportable
and operating segments (i) Chinese restaurant and wedding business, (ii)
property leasing business, and (jii) securities trading business.

Apart from continuing to develop its core business, during the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group starts to engage in environmental maintenance
business in the PRC which is a new business segment through acquisition of
BYL Property Holdings Group Limited (“BYL").

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 85 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS POLICY AND FINAL DIVIDEND

"

The directors of the Company (‘Director(s)”) do not recommend payment of
any dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Report of the Directors & F @ #

The Company's ability to pay dividends depends on, among other things,
the Group's current and future operations, liquidity position and capital
requirements. The payment of dividends by the Company is also subject to
compliance with any restrictions under the Laws of the Cayman Islands, the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company and any applicable
laws, rules and regulations. The Board will review the dividend policy from
time to time and may exercise at its absolute and sole discretion to update,
amend, and/or modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any specific period.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available for distribution to
shareholders comprising share premium account plus accumulated losses,
amounted to approximately HK$69,612,000.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$87,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles
of association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Report of the Directors & F & #f #

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (“Director(s)”) during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Sang Kanggiao (Chairman)
Mr. Cui Peng
Mr. Xu Wenze

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Ka Tak
Mr. Xu Zhihao
Mr. Wong Sincere (appointed on 27 September 2018)

Ms. Liu Yan (resigned on 27 September 2018)

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with articles of association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 32 to 34 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors & F @ #

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
terms subject to the relevant provisions of the articles of association or any
other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2018, the following Directors, had the following interests
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”") as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of SFO:
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Long positions in shares of the Company REQXTBRGPHERE
Number of
shares/underlying Approximate %
Name of director Nature of interest shares held of shareholding
PR,
EEpE NEEH HEROHE BAREBED
Mr. Sang Kanggiao Beneficial owner 189,152,000
REBELE BEmEAA
Other 105,800,000
Hit
294,952,000 52.86%
(Note 1)
(Pi&ED)
Mr. Cui Peng Beneficial owner 5,400,000
EWEEE BESEAA
Other 289,552,000
HAh
294,952,000 52.86%
(Note 2)
(P &E2)
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Report of the Directors & F & #f #

Number of
shares/underlying Approximate %
Name of director Nature of interest shares held of shareholding
iEsd:gv
EEpE NEEH HERO A BMAOREBES
Mr. Xu Wenze Beneficial owner 100,400,000
AFOER A EREAA
Other 194,552,000
HAt
294,952,000 52.86%
(Note 3)
(PF&E3)
Mr. Lam Ka Tak Beneficial owner 400,000 0.07%
MEETE EnEAA (Note 4)
(PffsE4)
Mr. Xu Zhihao Beneficial owner 400,000 0.07%
REETE EREAA (Note 4)
(P 7E4)
Note: BT -

The interest comprises 188,752,000 shares and 400,000 underlying shares in
respect of the share options granted pursuant to the share option scheme.
Details of the shares granted to this director are set out above under “Share
Option Schemes”. Other represents the shares and underlying shares held
by Mr. Xu and Mr. Cui which are parties acting in concert with Mr. Sang and
by virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Sang, Mr. Xu and Mr. Cui is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by each other.

The interest comprises 5,000,000 shares and 400,000 underlying shares in
respect of the share options granted pursuant to the share option scheme.
Details of the share options granted to this director are set out above under
“Share Option Schemes’. Other represents the shares and underlying shares
held by Mr. Sang and Mr. Xu which are parties acting in concert with Mr. Cui
and by virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Sang, Mr. Xu and Mr. Cui is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by each other.

% MRS B 4E188,752,0000% A% 10 K AR 1% i Ak A
ST EI TR H A B8 A A BT 3% I B9400,0000% 48 78
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BRG  MIRIEES RSN FhE 51
S RESETAWR BRI ARG
YA -

7 5 B 1E5,000,000A% AR 19 J AR 1R BB AR A 5T
B B % A B AR PO K #9400,000% 48 BE AR
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3. The interest comprises 100,000,000 shares and 400,000 underlying shares in
respect of the share options granted pursuant to the share option scheme.
Details of the share options granted to this director are set out above under
“Share Option Schemes”. Others represent the shares and underlying shares
held by Mr. Sang and Mr. Cui which are parties acting in concert with Mr. Xu
and by virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Sang, Mr. Xu and Mr. Cui is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by each other.

4. The interest are 400,000 underlying shares in respect of the share options
granted pursuant to the share option scheme. Details of the share options
granted to this director are set out above under “Share Option Schemes”.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no debt securities
issued by the Group at any time. Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December
2018, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
associates had any interests and short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which each of them has taken or deemed to have taken
under the provisions of the SFO); or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred to therein; or which
were required, pursuant to Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, CASIC Investment Fund Management (Beijing)
Limited Company* (AR TR EXE S EE (L FR)BERDF) s
interested in 180,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company, representing
approximately 32.26% of the total number of issued shares of the Company,
which was recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) who had any interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

* For identification purposes only
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COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the directors are not aware
of any business or interest of the directors, the management of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any other
conflict of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as those interests disclosed under the paragraph entitled “Related Party
Transactions’, there is no contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes 10 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 1,128 employees. The Directors and
senior management receive compensation in the form of salaries, benefits in
kind and discretionary bonuses with reference to salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and the performance of the Group. The
Company also reimburses them for expenses which are necessarily and
reasonably incurred for the provision of services to the Group or executing
their functions in relation to the operations of the Group. The Company
regularly review and determine the remuneration and compensation
package of the Directors and senior management, by reference to, among
other things, market level of salaries paid by comparable companies, the
respective responsibilities of the Directors and the performance of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to support environmental protection to ensure
business development and sustainability. The Group implement green office
practices to reduce the consumption of energy and natural resources. These
practices include the use of energy-saving lightings and recycled paper,
reduce energy consumption by switching off idle lightings, computers
and electrical appliances and the use of environmentally friendly products
whenever possible.

A separate environmental, social and governance report is expected to be

published on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website no
later than three months after this annual report has been published.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers in aggregate and the single largest customer
of the Group accounted for approximately HK$19,078,423 or 4.64% and
HK$6,331,707 or 1.54% of the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018 respectively. The information in respect of the Group's
purchases attributable to the major suppliers during the year is as follows:

FEEFRHERS
KEBAARBEFAFARE—HGRAEF A5
hAEEHEZE-_Z—N\F+_A=+—H
1EFE U 25 #4919,078,42378 TT 14.64% M.
6,331,707/ 708 1.54% - £ N - BRI T Bt
BEASERBEENERDT

Percentage of

the Group's

total purchases
HAEEAREE
ATk

RAHER

The largest supplier

hAHREEAE

Five largest suppliers in aggregate

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital, had a beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest
supplier and customers.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of borrowings of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 30
and Note 38(c)(iii) & (iv) to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the listed securities of the company during the year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior
to issue of this report, the Company has maintained the sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company’'s shareholders on 19
November 2013 (the "Adoption Date”) for the primary purpose of providing
eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company and to motivate, attract and retain the eligible participants whose
contributions are important to the long-term growth and profitability of
the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include any employees, any
executives, non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors), advisors, consultants of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
The Scheme became effective on 10 December 2013 (the “Listing Date”)
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years commencing on the Listing Date, the principal terms of which were
summarized in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV
to the Company's prospectus dated 28 November 2013.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company (excluding options lapsed pursuant
to the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company) must not exceed
55,800,000 shares, representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company at
the date of the annual report.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued to each eligible
participant under the Scheme in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the issued shares of the Company unless approved in advance by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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Any option to be granted under the Scheme to a Director, Chief Executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or to any of their respective
associates must be approved by all Independent Non-Executive Directors
of the Company (excluding Independent Non-Executive Director who is the
grantee). In addition, any option to be granted to a substantial shareholder
or an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company or to any of their
respective associates which will result in the shares issued and to be issued in
excess of 0.1% of the issued shares or with an aggregate value (based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000
within any 12-month period is subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.

The offer of a grant of options under the Scheme may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer and by payment of HK$1.00 as consideration
for the grant of an option. An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period as to be determined
and notified by the Directors to each grantee, but shall end in any event not
later than 10 years from the date of the grant of option.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors and shall be at least the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant of
an option, which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant of an
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's shares.

The remaining life of the Scheme, which will expire on 9 December 2023, is
approximately 4 years from the date of this report.
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Share Option Movements

As at 31 December 2018, there were a total of 10,800,000 outstanding share
options granted to directors, employees and consultants of the Company,
details of which are as follows:

Number of share options

BREZH
R-ZB—-NE+_A=+—HB BFEQT
EZ BEENERNEKRTEERELS
10,800,00013 ' BEFFIBLT :

BREHE
As at Forfeited Lapsed Asat
1 January during the during the 31 December Exercise
Name of director Date of grant 2018 year year 2018 price  Exercise period
RZB-N%F 7@
RZB-N\& £RE £RE +=A HKD
Esps R AH -A-8 R PS4 =t-H AL fTEH
Sang Kanggiao 17 May 2017 400,000 - - 400,000 199 17 May 2017 to
16 May 2027
(Note 1)
EEB “TtF it S g2
BA+LE LAt+tREE
i 2
BTATARA
(P31
CuiPeng 17 May 2017 400,000 - - 400,000 199 17 May 2017 to
16 May 2027
(Note 1)
£ “TtF it S g2
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i 2
AATRA
(P31
XuWenze 17 May 2017 400,000 - - 400,000 199 17 May 2017 to
16 May 2027
(Note 1)
HFXE —E—+F Bt
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i 2
AATRA
(P31
Lam Ka Tak 17 May 2017 400,000 - - 400,000 199 17 May 2017 to
16 May 2027
(Note 1)
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Number of share options
BREHE
Asat Forfeited Lapsed Asat
1 January during the during the 31 December Exercise
Name of director Date of grant 2018 year year 2018 price  Exercise period
RZB-N\fF THE
RZB-N\F FRe ERe +=A HKD
3] REBRH -A—-H R ¥ =+-H B TEH
Xu Zhihao 17 May 2017 400,000 - - 400,000 199 17 May 2017 to
16 May 2027
(Note 1)
REE —ZT+tF ZE+F
AA+EH TAtLRAZE
S o
HA+TAA
(k)

Liu Yan (resigned 17 May 2017 400,000 (280,000) (120,000) 0 199 17 May 2017 to

on 27 September 2018) 16 May 2027
(Note 1)

g (M- N\ ZZ—+F —Z—tfF
NAZ++E TA++tR AA+tH
BHE) E-T &

TATRA
(PEzET)
2,400,000 (280,000) (120,000) 2,000,000
Note: BT -
1. For options granted with exercisable date determined based on the grant date 1. FATE L AARIRERER L A BB T 1T

of options, the first 30% of the total options can be exercised 1 year after the
grant date, 40% of the total options can be exercised 2 years after the grant date
and 30% of the total options will become exercisable in 3 years after the grant
date.

Details of movements of share options granted to employees of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

5 B EIR BB AR T = - B R A AR B A 3300 7]
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Number of share options

BREZE
Asat Forfeited Lapsed Asat
1 January during during 31December  Exercise
Date of grant 2018 the year the year 2018 price  Exercise period
T8
RZB-N\& RZB-N\& HKD
R B H -A-B ERERR FAE4AR t=A=t-B B IR
17 May 2017 1,200,000 (280,000) (120,000) 800,000 199 17May2017to
16 May 2027 (Note 1)
“Z—+FRATtH —Z—+tFRA+LRE
R+ ERATRE
(BzE)
Note: 3 -
1. For options granted with exercisable date determined based on the grant date 1. AT A A REERER L ABETE

of options, the first 30% of the total options can be exercised 1 year after the
grant date, 40% of the total options can be exercised 2 years after the grant date
and 30% of the total options will become exercisable in 3 years after the grant

date.

Details of movements of share options granted to consultants of the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Number of share options
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BREHA
Asat Forfeited Lapsed Asat
1 January during during 31December  Exercise
Date of grant 2018 the year the year 2018 price  Exercise period
T8
RZE-NF RZE-NF HKD
BB E -A-B ERERR FRE4AR t=A=t-B AL TR
17 May 2017 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000 199 17 May 2017 to
16 May 2027 (Note 1)
“ET-t§RA+TLA “Z-rERATERE
T +ERATRHE
CiEal
Note: MIaE -
1. For options granted with exercisable date determined based on the grant date 1. RAELEAREERERLAPEE

of options, the first 30% of the total options can be exercised 1 year after the
grant date, 40% of the total options can be execised 2 years after the grant date
and 30% of the total options will become exercisable in 3 years after the grant

date.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this Directors’
Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for
the benefit of any of the directors of the Company (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the Company).

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers and a resolution for the re-appointment
as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.u-banquetgroup.com.

By order of the Board

Sang Kanggiao
Chairman

27 March 2019
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The Company is committed to ensure a high standard of corporate
governance in the interests of the shareholders and devotes considerable
effort to maintain high level of business ethics and corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the
‘CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year. The Company has applied the principles
of, and complied with, the applicable code provisions of the CG Code
during the year ended 31 December 2018. The Board of the Company will
keep reviewing and updating such practices from time to time to ensure
compliance with legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board of the Company (the “Board”) is primarily responsible for
formulating strategies, monitoring performance and managing risks of the
Group. At the same time, it also has the duty to enhance the effectiveness
of the corporate governance practices of the Group. Under the Board,
there are 3 board committees, namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. All these committees perform their
distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference (available
on the Company's website) and assist the Board in supervising certain
functions of the senior management.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group had adopted Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)
as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on
terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings.

Having made specific enquiries to all the directors and all the directors of the
Company had confirmed compliance with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct for directors’ securities transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At present, the Board of the Company comprises six directors (“Directors”) as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Sang Kanggiao (Chairman)
Mr. Cui Peng
Mr. Xu Wenze

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Ka Tak
Mr. Xu Zhihao
Mr. Wong Sincere (appointed on 27 September 2018)

Ms. Liu Yan (resigned on 27 September 2018)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section of “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 32 to 34.

The Board has the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company.
They are collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Group
by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. The Board is accountable
to the shareholders for the strategic development of the Group with the
goal of maximizing long-term shareholder value, while balancing broader
stakeholder interests.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Remuneration Committee meeting, Nomination Committee
meeting and general meeting during the year ended 31 December 2018 is

RBE-FT-NF+_A=+t—HLFE"
REZHFEES SR BRZEgSH

¥MZEee%.

REZBEERNMERK

set out in the following table:

BZRERINAT

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
(attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/ (attendance/
total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of total no. of
Name of Directors meeting held) meeting held) meeting held) meeting held) meeting held)
Ezeg ENZESE yHzEge REZEEEE BREAE
(HESERE/ (HESERE/ (HECERE/ (LESERE/ (LEEE/E/
BEspg BENEEAY) BERAH)  BUSE48)  E7eB48)  ENg38%)
Executive Directors EEHE
Mr. Sang Kanggiao REELE 99 NATERA " /1 212
Mr. Cui Peng ERxs 99 NATER NA iR NATER 0
Mr. Xu Wenze FXERE 99 N/A T N/A T iE A N/A T iE A n
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEE
Mr.Lam Ka Tak WRERE 99 0 11 N/A T 22
Mr. Xu Zhihao REELE 99 0 NATER 1 n
Mr. Wong Sincere BRRAE (W2 N\F ” NATER NATER NATER NATER
(appointed on 27 September 2018) MNAZTHREZRA)
Ms. Liu Yan (resigned on 27 September 2018) 2|44+ (R=T—N\F Vi 2”2 11 n 1
AAZTEAEE)
Code Provision A.1.3 stipulates that at least 14 days’ notice should be given — SFRHEX EBAIMKFIA FRESFEHEA

for a regular Board meeting. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notices are generally given. Board papers together with all
appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all directors
at least 3 days before each Board meeting or audit committee meeting
to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
All Directors are provided with details of agenda items for decisions making
with reasonable notice and welcome to include matters in the agenda
of the Board Meeting. Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures are complied with and advising the Board on compliance
matters.
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Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are kept by
Company Secretary and are opened for inspection as requested by Directors.
During the year, the Board was given sufficient time to review and approve
the minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees meetings.
Directors are also provided with access to independent professional advice,
where necessary, in carrying out their obligations as Directors of the
Company, at the expense of the Company.

If potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or a Director
arises which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt
with by a physical board meeting rather than a written resolution. Directors
who are considered to have conflict of interests or material interests in the
proposed transactions or issues to be discussed would not be counted in
the quorum of meeting and would abstain from voting. The Directors attend
meetings in persons or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

All Directors assume the responsibilities owed to the shareholders of the
Company for the well-being and success of the Company. They are aware of
their duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records so as to
enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s overall financial position. The
Board updates shareholders on the operations and financial position of the
Group through half yearly and annual results announcements as well as the
publication of timely announcements of other matters as prescribed by the
relevant rules and regulations.
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The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors, at least one
of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, in compliance
with the Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-executive Director has
made an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all Independent Non-
executive Directors meet the Independence Guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

According to the Company’s articles of association, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting and shall
be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Sang Kanggiao was the Chairman of the Board since 27 October 2016.
There was no Chief Executive Officer appointed by the Company and the
day-to-day management of the Group was led by Executive Directors during
the year. There is no time schedule to change this structure, as the Directors
consider that this structure provides the Group and strong and consistent
leadership in the Company’s decision making process and operational
efficiency. The Board will, nevertheless, review the business growth of the
Group and locate suitable candidate to fill the vacancy of Chief Executive
Officer when considered essential.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership for
the Board to ensure that the Board always acts in the best interest of the
Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the Board works effectively and fully
discharges its responsibilities, and that all key issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. The Chairman has taken into account, where
appropriate, any matters proposed by the Directors for inclusion in the
agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility of drawing up the
agenda for each board meeting to the Company Secretary. With the support
of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and have received
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner. The Chairman also take
primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established.
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The Board is therefore of the view that these is an adequate balance of power
and that appropriate safeguards are in place. Nevertheless, the Board will
continue to regularly monitor and review the Company's current structure
and to make necessary changes when appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Chairman held a meeting
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence of the
executive directors as required by the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

Under Code Provision A4.1, all the Non-Executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for three years but subject to termination in certain circumstance
as stimulated in the relevant service contracts. At each annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (of if their number is
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one
third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of members after his appointment and be eligible for
re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed as an addition to the
existing board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and has
adopted written terms of reference on its corporate governance functions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions
include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’'s policies and practices on
corporate governance,

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company considered
diversity of board members can be achieved through consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

On recommendation from the Nomination Committee, the Board will set
measurable objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives
from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee will
review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from
time to time.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee was set up on 19 November 2013, with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions, which have been
reviewed from time to time by the Board to keep them in line with the most
up-to-date requirements to oversee the remuneration policy and structure
for all Directors and senior management. The most up-to-date written terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s
website and on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Directors and the senior management and determining the
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible to ensure that no Director
or any of his associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which will be determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year. The
members reviewed the remuneration package of Directors and the senior
management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members namely:—

Mr. Wong Sincere (Chairman) (appointed on 27 September 2018)

Ms. Liu Yan (Chairman) (resigned on 27 September 2018)

Mr. Sang Kanggiao
Mr. Lam Ka Tak

Majority of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.
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In addition, pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration

AN RIBESFANE X EBISIE BHE-T— N\

of the member of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 FT-A=1+—BHIEFESREEEKEN
December 2018 is set out below: FREEHFMRANEIN T
2018

—B-N\#E
HKS Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 = 7T 21,000,000 7T 1
NOMINATION COMMITTEE E%%Eg
The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 19 November ~ ARABRZ-ZZE—=F+— AT NBRIREHE
2013 for making recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors ~ Z B & %%?ft?&'é%ié%ﬂ%&ﬁiﬂﬁ
and succession planning for the directors. EFgREEERRS-

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors, assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors and viewing the
board diversity policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 1 Nomination Committee
meeting was held (i) to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board; (ii) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; (iii) to review the contribution required from a director to perform
his responsibilities; and (iv) to review the training and continuous professional
development of directors. The individual attendance for the Nomination
Committee meeting had been disclosed earlier in this report.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year. The Nomination
Committee recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members namely:—

Mr. Sang Kanggiao (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Zhihao
Mr. Wong Sincere (appointed on 27 September 2018)

Majority of the members are Independent Non-executive Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee on 19 November 2013
with written terms of reference that set out the authorities and duties
of the Audit Committee. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available at the Company's website and on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Audit Committee performs, amongst
others, the following functions:

Review financial information of the Group

Review relationship with and terms of appointment of the external
auditors

Determination of the nature and scope of the audit

Review the Company's financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system

During the year, the Audit Committee held 2 meetings. The Audit Committee
oversees the internal control system of the Group, reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and interim results, the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, selection and appointment of the external auditors, reports
to the Board on any material issues, and makes recommendations to the
Board. There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

The Audit Committee comprises three members namely:—

Mr. Lam Ka Tak (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Zhihao
Mr. Wong Sincere
(appointed on 27 September 2018)

All the members are Independent Non-executive Directors (including
one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner
of the Company’s existing external auditors.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal control
systems in order to safeguard the Group's assets and Shareholders’ interests,
and review and monitor the effectiveness of the Company's internal control
and risk management systems on a regular basis so as to ensure that internal
control and risk management systems in place are adequate. The Company
has established written policies and procedures applicable to all operating
units to ensure the effectiveness of internal controls. The Company also
has a process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the significant risks
to the achievement of its operational objective. This process is subject to
continuous improvement and was in place throughout 2018 and up to the
date of this report. The day-to-day operation is entrusted to each individual
department, which is accountable for its own conduct and performance, and
is required to strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board. The Company
carries out reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control systems from
time to time in order to ensure that they are able to meet and deal with the
dynamic and ever changing business environment.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review and
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management which assisted by Group's internal audit
team. Besides, in order to manage the Group's compliance status, the Legal
and Compliance Committee holds monthly meetings to review the Group's
compliance with Main Board Listing Rules, internal control measures and all
relevant laws and regulations. The results of such review were satisfactory.
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RREERRF

The Group strives to maintain a sound risk management and internal control ~ ZREE BEBUL A RIS B M R B 12 K A EEES

systems which are essential to accomplish its business objectives and its long

2RGHDARBRAKEEREELEY

term sustainable growth. The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for ~— A& R - EE SR H BTG &
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks rest all levels RN S BT TFERBREME RIZE
of the organization. To this end, the Management regularly and continuously ~ BEZEEET - -FilMs  SEEFHNMFE
reviews and makes improvements in its risk management process. In & & R B IR L 7 I U 1E Bk o ko -
addition, the Group engaged an external consultant and conducted a  AGEEZIEINERER W E N EB MR EE
comprehensive review of the Group's risk management. The following #7172 E®] - NREAAELEEH KRR

diagram illustrates the Group's general risk management process.

Stage 1

Establish Risk Context
FIEER
JUBREBAR

Stage 2

Risk Identification
F2HEER

7 Bz 5 7

Stage 3

Risk Assessment
B3R

[B B ¥

Stage 4

Risk Treatment
FARER

[ Bez BR 32

Stage 5

Risk Monitoring and Reporting
SESPE ER

[ B B 4% K SR 5

BERIZF -
The Board establishes common risk assessment criteria
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Divisions and departments identify the risks that potentially impact the operation

processes
BN BMBEFIEEEERIZEARBEZENER

Divisions and departments assess and rank the identified risks along with the
impact on the business and likelihood of occurrences

E 0 EPMBERPTE B R Rk S BB RIS E N B AR Al RE M TTRY (A
Kok

Divisions and departments assess effectiveness of existing controls and provide
treatment plans where required

BB AP AR AENE RN B R L R HRET R (NFE

Divisions and departments monitor risk and report risk to the Board

The Board mitigate or eliminate the risks depends on the impact of the risk
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In the course of risk management, the Board and the Management adopt
a mix of risk strategies to handle various types of risk exposure. The risk
strategies are listed as follows,

- Risk Acceptance: Risk acceptance does not reduce any effects
however it is still considered a strategy. This strategy is a common
option when the cost of other risk management options such as
avoidance or limitation may outweigh the cost of the risk itself. A
company that doesn't want to spend a lot of money on avoiding
risks that do not have a high possibility of occurring will use the risk
acceptance strategy.

- Risk Avoidance: Risk avoidance is the opposite of risk acceptance.
It is the action that avoids any exposure to the risk whatsoever. Risk
avoidance is usually the most expensive of all risk mitigation options.

- Risk Limitation: Risk limitation is the most common risk management
strategy used by businesses. This strategy limits a company's
exposure by taking some action. It is a strategy employing a bit of risk
acceptance along with a bit of risk avoidance or an average of both.

- Risk Transference: Risk transference is the involvement of handing
risk off to a willing third party. For example, various companies
outsource certain operations such as customer service, payroll services,
etc. This can be beneficial for a company if a transferred risk is not a
core competency of that company. It can also be used so a company
can focus more on their core competencies.
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THE GROUP’S TOP 4 RISK EXPOSURES

Type of Risks
B B 3 31
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BERER EmZEzEAR
Competitive Risk ~ Food Safety Risk

REE s AR
Economy Risk | Supply Risk

Risk Description

2, B i 3

< 52 [5 TED  A9 I K L B

Risk Strategy(ies)
2| B 5K &

Competitive Risk

B E R

In food industry, there are always potential threats in food
safety and quality. The food industry has seen cases of food
contamination, due to reasons ranging from the raw material
of food source, processing and storage in supplier plant and
environmental impact. To ensure our food safety and quality, the
Group will continue to conduct food safety audit and look for area
of enhancement in more stringent food safety audit in all areas
of operation. For example, the Group will arrange anonymous
customers to evaluate regularly the quality of the Group's product
and service offering.
BREMZENEESERRITEPREZN R -RY
REE - HEENTAENRFBRR REEZFREHA
SIBRmTR - AEERFUTHEZ TEERMTEER
AEHLERERENTE URREAEEREZE -Hl-
REE B THERT P TR AEERRE A E M &R
BHEE-

- Risk Limitation

- ERRH
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Type of Risks
[ B 2 B

Risk Description

2 B i 3

Risk Strategy(ies)
B B 5K A&

Food Safety Risk

Economy Risk

& R

Supply Risk

HIER R

The food and beverage industry is highly competitive, which is
why it is important to be efficient, stay up-to-date with nutritional
trends and consumer tastes. Understanding the challenges and
opportunities in both the industry and the market are important
for any food retailer and manufacturer.

R MBI RBEF AN ARERE HEEMEES
ARREEEEORBAEE - TRITERTIHAE KL
BEHTMAERTERRRERHETES-

The Group's revenue is significantly dependent on Hong

Kong's economy. A sustained economic downturn could curtail
consumer spending and therefore the Group's revenue. As the risk
is systematic in nature, there is no measure for the Company to
completely eliminate the risk.

REBEN W R EERBEBLE - FENLB TR
HEBERXIEMR O AEEN KR - ERICERFEH
FRERRMABITETE ARZERB RS KNAF]
R ERERSE bt DA B BR % A B o

Any disruption of a food item or a supplier can impact the choice
of food menu and operation. With our diverse food menu choices
and strong network of suppliers, this risk poses no immediate
threats to the Group, yet the Group keeps a close eye on the
diversity and management of supply chain.
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- Risk Avoidance
- Risk Transference
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- Risk Acceptance
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- Risk Limitation
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2018 Internal Controls and Risk Management Review

The Group has also appointed an external independent internal control
consulting company (“external consultant”) to conduct annual review of
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk management
systems. No material internal control and risk management deficiencies were
identified. The Board, during its annual review on the risk management,
has confirmed the sufficiency of the resources and staff qualifications and
experiences of the Group's risk management function.

To conclude, the Board believes that the existing internal control and risk
management systems of the Group is adequate and effective.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Group's financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect on the
Company.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out as follows:
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Fee paid/payable

B ENEA

HKS$'000

FHET

Audit services BT RS 1,500
Non-audit services (other services related to IEFEATARTES (IR BB K

investment circular) BEAMNEMR) 950

Total FE 2,450
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
for each financial year which gives a true and fair view. In preparing the
financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and standard are
selected and applied consistently.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are
followed and for facilitating communications among Directors as well as with
shareholders and management.

Mr. Yu Kin Man Duncan declared that he had participated in relevant trainings
in 2018, which met the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key
to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business developments
and financial performance through its annual and interim reports. The
corporate website of the Company (www.u-banquetgroup.com) has
provided an effective communication platform to the public and the
shareholders.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed director receives formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the
Directors. Directors participated in courses relating to roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director or further enhancement of their
professional development by the way of attending training courses or
reading relevant materials. All Directors had provided the Company their
training records for the year under review and the Company will continue
to arrange the training in accordance with paragraph A6.5 of the code
provisions. The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in discharge
of their duties while holding office as the Directors and officers of the
Company. The Directors and officers shall not be indemnified where there is
any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our shareholders
with detailed information about the Company so that they can exercise their
rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, various notices,
announcements and circulars. The annual general meeting and other general
meetings of the Company are primary forums for communication between
the Company and its shareholders. The Company provides shareholders with
relevant information on the resolution(s) proposed at general meetings in a
timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
is reasonably necessary to enable shareholders to make an informed decision
on the proposed resolution(s). All the resolutions proposed to be approved
at the general meetings will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after the
meetings.

At the annual general meeting held on 25 June 2018, the Executive Directors
and Chairman of the Board, the chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committees and representatives from the auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, were present to attend to answer
questions from shareholders. There were two general meetings held during
the year.
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Under Code Provision A6.7, Independent Non-executive Directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. At the said meeting, all the Independent Non-executive
Directors were presented to enable the Board to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

During the year, the Company has not made any change to its constitutional
documents. A consolidated version of the Company's constitutional
documents is available on the Company’s website and the website of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2012
Revision). However, shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the
Articles of Association of the Company which provides that extraordinary
general meetings should be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If the Board fails to proceed to convene an extraordinary
general meeting within 21 days of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) may convene an extraordinary general meeting himself/
themselves, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

SRR BuEEEREARAT

RIET AR EACTIR BIUFAITEER
HERRASTHBROERBERENT
fRe M EMARE b 2BEIIFNTESY
EHE CEESFHARARRNERAR
IEH) T R

ERXHZERED
P9 AR A B A A AR X A T
B A E BRI 2 HRA A TRARF
45k R B R AR -

BRREMKRREFIARENEF

FERERRE(CT——FEIK) W E
AFBRERBERASIREFRBEROIE
ST R ZBB R AR RIS E R MR Fea
- IR R ERIAE A A — R L%
RERGH HEZERERREEREAZA
BAETLORARRA R AT RIRRASE
EEHRAT Sz — - BEERAENER
FRARESSRAGWERE - UREHEE
KA T HEBRFERESSEFAK
RHEARE EHEHARRRBEBERE
MEARNRIT - MEFERIRRBBEEKE
Z+—HATRBABRERFIAS 25

ETARARRENARS BERESEE X
EEEARRFIASMEZBAEENEE
X ERAQRIREZBARE-



Corporate Governance Report 7 ¥

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A PERSON
FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
director of the Company are laid down in Article 113 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to the office
of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention
to propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head
Office or at the Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar. The period for lodgment
of the notices required under this Article will commence no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting and the minimum length of the period during which such notices
to the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the attention
of company secretary, by email: info@u-banquetgroup.com, or mail to Suite
1307, Cityplaza Four, 12 Taikoo Wan Road, Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules, and
publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Company
is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and
complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as the public to
make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure
an effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ interests. The
senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing and
increasing the Group's corporate governance level and quality.
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Independent Auditor's Report
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To the shareholders of U Banquet Group Holding Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of U Banquet Group Holding Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 256,
which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("‘HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Purchase price allocation under business combination
Assessment of going concern assumption

Impairment assessments of intangible assets and goodwill
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Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET AR EFARET SR

Purchase price allocation under business combination
EBREMETHEEERSE

Refer to note 2.4 and note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AL M mMARM 24 R M 33

During the year, the Group acquired 51% of the issued
share capital of BYL Property Holdings Group Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively, as “BYL Group”) at an
aggregate consideration of RMB132.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$154.1 million). According to the sale and
purchase agreement and certain supplemental agreements
("Agreements”), if BYL Group cannot meet a pre-determined
profit target of RMB94,500,000 for the three financial years
ending 31 December 2020 (“Profit Guarantee”), the seller will
refund certain consideration to the Group according to a pre-
determined formula (“Contingent Consideration”).

In performing the purchase price allocation, management
engaged an independent qualified valuer to determine
the fair values of the net identifiable assets acquired at
the acquisition date and the fair value of the Contingent
Consideration (the “Valuation”).
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In assessing the appropriateness of the purchase price
allocation made by management, we have performed the
following procedures:
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Obtained the valuation report prepared by the
independent qualified valuer on the fair values of the
identifiable net assets and contingent consideration
receivables. We assessed the competency, objectivity
and capability of the valuer;

Obtained management’s assessment and assessed
the appropriateness of the accounting treatment, the
identification of and valuation of identifiable net assets
and the allocation of purchase price to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed;

Assessed, together with our in-house valuation
specialist, the appropriateness and valuation of the
identifiable net assets acquired. In particular, for the
measurement of the fair values of intangible assets,
we challenged management for the key estimates
adopted such as sales growth rate, gross margin
percentage and terminal growth rate, taking into
consideration BYL Group's historical performance,
underlying secured service contracts and local
market factors. For the discount rate, we assessed its
reasonableness by benchmarking at with rates used by
comparable companies in the market;
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Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET AR EFARET SR

Purchase price allocation under business combination (Continued)

EBEOHETBEERIE (&)

As a result of this acquisition, the Group recognised goodwill
of HK$89.0 million, intangible assets consisting of customer
backlogs and customer relationships of HK$80.7 million,
property, plant and equipment of HK$27.9 million and other
net identifiable assets and liabilities of HK$5.6 million. The
Group also recognised a contingent consideration receivable
at a fair value of HK$6.9 million arisen from the Profit
Guarantee.

The Valuation involved a number of significant management
judgments and assumptions, including the sales growth
rate, gross margin percentage, terminal growth rate and
discount rate applied in the underlying discounted cash
flow projection as well as the probability of BYL Group's
achievement of the Profit Guarantee.

We focus on this because such purchase price allocation,
being the key element of the acquisition accounting, is
significant to the Group's financial position and involved
significant management judgments and assumptions.
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Evaluated management’s estimation of the probability
of fulfilling the Profit Guarantee and valuation of the
Contingent Consideration with reference to the local
market trend, board approved forecast, BYL Group's
historical performance, underlying secured service
contracts and performance of BYL Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018; and

Evaluated the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management around the key assumptions of the
discounted cash flow projections to ascertain whether
the extent and likelihood of such changes have been
appropriately considered and disclosed.

Based on our procedures performed, we found the purchase
price allocation was supported by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET AR EFARET SR

Assessment of going concern assumption
A EFECERR

Refer to note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recorded a net loss of HK$25.2 million. At the same date,
the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
HK$189.7 million.

These factors casted doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, management prepared
a cash flow projection (having considered both base case
and downside scenarios) for a period of not less than twelve
months from 31 December 2018 ("Forecast Period”). Based on
the projection, together with the availability of credit facilities
from a bank, a shareholder of the Group and a director of
certain subsidiaries, the Group's directors have considered it
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis.

F2HERE M BHRERME216)
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BEEFHES2EEST-AA BSE£EENRBARE
HE RS EEIB/TAEB T

ZERXS|EH BEEERTARNBERLE LR
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MIRTT BEEEREMETHBRAREENEER
B BEEEERARBEREEEREGS MR
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SRR BuEEEREARAT

In assessing the appropriateness of the going concern
assumption and disclosure by management, we have
performed the following procedures:

Obtained the cash flow projection and discussed with
management to understand the Group'’s current and
future operation, the scheduled settlement of the
outstanding acquisition consideration, the planned
capital expenditure in relation to the restaurant
business and the Group's future source of financing in
the Forecast Period;

Compared the key assumptions used, including
revenue growth rate, estimated gross profit and
estimated operating expenses with historical trend
and data of the Group and external economic data
to assess the reasonableness of the key assumptions
adopted by management in the Forecast Period;

RAFEEREEFEHNRFELERREBEENS B MR-
BMEEIT T IRER:
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Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET AR EFARET SR

Assessment of going concern assumption (Continued)

LRSS RR (F)

In carrying out the going concern assessment, management
took into account the Group's ability to generate adequate
cash inflows from operation, the availability of credit
facilities from a bank, a shareholder and a director of certain
subsidiaries to meet its future liquidity requirements. As
the cash flow projection involved significant judgements
and estimates made by management as disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements, we determined this area to
be a key audit matter.

RETREQENER EEEEEE ESEREE-
ARAH—RRT —2ERREETHEBRARZ —2EF
ZEEREEERERERAFMETERARRDESS
KEEE N - HRRERERR Y R EEBIEHHEARH
ETAEET (NREMBHRRTERE)  MRMRRE—R
HmEsREER-

Agreed the Group's projected settlement of the
consideration of acquisition and capital expenditure
included in the cash flow projection to the relevant
agreements and quotations where applicable;

Agreed the Group's projected draw-down for loans
from a shareholder and loans from a director of certain
subsidiaries included in the cash flow projection to
actual cash received by the Group subsequent to the
year-end date, respectively;

Obtained confirmations from a shareholder and
a director of certain subsidiaries that they will not
demand for repayment of the outstanding balances
for twelve months from the date of this report.

AE ESEERSAERATESHRERE
REARZ A EE RARE 5L RE (0E
) —2:
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Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET AR EFARET SR

Assessment of going concern assumption (Continued)

LRSS RR (F)

SRR BuEEEREARAT

Assessed the compliance of the covenants as included
in the banking facilities and obtained confirmation
from the bank to confirm its intention of renewal of
banking facilities under normal banking criteria with
the Group;

Evaluated the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management around the key assumptions of the cash
flow projection to ascertain whether the extent and
likelihood of such changes in assumption have been
appropriately considered; and

Considered whether the management disclosures
relating to going concern in the consolidated financial
statements are appropriate.

We found the key assumptions used in the management’s
cash flow projection were supported by available evidence
and the result of assessment was consistent with the
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.

HERERNERITRET RSN LESFR
THR UWHEARELERRTERGRETEE &
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Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET AR EFARET SR

Impairment assessments of intangible assets and goodwill

BREERBEZRENGE

Refer to note 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As a result of the acquisition of New Fortune Group and
BYL Group in recent years, the Group recognised goodwill
amounting to HK$111.2 million and certain intangible assets
amounting to HK$78.1 million as at 31 December 2018.

The Group tests annually or whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate an indicator of impairment of goodwill
arisen from business combinations. For intangible assets, the
Group assessed impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicated that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable.

Management grouped the assets of the Group at the lowest
levels for which there were separately identifiable cash inflows
that were largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash generating units) and
performed impairment assessments in respect of the cash
generating units identified using the value-in-use method.

F2HRAMBRERM 18R EI9
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ey A
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In testing the reasonableness of management’s impairment
assessment on intangible assets and goodwill, we have
performed the following procedures:

Obtained from management the discounted cash flow
projections for each individual cash generating unit,
discussed with senior management to understand
their assumptions applied in the financial budget and
forecasting of operating results as included in the
discounted cash flow projections;

Assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used by management;

Challenged the key assumptions used, including
but not limited to, the annual revenue growth
rate, estimated gross profit margin and long
term growth rate with reference to the historical
performance, secured service contracts and external
macroeconomic and industry specific factors to assess
the reasonableness of these assumptions adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow projections;

RAGEEEHBRLEENBEMETRENENA
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Key Audit Matter
HRETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET AR EFARET SR

Impairment assessments of intangible assets and goodwill (Continued)

BREERBEZRENG (&)

We focus on this because the goodwill and intangible assets
recognised as a result of such acquisitions are significant to
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018.
Furthermore, such impairment assessments prepared by
management involved significant judgement with respect to
the assumptions about the future results of the businesses.

Key assumptions include sales growth rate, gross profit
margin percentage, terminal growth rate and discount rates
applied in the discounted cash flow projection. Based on
management assessments, no impairment is considered
necessary for the intangible assets and goodwill balances for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

BPZAABTIEE Y HRNES ARBEREE R E
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AIEHIRIE

SRR BuEEEREARAT

Together with our in-house valuation specialist,
analysed the reasonableness of the discount rate
adopted by management with reference to external
data of comparable companies in the market;

Evaluated the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management around the key assumptions of the
discounted cash flow projections such as sales growth
rate, gross profit margin percentage, terminal growth
rate and discount rates to ascertain whether the
extent and likelihood of such changes have been
appropriately considered and disclosed; and

Considered whether disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements are adequate and appropriate.

Based on our procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions used by management in the impairment
assessment of intangible assets and goodwill were
supported by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's  HEARB I ZHMRENENBEEEBRAL
report is Fong Wan Huen. Dok =

PricewaterhouseCoopers EERKBEMEHAR

Certified Public Accountants ?)‘Z?ﬁk Z5TAD

Hong Kong, 27 March 2019 BE ZE-NE=ZA=Z++H
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Consolidated Statement of Com prehensjve Income
vT n £ lﬁ l/ﬁ? ﬁi Z:%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZF—/\F+=-A=+—HIFZ

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZE—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
hr=g FHExT FHET
Revenue e 6 410,858 368,832
Other income HAtn g A 7 1,872 1,254
Cost of revenue W ES AR 8 (107,257) (98,854)
Employee benefits expenses EERAMXL 10 (135,138) (122,977)
Depreciation e (15,524) (23,900)
Amortisation iy (3,190) -
Operating lease payments KT E R (77,005) (79,389)
Utilities expenses NHEEEHAS (33,922) (32,415)
Other expenses Hibf X 9 (65,086) (60,629)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HEREATFEGTABZEZ
fair value through profit or loss SREE WE 302 2,206
Fair value gain of financial assets at BEAFEFAERZ
fair value through profit or loss SHMEEZ AFEKS - 108
Fair value gain of investment properties &Y% 2 A FEWZ 17 4,565 1,094
Impairment of property, Y% BB MEERE
plant and equipment 16 (2,831) (9,369)
Other gain H b Uz 7 206 295
Operating loss REEE (22,150) (53,744)
Finance income B 12 864 615
Finance costs B 7 P AR 12 (1,993) (2,178)
Finance costs — net W ISR AR — 558 12 (1,129) (1,563)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income % & 2 Ifi [ 7 7%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z_=—F—NF+_-H=1+—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
hr=g FET FET
Loss before income tax BRETEBHAIEE (23,279) (55,307)
Income tax expense Frisfif X 13 (1,966) (879)
Loss for the year FEEE (25,245) (56,186)
Loss attributable to: LUTALTEEEE:
Equity holders of the Company KARIEZFEEA (27,260) (56,186)
Non-controlling interests EI g 2,015 -
(25,245) (56,186)
Loss per share for loss attributable ~ ARG EARARERZIFEA
to the ordinary equity holders EBiEEEz2SRER:
of the Company:
Basic loss per share FRENEE 14 (5 centsiEAl) | (11 cents’E L)
Diluted loss per share FREHEEE 14 N/ATIE A N/AZT 3 A
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hfth 2 (FE) WA :
Items that may be reclassified to AR B D E B 2 H A
profit or loss
Currency translation differences BEBmEEE (3,179) 3,259
Total other comprehensive FEEME2E (BB,
(loss)/income for the year L NCE (3,179) 3,259
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE 2 HEBHAEE (28,424) (52,927)

SRR BuEEEREARAT



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income % & 2 il | 7 7%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z2_=F—NF+-H="4+—HIFFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—BLEE

2018 2017
—E-NF | ZZET—+tF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
hr=g FHExT FET

Total comprehensive UTATEAEET (EEB),/

(loss)/income attributable to: LON-t:E

Equity holders of the Company RATERFFBA (30,859) (52,927)
Non-controlling interests AR A A 2,435 -
(28,424) (52,927)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HRRERME

As at 31 December 2018 R-FE—/F+=-HA=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E2-N\F ZE—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
ASSETS BgE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y WS R 16 62,667 43,260
Investment properties B 17 108,423 108,865
Goodwill EES 18 111,247 21,720
Intangible assets BEAE 19 78,081 -
Non-current deposits EMmBIES 22 15,751 12,351
Prepayment for acquisition of BEWME WELEEHED
property, plant and equipment FETFIE 22 921 -
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEBZZ
through profit or loss TREE 23 6,878 -
Contract assets BHEE 6 13,204 -
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTISTEE 31 6,473 5,345
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 403,645 191,541
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BHEE 6 1,742 -
Trade receivables B 5 WA 21 12,024 1,955
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss TREE 23 = 3,447
Deposits, prepayments and other e FERNRER
receivables Ho A e W IR 22 36,453 25,873
Current income tax recoverable A Y B] BN ER P15 AX - 571
Cash and cash equivalents RekIREEFEY 25 117,635 196,335
167,854 228,181
Non-current assets held for sale BIEHENIERBEE 24 = 32,182
Total current assets REEERE 167,854 260,363
Total assets HWEE 571,499 451,004
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Consolidated Balance Sheet % & & E G &

As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—NF+_-_A=+—H
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to owners of AAREEAEGESR
the Company
Share capital A% A 26 5,580 5,580
Share premium f& 17 @ B 26 255,070 236,120
Reserves e 27 (155,664) (110,739)
104,986 130,961
Non-controlling interests FERER 58,082 -
163,068 130,961
LIABILITIES 8E&
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Accruals, provisions and other payables — FEFHE A~ B & &
Ho E A FRIE 29 2,997 4,500
Contract liabilities EHEE 6 2,260 -
Deposits received ¢ 29 = 4653
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFTSHAasE 31 44,048 24,769
Provision for reinstatement costs {E1E R AR B 32 1,565 3,278
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERRE 50,870 37,200
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables B 5B FIA 28 20,250 17,550
Accruals, provisions and other payables — FERTE 3 - B &
HME A FRIE 29 51,503 24,228
Deposits received Bl E 29 2,103 40,577
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E1E P AN 32 1,552 173
Contract liabilities EHAE 6 36,272
Consideration payables ERE 113,102 -
Amount due to a related company e — RS Hﬁ?’& A 38 3,453 3,621
Amount due to a director IS —BEFE R 38 1,100 1,100
Loans from a shareholder EI-EN 38 95,043 150,690
Loans from a director of ETHBRARIN—RES
certain subsidiaries FE R 30 19,000 45,000
Current income tax liabilities BUHAFTIS B & (& 14,183 804
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 4 & & & & (& #
As at 31 December 2018 R—-ZE—/\F+_-_H=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H”
2018 2017
—E-N\F | ZZET—+F
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Total current liabilities MEBERETE 357,561 283,743
Total liabilities SR 408,431 320,943
Total equity and liabilities HEZREE 571,499 451,904

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 256 were approved by
the Board of directors on 27 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf

Sang Kanggiao
RE®
Director

EF
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Xu Wenze
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Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
AR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZF—/\F+=-A=+—HIFZ

4=4

mgm

B %

Share-based
Share Share Capital Exchange payment  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
MR A
B
A& REE EARE ERfE AREE RitEE @
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T T FiER Tz Tz T T
For the year ended BE-Z-tF
31 December 2017 TZAZ+-HLEE
Balance as at 1 January 2017 RZE—+F
—A-BNER 4650 90326 4986 (53) 18950 (86173) 32686
Comprehensive income: 2EBA:
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - - (56,186) (56,186)
Other comprehensive income: ~ E 2K
Currency translation difference EHBREES - - - 3259 - - 3259
Total other comprehensiveloss ~ Eti 2 EEEAE - - - 3259 - - 3259
Total comprehensive loss rEFBRER - - - 3259 - (56,186) (52927)
Transactions with owners HEBANEREEAN
in their capacity as owners: SHETHRS:
Issuance of ordinary shares BERERTLER
by placing (Note 26) (Pi3¥26) 930 145,794 - - - - 146,724
Share-based payment (Note 35) SARR (R ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁq NES
(HizE35) - - - - 4478 - 4478
Balance as at RZB-t&
31 December 2017 +ZA=+-RiEe 5580 236,120 4986 3,206 23428 (142359) 130,961
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity % & 1 7 % B #%
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z2—=F—/\F+-A=+—HIFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAREAEE
Share-based Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange payment Accumulated  Statutory controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses reserve Total interests Total
HRBA
HBM
Bx  ROEE ErBE EXRE  ARERE  RHEE iERG @i FERER @3
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEr TE#R TER TER TE#R TEL TEL TEL Thr TEr
For the year ended BE-E-N\F

31 December 2018 TZBZt+-BLEE
Balence asat 1 January 2018 WoB-NE-A-BEEH 50 360 498 3006 BaB (1423%9) - 1% N E ]
Comprehensive income: 2EWA:

Loss forthe year FEER - - - - - (27,260) - (27,260 2015 (25,245)
Other comprehensive income: Ht2EUWA:

Currency translation difference ERBEESR - - - (359) - - - (3599 420 3179
Total other comprehensive loss H2EFRLE - - - (3599) - - - (3599) 40 3179
Total comprehensive loss *ABEAE - - - (3599) - (27,260) - (30859) 2435 (28424)
Transaction with owners in BEFANEREAD

their capacity as owners: FREANRS:

Share-based payment (Note 39) DR BEREOFT

(Hitss) - - - - 4565 - - 4565 - 4565
Lapse of share options (Note 39) BIRERM (H335) - - - - (47) u7 - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) REMEAR (M) - - - - - - - - 55,966 55,966
Transfer from share-hased payment EURDBEBNMTERE

reserve to share premium (Note 27)  EERERIARE (H5E27) - 18950 - - (18950) - - - - -
Transfer o statutory reserve BRZLTHE - - - - - (331) 650 319 (319 -
Balance as at R=2-NE

31 December 2018 TZAZt-BHER 5580 255070 4,98 (3%) 879 (169,703) 650 104986 58082 163,068
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in LA 4R 4A 4 55 % &) 3% i B30E B BT 5% — OF 63

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Cash Flows Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z2_=F—NF+=-H=4+—HIFFZE

A bR E A&

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—BLEE

2018 2017
=E-N\F | ZZ=—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
hr=s FHExT FHT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHFERENE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations LEHE, (FTA)IRE  340) 18,847 (9,662)
Hong Kong profits tax received, net BUWEEFEH F5E 327 246
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from KEESEEBRSRAS
operating activities () F58 19,174 (9,416)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHBRERE
Interest received B2 UF & 12 50 121
Purchases of property, BEWE BWELEX
plant and equipment (10,768) (27,800)
Deposit refund for acquisition of WhE—IBREMEN
an investment property BEIRN - 5,590
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEREEZ
plant and equipment FriS A 380 295
Payment for acquisition of subsidiaries, AN EYNCIPANE &
net of cash acquired (Note 33) MEeEklERe
(Bff5E33) (39,034) (83,072)
Payment for purchase of trading securities BERFHEF MK (30,552) (21,783)
Proceeds from trading securities R P BHZF1F5RIE 34,301 20,650
Proceeds from sale of asset held for sale PERELEEEZ
FTiS3RIA 32,182 -
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEESELR SR FE (13,441) (105,999)
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Consolidated Cash Flows Statement 4 & 5 € i & #

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —

—E-NFF A= HUFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—BLEE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
hr=s FHExT FHET
Cash flows from financing activities RETHRERENE
Interest paid B E (1,937) (2,059)
Proceeds from loans from a director ETHBRAAN—%
of certain subsidiaries EEMERZBERIE (26,000) 45,000
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER - (46,124)
Repayments of finance leases BEREMEE - (395)
Proceeds from loans from a shareholder R E /TAZF)’T?%?K 250,070 150,690
Repayment of loans from a shareholder EBERRER (305,717) (280,387)
Issuance of ordinary shares by placing PARR & 5 & 1T &M 26 - 146,724
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from MEEHELERS
financing activities (md) /RN FEE (83,584) 13,449
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents — IH& KBS EEYR D IFE (77,851) (101,966)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof ~ F#IRE LIRS EEY
the year 196,335 298,604
Currency translation differences BEmE =R (849) (303)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FHRIRES RINEEHEY 25 117,635 196,335
The above consolidate cash flow statement should be read in conjunction A _E4R& 3 & & 7% f& B2 BEMT B 55 — 0154
with the accompanying notes. 3B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

U Banquet Group Holding Limited (the “Company"”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 20 June 2013 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is Floor
4, Willow House, Cricket Square PO. Box 2804, Grand Cayman KY1-1112,
Cayman Islands. The Company's principal place of business is located
at Suite 1307, Cityplaza Four, 12 Taikoo Wan Road, Taikoo Shing, Hong
Kong.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the operation
and franchising of a chain of Chinese restaurants, property leasing,
securities trading business and environmental maintenance service
business.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HKS") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HKS'000) unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of directors on
27 March 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The consolidated financial statements are for the Group
consisting of U Banquet Group Holding Limited and its subsidiaries.

&6 W A I

—REH
BIEEERERAR ([RARE DR
—E-ZFANA-THEREMASHE
RNAVE(ZZE—TFERIAR) EH =/
SAMKIRERRERAR AR
TIHY ET M9t == B2 b 3k AFloor 4, Willow
House, Cricket Square PO. Box 2804, Grand
Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman Islands ° AN
RIEEEEMBURBEBAEWAE
BB 2SR K R L4 131807 %

ARFRHBENREEBRAZHMBER
REERLE -

ARBRREERRE EREKE
nE (FEE [AEE ) T2eEHAE
BEHEBREFEE WEHE &
FEBEFBMRBEEEREER -

BREEREIN WERE BRI
BT ([ATT]) 2YmATE S EH LR
BERELTME(TETL)  WELE
MRBREREN—_E—HLE=A=-1++
AEEEg AR

FTEEHBEREE
RENEGRAVBRRARAOIE
FETBEREINMT B = BEHAN
ZEBRNAE 2 FE-HEERK
AR MBBRRIIRASE (HEE
SEERARARLEMEAFENK)
ECE:N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair values.
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with current year presentation.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group'’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group recorded a net loss of HKS$25,245,000 (2017:
HK$56,186,000). As at the same date, the Group's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets (including
non-current assets held for sale) by approximately
HKS$189,707,000 (2017: HK$23,380,000). The significant
increase in net current liabilities of the Group is mainly
resulted from the recognition of consideration payables
of HK$113,102,000 for the acquisition of BYL Property
Holdings Group Limited during the year (the “Acquisition”)
(Note 33). Also, among the current liabilities of the Group,
HK$36,272,000 (2017: HK$40,577,000) represents contract
liabilities arising from deposits received from customers
which will be recognised as revenue upon rendering of
the relevant banquet services in the next financial year.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had consideration
payables of HK$52,568,000 for the Acquisition which
will be settled upon vendor's request and contingent
consideration payable of approximately HK$60,534,000
which management expects that the payment conditions
will be fulfilled and become payable in 2019.

2
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(a) FFEREHEE
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=t+t—HLFE K&EH
B 15 85 18 /5 §825,245,000
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BRAR([WHEEE])
(B 5E33) 1 #E 3R A5 1R
{8113,102,0005% 7T B 8% ©
AR - AEBEORBEE
AR 36,272,000 7T (=&
— 4 1 40,577,0007% 7T )
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MEHNAE (LBRTE
BT E IR AR B =R
HBER B

RZE—-—NF+ZA
+—H - KNEEEH
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TREE MEMIAR
{8 49 560,534,0008 7T * &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration of the liquidity
requirement for its current and future operation, the
requirement to settle the consideration payables for the
Acquisition, upcoming capital expenditures, the operating
performance of the Group and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group has sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern. The
directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by management covering a period of not less
than twelve months from 31 December 2018. Several key
measures have been put in place by the directors of the
Company to alleviate the liquidity pressure. These include:

(M) The Company and Mr. Sang Kanggjiao, a controlling
shareholder and chairman of the Board, entered
into a loan facility agreement for a term of 2 years
from 1 November 2016 of which Mr. Sang Kanggiao
has agreed to make available to the Company from
time to time an unsecured loan facility amounting
to HK$300,000,000 with an interest rate of 4.5%
per annum. The loan facility was renewed during
the year for another term of two years ending on
October 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

U]

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, HK$95,043,000 was drawn
from the above facility as loan due to a shareholder
to provide bridging liquidity to the Group for
the Acquisition. In addition, in anticipation
for the payment conditions of the contingent
consideration will be fulfilled, on 20 March 2019,
the Group had further drawn down HK$50,000,000
from Mr. Sang Kanggiao under this loan facility.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Mr. Sang
Kanggiao has confirmed to the Group that he will
not demand for repayment of the outstanding
balances as at 31 December 2018 and the amount
subsequently drawn down by the Group, totaling to
HK$ 145,043,000 in the coming twelve months from
the date of this report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

(i)

U Banquet Group Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, also entered into a loan facility
agreement with a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group pursuant to which the director of
certain subsidiaries has agreed to make available
to the Company from time to time an unsecured
loan facility amounting to HK$60,000,000 with an
interest rate of 4.5% per annum for a term of 2.5
years from 9 May 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, loans due to a director of
certain subsidiaries amounted to HK$19,000,000.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in January
2019, the Group had further drawn down a loan
of HK$15,000,000 to finance the anticipated
renovation of existing shops and decoration of a
new shop.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

(Continued)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the director
of certain subsidiaries confirmed that such loan
facility will continue to be made available to the
Group for the next twelve months from the date of
this report and he will not demand for repayment
of all the outstanding loan balances as at 31
December 2018 and the loan subsequently drawn
down by to the Group, totaling HK$34,000,000,
under the loan facility in the coming twelve months
from the date of this report.

On 16 July 2018, the shareholders of the Company
passed a resolution in an extraordinary general
meeting (EGM) to approve the subscription
agreement with CASIC Investment Fund
Management (Beijing) Limited Company (the
“Subscriber”) for subscribing 180,000,000 new
shares of the Company (the “Subscription
Shares”) at the subscription price of HK$1.80
per Subscription Share (“Subscription”). The net
proceeds from the subscription are estimated to be
approximately HK$322,600,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

In January 2019, the Group has further agreed with
the Subscriber to further extend the long stop date
to 31 March 2019.

As at the date of this report, the Subscription has
yet been completed. The directors consider, to the
best of their knowledge and belief and making
reasonable enquiries, additional time is required
for the completion of the Subscription as i) the
Subscriber is still in the course of procuring all
necessary consents and regulatory approvals for
the acquisition of the Subscription Shares and ii)
additional time will be needed for conducting
another EGM for approval of the subscription
agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

(iv)  As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total
banking facilities of approximately HK$14,000,000,
of which approximately HK$11,086,000 was utilised
for issuance of letters of guarantee in favour of the
landlords for rental and utility deposits. The Group's
banking facilities are subject to periodic renewal.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that such banking facilities will continue to be
available to the Group for the next twelve months
from the date of this report.

(v)  Implementing measures to improve profitability/
cash flows and cost containment measures to
reduce capital and operational expenditures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Going concern basis (Continued)

Based on the cash flow projections and taking into
account of the anticipated cash flows from operation,
the continuous availability of credit facilities from the
controlling shareholder, the director of certain subsidiaries
and the bank and the uncertainties arisen from future
operating performance, the directors consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due in coming
twelve months from 31 December 2018. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company consider it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New standards, amendment to standards and
interpretation adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new standards,
amendment to standards and interpretation for the first
time for their annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2018:

Annual Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle
Improvements
Project

HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
(Amendments)  Share-based Payment Transactions

HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
(Amendments)  HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The Group had to change its accounting policies
following the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15. The
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”
and HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
are disclosed in Note 2.2. The other amendments
listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

2

TESTHERBE (&)

2.1

mEEXE ()
(b) A= ERA L9 FET

EE - EAHETR
Y
REBDHR T NF—
A—Bs 2 ERENTEE
iﬁiﬁHF‘EJ§7’/ZE’k’%WL‘AT¥ﬁ
IR EAREE] R
2

EERERE —T-WEE-F
—~FiR#
FEY#
EERBHRE  UBRHAERH
LB BESED
ERIFN PERHE
EEOBHRE  AFEMEREE
LB 4% AEHRRRE
EHIEN n—HEREE
BIBREERE
FRERIA
EEOBHRE  SRIE
LB
EEUMBHRE  RABPAHZN
LB 155, #
BREHERN REMEER
FUFBITA
5 (EREH  IMERFRBAR
HERE &
Z8g)
—RBEDR
REBRENE B TS H

:.4%/5\']%9%&%5%515‘%
WEEAFEISSRBAE
HEesr s %%W‘%‘/%EJI
R RERIFESR (SR T
B | kBB EHRELER
FISH[REEFPAENZ
A0 Z -3 N I WE
o LMl A ST &Y
BRI R S RS
KERFE BFERTE
¥ 7N BB ok R 2R HA R i K
BAE-

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2018

103



104

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)  New standards and amendments to existing standards (c)
that have been issued but are not effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(9

New standards and amendments to existing standards
that have been issued but are not effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

The above new standards, amendments to existing
standards and interpretations have been published that
are not mandatory for the annual reporting periods
commencing 1 January 2018 and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group intends to adopt the
above new standards, amendments to existing standards
and interpretation when they become effective. The
Group's assessment of the impact of these new standards
and interpretations is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(9

New standards and amendments to existing standards
that have been issued but are not effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 provides new provisions for the accounting
treatment of leases which does not require lessees to
classify their leases as either finance leases or operating
leases and account for those two types of leases
differently. HKFRS 16 will no longer allow lessees to
account for certain leases outside the balance sheet.
Instead, all long-term leases must be recognised in the
form of assets (for the rights of use) and lease liabilities
(for the payment obligations), both of which may be
carried initially at the discounted present value of the
future operating lease commitments subject to certain
exceptions and arrangements that do not qualify as leases
under HKFRS 16. Short-term leases with a lease term of
twelve months or less and leases of low-value assets are
exempt from such reporting obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(9

New standards and amendments to existing standards
that have been issued but are not effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Nature of change (Continued)

The new standard will therefore result in recognition of
a right-to-use asset and an increase in lease liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet. In profit or loss, rental
expenses will be replaced with depreciation and interest
expense and the classification of cash flows in the
consolidated cash flow statements may also be affected.

Impact

The Group is a lessee of its office and certain land and
buildings for its Chinese restaurant and wedding business
operation. Such lease are currently classified as operating
leases. The Group's current accounting for such leases is
to record the rental expenses in the Group's consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the year they are
incurred with the related operating lease commitments
being separately disclosed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M 7% # 7 Jif 7t

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(9

New standards and amendments to existing standards
that have been issued but are not effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

As at the reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$125,840,000. As
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group will
therefore derecognise of prepaid operating leases,
increase the right-of-use assets and increase in lease
liabilities in the Group's consolidated balance sheet. In
the Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the annual rental and amortisation expenses
of prepaid operating lease under otherwise identical
circumstances will decrease, while depreciation of right-
of-use of assets and interest expense arising from the
financial liabilities will increase. Given that the total non-
cancellable operating lease commitments account for
approximately 31% of the total liabilities of the Group as at
31 December 2018 and the operating lease commitments
within 1 year is approximately HK$62,590,000, the
directors of the Company expect that the adoption
of HKFRS 16 would result in significant impact on the
consolidated financial position of the Group, including
the significant increase in both assets and liabilities in
the consolidated balance sheet and the increase in
net current liabilities position of the Group. Also, the
adoption will front-load the expenses recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
over the lease period, as a result of the combination of
interest expenses arising from the lease liabilities and the
amortisation of right-of-use assets as compared to the
rental expense under existing standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(9

New standards and amendments to existing standards
that have been issued but are not effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The Group's activities as a lessor are not material and
hence the Group does not expect any significant impact
on the financial statements. However, some additional
disclosures may be required from next year.

Date of adoption by the Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2019. The Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date. The Group intends
to apply the simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c)  New standards and amendments to existing standards
that have been issued but are not effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Date of adoption by the Group (Continued)

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and
that would be expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

The Company applied the modified retrospective approach to
adopt HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 without restating comparative
information. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising
from the new accounting policies are therefore not reflected
in the consolidated balance sheet on 31 December 2017, but
are recognised in the opening balance of consolidated balance
sheet on 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The following table shows the adjustments recognised for each
individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included. The adjustments are explained
in more details by standard below.

31 December

2 EFE

2.2

BEREREBE (&)

B BESS (&)
TEBSIBEERIEE #R2
B TEERYENER LT
AR - RSB IR TR R
i — SRR IR

2017 Effect of Effect of 1 January
Consolidated statement of FEMBMRREK As originally adoption of adoption of 2018
financial position (extract) (%) presented HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 Restated
ZB-tF R R

T=R ERHBRE BEUBRE —E-N\F
=t-8 ERIE155 KB SE9% -A-H
5l A2 A2 El
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET THT AT

Non-current liabilities kRBaE
Deposits received 2lke 4653 (4653) - -
Contract liabilities BEE - 4653 - 4653

Current liabilities REBEE

Deposits received BlRe 36,398 (36,398) - -
Contract liabilities aHafE - 36,398 - 36,398

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” - impact of adoption

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to the
recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

0]

Classification and measurements of financial assets and
financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three principal
classification categories: measured at amortised cost, at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“‘FVOCI")
and at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"). The
classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based
on the business model under which the financial assets is
managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has assessed which
business models apply to the financial instruments held
by the Group into the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories and
concluded that there is no change in classification of the
financial instruments held by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group's
impairment model by replacing the HKAS 39 “incurred
loss model” to the “expected credit losses (“ECLs") model”.
Under HKFRS 9, the losses allowances are measured on
either using the 12-month ECLs model: the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; or the lifetime ECLs model: ECLs
that would result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

The Group has three types of financial assets as at 1
January 2018 that are subject to HKFRS 9's new expected
credit loss model:

Other receivables and deposits

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group was required to revise its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes
of financial assets. The Group makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future which are discussed
below:

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group's past settlement pattern, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

The Group has applied the general approach and
recorded 12-month expected credit losses on its other
receivables and deposits and cash and cash equivalents
based on the estimated loss of possible default events
within the next 12 months. The directors of the Group
has considered that the allowance on impairment loss is
immaterial upon the initial adoption of the standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of finandial assets (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach to provide for the expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables.
Based on the assessment performed by management, the
directors of the Group has considered that the allowance
on impairment loss is immaterial upon the initial adoption
of the standard.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
- Impact of adoption

HKFRS 15 replaces the provisions of HKAS 18, which
resulted in changes in accounting policies that relate to
revenue recognition, contract costs and presentation of
contract assets and liabilities.

Reclassification of contract liabilities

In daily operation of Chinese restaurant business, the
Group will receive deposits from customers for banquet
which will subsequently be recognised as revenue upon
rendering of the relevant banquet services. Upon the
initial adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group reclassified the
deposits received from customers of approximately
HK$4,653,000 to non-current contract liabilities and
HK$36,398,000 to current contract liabilities respectively
on 1 January 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between the Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated balance
sheet respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or
received is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Group.

When the Group ceases to consolidate because of a loss
of control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M 7% # 7 Jif 7t

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

equity interests issued by the Group

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity's net identifiable
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Business combination (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
consideration transferred,

amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their
present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate
used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

24

2.5

Business combination (Continued)

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets including
goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Segment reporting

2.7

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (the “CODM"). The CODM is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments.

Foreign currency transaction

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘other expenses’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M 7% # 7 Jif 7t

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Foreign currency transaction (Continued)

(9

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange difference arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowing and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7

2.8

Foreign currency transaction (Continued)
()  Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly offices. Property, plant
and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of 5 years and the
unexpired lease term

Air-conditioning Shorter of 5 years and the
unexpired lease term

Equipment 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Motor vehicles 3 years to 8 years

Leasehold land classified as  Shorter of remaining period of the
finance lease lease or useful life

Building Shorter of remaining period of the

lease or useful life
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
‘other gains' in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields for capital
appreciation or both, and are not occupied by the Group.

Land held under operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of the definition of an
investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted for
as if it were a finance lease.

Investment properties are measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
After initial recognition at cost, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
the information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets
or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values
are recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.9

Investment properties (Continued)

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis,
any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the
property. Some of those outflows are recognised as a liability,
including finance lease liabilities in respect of land, if any,
classified as investment property; others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they
have been disposed of or when the investment properties are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents
the excess of the consideration transferred over Group's interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (Continued)

2.1

Customer backlogs and customer relationships

Customer backlogs and customer relationships acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life of 3 years and
10 years separately and are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life for example, goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment.

Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment
at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such
as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which
are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent
write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs
to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss
not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-
current asset is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented
separately from the other assets in the consolidated balance
sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M 7% # 7 Jif 7t

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(a)

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets as financial assets at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (OCl) or through profit or loss),
and at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(9

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(9

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair values. Changes in the fair value of financial assets
at FVPL are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables.

Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but has
elected not to restate comparative information. As a result,
the comparative information provided continues to be
accounted for in accordance with the Group's previous
accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following categories:

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

loans and receivables
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(e)  Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)

The classification determined on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired. Management determined
the classification of its investments at initial recognition.
See note 20 for details about each type of financial asset.

(i) Subsequent measurement
The measurement at initial recognition did not
change an adoption of HKFRS 9, see description
above.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, loans and
receivables were subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Financial
assets at FVPL were subsequently carried at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(e)  Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment

The Group assessed at the end of each reporting
period whether there was objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets was
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets was impaired and impairment losses were
incurred only if there was objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event) and that loss event (or events) had an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that could
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(e)  Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment (Continued)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
was measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that had not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset was reduced and
the amount of the loss was recognised in profit
or loss. If a loan had a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
was the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group could measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreased and the decrease
could be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss was recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

2.15

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. See
Note 2.13 for a description of the Group's impairment policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16

2.17

2.18

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flows statement, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they
are incurred since no borrowing costs are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M 7% # 7 Jif 7t

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
income tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(9

Deferred income tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2

TESTHERBE (&)

221 EMRELEFSEHR (&)

(b)

(9

EEFEH (&)
shEtEEA R FEEAE
BZREMEZEENIA
BREMETEHBEEEM
5 REWMERZERED
BRE #5E B i E 2 AU
O BRIFR AR A o
RIEEME AT E RIRE
B 1S /SRR B M IEE B i
EHRREMEMES
RABDEEME 2 R
BARENBERLT B
RER IR TR -

t

RIEFTS R E EE R AT E
B AR IR BRI DA 8
ABAEREENELT
TR o

i AN 2% ) BE 122 I ¢ () T By
ERREE R ZFERR
B E c
B Al T & ptig g B
BREEARECENE
R ERERRLERARE
MEE-

i

s 5 A] 407 58 Il R T THE R
8 IR & A I E HI
BREEE BRELEMRF
MEENRABERR B
14 B8 3E — {2 R AR A
BERBENREHRER
MAEME R FREELE
RBERERE RIEREMR
EEHABEEEMEKRNE-

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2018

141



142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligation

The Group operates certain defined contribution plans.
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund on
a reduction in the future payments is available.

Hong Kong

The Groups operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) which is
registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held in separate trustee-administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme are
charged to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the year as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligation (Continued)

Mainland China

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
schemes for its relevant employees in Mainland China.
The state-sponsored retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable
to the retired employees. The Group's contributions to
the state-sponsored retirement schemes are expensed
as incurred and are fully and immediately vested in the
employees.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(9

(d)

(e)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to a termination when the Group has a detailed formal
plan to terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than twelve months after the balance sheet
date are discounted to their present value.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that
has created a constructive obligation.

Long service payments

The Group's net obligation in respect of long service
payments to its employees in Hong Kong upon cessation
of their employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of
future benefits that the employees have earned in return
for their services in the current and prior periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(e) Long service payments (Continued)

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method, discounted to its present value and reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement
schemes that are attributed to contributions made by
the Group. The discount rate is the yield at the balance
sheet date of Hong Kong Government'’s Exchange Fund
Notes which have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the related liability. The expected costs of these
benefits are accrued over the period of employment
using the same accounting methodology as used
for defined benefit plans. Actuarial gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in full in other
comprehensive income in the year in which they occur in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2.23 Share-based payment

Equity-settled share-based payment transaction

The fair value of services rendered in exchange for the share-
based payment is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
share-based payment:

including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity's share price); and

excluding the impact of any service.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any,
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Provisions

2.25

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Provision for reinstatement costs

Provision for reinstatement costs represents the present value
of the estimated costs for the restoration work of the Group's
leased retail shops agreed to be carried out upon the expiry
of the relevant leases using a risk-free pre-tax interest rate. The
provision has been determined by the directors based on their
best estimates. The related reinstatement costs have been
included as part of leasehold improvements in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities as described below. The Group bases its
estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement. The Group records accounts receivables when the
revenue recognised since the Group has unconditional rights to
payments of goods delivered or services performed which are
due according to the contract terms.

Revenue is measured when or as the control of the goods or
services is transferred to a customer. Depending on the terms
of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control
of the goods and services may be transferred over time or at a
point in time. Control of the goods and services is transferred
over time if the Group's performance:

provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer; or

creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(9

(d)

Revenue from Chinese Restaurant operations

The Group's Chinese restaurants provide catering and
banquet services. Revenue from providing services is
recognised in the accounting period in which the services
are rendered.

Distribution of goods

The Group distribute goods to customers mainly consists
of fresh vegetables and fruit, seafood and frozen meat.
Sales are recognised when controls of the products
has transferred, being when the products are delivered
to customer, the customer has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the goods, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. It generally coincides with
the date of delivery.

Franchise income

Franchise income is recognised in the accounting period
in which the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(e)

Environmental maintenance service

The Group provides environmental maintenance services
in the PRC, which mainly includes janitorial services on
streets and public areas, waste management services
and facility maintenance management. Revenue from
provision of such services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-price
contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual
service provided to the end of the reporting period as a
proportion of the total service to be provided because the
customer receives and uses the benefits simultaneously
and it is equivalent to the fixed monthly fee entitled by
the Group.

Some environmental maintenance service contracts
include multiple performance obligations, such as
upgrading the public facilities and subsequent cleaning
and maintenance services, the transaction price of which
will be allocated to each performance obligation based
on their respective stand-alone selling prices. Where these
are not directly observable, they are estimated based on
expected cost plus margin.

Estimates of revenues, cost or extent of progress toward
completion are revised if circumstances change. Any
resulting increases or decreases in the estimated revenues
or cost are reflected in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in the period in which the
circumstances that give rise to the revision become
known by management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Environmental maintenance service (Continued)

If the services rendered by the Group exceed the
payment, a contract asset is recognised. If the payments
exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is
recognised.

Financing components

The period between the transfer of the promised goods
or services to customer and the payment by the customer
of the contracts entered by the Group for its Chinese
restaurant operation and environmental maintenance
services normally does not exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction price for the time value of money in such
cases.

The Group also enters into contracts with customers for
its environmental maintenance business where the time
period exceeds one year, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of the time value
of money if the timing of payments agreed by the parties
of the contract (either explicitly or implicitly) provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment have been
established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(h) Interest income

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired
financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).

2.27 Leases (as a lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other long-term payables.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is
depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and
the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M 7% # 7 Jif 7t

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28

2.29

Leases (as a lessor)

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the
lessee in return for a payment, or series of payments, the right to
use an asset for an agreed period of time.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present
value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. The
difference between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.

The method for allocating gross earnings to accounting periods
is referred to a as the “actuarial method”. The actuarial method
allocates rentals between finance income and repayment of
capital in each accounting period in such a way that finance
income will emerge as a constant rate of return on the lessor’s
net investment in the lease.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is
included in the consolidated balance sheet based on the nature
of the asset.

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over the term of
the lease on a straight-line basis.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the Company
and its subsidiaries is recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the shareholders or directors, where appropriate, of the
respective companies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and price risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its risk exposures to changes in foreign exchange rates
and interest rates.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. Foreign exchange risk arises when recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity's functional currency.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
Mainland China with most of the transactions
settled in HKS and Renminbi (‘/RMB”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

0]

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures. The Group's assets
and liabilities are primarily denominated in the
respective Group companies’ functional currency.
As such, in the opinion of directors, the Group's
foreign exchange difference recognised in profit
or loss arising from transactions denominated
in currencies that is not the Group's companies’
functional currency is not material. Therefore, no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

The exchange difference arising upon translation
of net assets of subsidiaries with functional
currency in RMB to HKD are recognised as currency
translation differences and recognised as part of
the other comprehensive income. At 31 December
2018, if RMB had strengthened/weakened by 1%
against HKS, with all other variables held constant,
other comprehensive income would have been
approximately HK$3,429,000 (2017: HKS$1,272,000)
higher/lower respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair
value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from bank
deposits, loans from a director of certain
subsidiaries and loans from a shareholder. Loans
due from a shareholder and loans due from
a director of certain subsidiaries are at fixed-
rate and expose the Group to fair value interest-
rate risk. The interest rate profile of loans form a
director of certain subsidiaries and loans from a
shareholder are disclosed in Note 30 and Note 38
to the consolidated financial statements. The bank
deposits generate interest at the prevailing market
interest rates.

3

BBERER (&)
MHREBREE (&)

3.1

(a)

mEEEE ()
i RERERATFE

Rl 2 2 g2

ReRENKER
EERMTEMKRRK
ReRE8gEmS
RS NTPE LD
BB - & FEFI R
R T AR
BEEG AT E
=K e R

B
AEEOFZER

FERBETHE
FEBTHBRA
H—RBEEFHNER
MR E R L F
BN R EMER
FEAEEMEBGIRE
2 R R R i
o BRRFEF=E
RHERRITERA
Big-BTWB A
AN—RESNE
FIREEFEEGE
MEAREBEBEA
FEMNERRE &
FHBARN—F
EENERERRE
GRS P
tRA B IS IR R MY 5
30MIRE38 L 7R < $R1T
FRIRBEITTIEF
& BREUH] B o

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2018

155



156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, there are no
interest-bearing borrowings with variable interest
rates.

As at 31 December 2018, if the fixed interest rate
on loans from a shareholder and loans from a
director of certain subsidiaries had been higher/
lower by 100 basis points and it will be repaid in
twelve months’ time from the date of this report,
with all other variables held constant, the fair value
of the loans from a shareholder and loans from a
director of certain subsidiaries would have higher/
lower by HK$5,178,000 (2017: HK$8,209,000) and
HK$ 1,035,000 (2017:HKS$2,452,000) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Creditrisk

Credit risk is managed at business segment level and
overall monitored by Group management. Management
has policies in place and exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

To mitigate the risk arising from bank deposits and
financial assets at FVPL, the Group places bank deposits
and listed securities classified as financial assets at FVPL
to reputable banks with a minimum rating of “investment
grade” ranked by an independent party or financial
institutions with high credit quality. The directors of the
Company does not expect any loss arising from non-
performance by these counterparties.

Trade receivables, contract assets, other receivables and
deposits are continuously monitored by assessing the
credit quality of respective counterparties, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. When necessary, the Group will make specific
provision for those balances which cannot be recovered
apart from the general provision arise from the expected
credit loss model. The Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amounts of each financial assets in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BXERRERE(Z)
3.1 Finandial risk factors (Continued) 30 BiEREZE(£)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) ) EFEREE (&)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has the following types of financial assets that
are subject to the expected credit loss model:

Other receivables and deposits

TREERE
REBEFIATAERE
HEREEBREXRN 22
MEE:

H 8 W IR R
&

Trade receivables and contract assets EFRBZREBERE
A& E
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBESEEY

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss model for all
trade receivables from third parties and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
and contract assets have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets relate to unbilled revenue and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same types of contracts. The Group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The loss allowances of trade receivables are based on
assumptions about the risk of default and expected
loss rate. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, mainly base on the historical payment profiles
of sales and the corresponding historical credit losses
rate, current and forward-looking information on marco-
economic factors at the end of each reporting period.

The Group's revenue from its Chinese restaurant operation
is mainly conducted in cash or by credit cards. The credit
period granted by the Group to its customers for its newly
acquired environmental maintenance business and its
tenants range from 30 to 90 days. As at 31 December
2018 and 2017, all trade receivables are current in nature.

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018 (on initial
adoption of HKFRS 9), management has used of the
lifetime expected loss model for assessing the loss
allowance provision for trade receivables and contract
assets from third parties and concluded that no loss
allowance was made. The expected credit loss rate
applied is 0% for current to 180 days past due, and 100%
for over 180 days past due, respectively.

3 BRERERE(£E)
31 HIBEREBEE(Z)

(b)

EEmRE(E)
TREERE (&)
W B 2RI B R R
TR B A REORR M IE
HBEE 2 RREL A
SENERZERR MR
BREME 2B A BB
ERHE TEREBBE
HENRBERRAARBE
EEBRE REHmEH
REBERERBERENIR
i M ATE £ B HY -

REBRGHABELEE
M EZ TR EE
RARARET-AEER
HEHBERBEHEEER
MEFPREHAPHED
K5 EHE N F30290A8 -
RZE—N\FEERZZT—+t
F+-_A=+—8 %8
BB SR IE B R B
go

R—ZZE—-—NF+=A
Z—+—BRZ=ZZE-N\F
—A— R (VIR REE
B i3k RIS M B
H) - EEECHRAEMER
(EEORERE sy S R ]
AE S EUGRIERKAE
=HMAENEENBER
I MR AT IR S R R
o EARENEAZ 81 HA180
A RaHAEiE180E B
EEE BB E D B A% &
1009 °

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2018

159



160

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators
that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage
in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments upon termination of projects.

The Group has applied the general approach and
recorded 12-month expected credit losses on its other
receivables and deposits based on the estimated loss of
possible default events within the next 12 months. The
directors of the Group has considered that the allowance
on impairment loss is immaterial upon the initial adoption
of the standard and as at 31 December 2018.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss by the directors of the Company was
determined to be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
debt covenant, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from banks, a director of a subsidiary and a shareholder to
meet their liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The directors consider that with the availability of these
source of funds, the Group is able to mitigate the liquidity
risk and to satisfy its future working capital and other
financing requirement.
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EHANRBESF R

E=ZRR BHEEENF
B ARBERER

B RRIHEERRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

MBERER (&)
31 MIBEBEE (&)

()  Liquidity risk (Continued) o FREELEE(E)
The table below analyses the Group's non-derivative TRIBEBERAEEBRESHN
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based FE B RIeRAAME R
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the HERA R BRAE B D AT AR R E
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the HENTEERBE RN
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. PRt EE & AE HIARAER

RemE-
Repayable Less than Between 1 Between 2
on demand 1year and2years  and 5 years
REREE —FR —-EZmE MERE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THIL THIT TAL
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZ-N\F
+=A=+-8
Trade payables BHENFIE - 20,250 - -
Accruals and B ER K
other payables HAb B 3B - 47,226 - -
Loans from a shareholder (Note) ~ AX R &7 (&) 95,043 - - -
Amount due to a director ERN—2ESHE - 1,100 - -
Amount due to a related FE—
company [ NSIE S - 3453 - -
Loan from a director of certain & T HIB A A
subsidiaries (Note) —HEENEXK
iES) 19,000 - - -
Consideration payables ENKE 52,568 60,534 - -
At 31 December 2017 R=-2—t&
tZA=t-H
Trade payables BHENHE - 17,550 - -
Accruals and other payables EHEAR
H i R R0E - 19459 - -
Loans from a shareholder BEER 150,690 - - -
Amount due to a director [ —%
EENE - 1,100 - -
Amount due to a related B —ME
company B A RIFUR - 3621 - -
Loan from a director of certain & THI B2 AlH)
subsidiaries —REENER 45000 - - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Note:

As disclosed in Note 2.1(a), subsequent to 31 December 2018,
the shareholder and the director of certain subsidiaries have
confirmed that they will not demand for repayment of the
outstanding balance as at 31 December 2018 for coming twelve
months from the date of this report.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investment in listed equity securities and classified in the
consolidated balance sheet as financial assets at FVPL.

To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity
securities, the Group diversified its portfolio with different
risks. In addition, the Group also appointed a special team
to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2017, if the share price of the listed
equity securities classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss had been increased/decreased by
10% and all other variables were held constant, the post-
tax loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$288,000, results from the changes in fair value of these
listed equity securities.

3

BBERER (&)

3.1

MHREBREE (&)

@

(d)

MmEELEE (&
Bt

RIK QR BE KT
—N\F+ZA=+—H% &
ARRREFHBAAEER
B SRS AR AR
+-EATREFHER =T
—NE+Z A=+ AR
Bt

Bk m A

REBRERGABESR
BRI ERIEZAFETA
BEM EMRAFHF
& AR (B E o

RE B F AL *$
WS ANERR R ARES
ZEREBESZERER-
o REEE R EERM
2 B DA BE A AR R B 3 8
ZENRFEZR LN ZER
[ gm

R—ZE—+tF+=A
—t+—H fH2EAREA
FEFABZHNEREE
7 b T BR AR 3B 5 R R (B
EF T EE0%M H 4 BT
EEERFETE AEH
HE-ZT—tF+=-A
Tt HLFEREZSE
ETRAF SN AT ESE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBERER(E)
3.1 Finandial risk factors (Continued) 30 BiEREZE(£)
(d)  Price risk (Continued) d) EEE(E)
No sensitivity analysis for the year ended 31 December HARAEER =T —N\F
2018 is presented as the Group does not hold any equity TZA=t—RIESE
securities as at 31 December 2018. ERIRAFES WEHE=
T-NF+=ZA=+—H
IEFEREGRIEDT -
3.2 (Capital risk management 32 EXRERER
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safequard REBEARERE B EERRAE
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order EaeREgE  UARESRD
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other i FIRFREE MRS E AR
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to o WHER R EERNRB IR
reduce the cost of capital. BEMA o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group RSB ERERE  KAEE
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return AARNTRENRESEE R
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce BERTRER - BITHRG S
debt. EEENURDEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3
3.2 (Capital risk management (Continued)

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as consideration payables, loans from a director of certain
subsidiaries, loans from a shareholder less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet plus net debt. The gearing ratio as at
31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

BBERER (&)

3.2

EXmBER (&)
HZEAEARTT 1 AKE A
ERBELERELEREE
Ao R IR BB FRERIAB R
RERRTE - MERFRIIZEN
RE - ETHBRARN —RES
MEF  RREFER S RE
S EBEYE - EXAERAER
BEERBERIIRE [HEzm] N
FEBFE - RE-NFRZ
E—+F+ A=+ —HBWEX
BELERMAT:

2018 2017
—E-NF| ZZT—+F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FExT FET
Consideration payables JERIRAE 113,102 -
Loans from a director of certain ETHEB AR
subsidiaries (Note 30) —ZBEFEMER (H5E30) 19,000 45,000
Loans from a shareholder (Note 38) fEEE K (MIFE3s) 95,043 150,690
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) i : 3R & RIREHEY
(FF3E25) (117,635) (196,335)
Net debt/(cash) &%/ (Re)FHE 109,510 (645)
Total equity M 163,068 130,961
Total capital BER 272,578 130,316
Gearing ratio BEARGELE N/A
40% T

As at 31 December 2017, the Group was at a net cash position,
hence the disclosure of gearing ratio is not applicable.

W=F—tF+=A=t+-A"
AEBERFRSHR FILE
ES U TES ER AL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation
(a) Financial assets

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at fair
value in the consolidated financial statements. To provide
an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standards. An explanation of each level
follows underneath the table.

(i) Fair value hierarchy

3

BRERERE(£)
33 DAFEEME
(@) LTHEE

REfREEE N A BT
WRL A TEER
M B T AR ERME

) H B K Al 5 - RIS

EEAFEMREAZE

MR SRR E IR AKE

RIFGHEBESRT
AN R=AEH SER

HBRREEEN TR

=

Recurring fair value measurements  EE M4 A FEHE

AFEER

Level 3

At 31 December 2018 R-ZZFE-NE+=-A=+—8 =g
HK$'000
FHET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at FVPL ERAFEFABENSBEE
— Contingent consideration receivable — R ARE 6,878

SRR BuEEEREARAT

iHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

0]

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the
contingent consideration receivable is classified
as level 3 fair value measurement and is estimated
by applying probability-weighted scenario
analysis. The significant unobservable inputs
and relationship of the inputs to fair value of the
contingent consideration receivable are shown as
below:

3 BEEKRERE(Z)
33 DEEME(£Z)
(a) THEE(#Z)
0 ADTEEBR(E
R-_TE—N\F+=
B=+—8 rk
FAREHATE

DOBRE=ZREAR
FEFE WEA
BMEINEBE DN
HEt o EATATE
R A BB REA
S5 B E Y SRR
BRATEZHENH
RHRAT -

Significant unobservable input

ERTABER AR

Probability of staying above the
Guaranteed Amount — 90%
M B MRS BRAOBLE - 90%

Discount rate — 4.3%
ARIRFE_43%

Relationship of unobservable input to fair value

TRIBR B AREEQ T ENREER

The higher the probability, the lower the fair value

BEES QT EBE

The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value

BRIR TR A FEBIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

3 HEEKBRERE(£)
33 AFREME (&)
@ ZHEE(E)
i) RTEEHE)

The movement of contingent consideration RE=ZERTEHE
receivables during the year in the balance of Level 3 BRET = BRI EA
fair value measurements is as follows: RERFRNHEE
EARUNNE
2018
Level 3
—E-N\F
B=E
HK$'000
THET
Contingent consideration receivables & U5 R 1B
At 1 January n—H—H -
At completion date of NEETETNEEYNG
acquisition of subsidiaries e d=Rt 6,836
Exchange difference M ERE 42
At 31 December R+=—H=+—H 6,878
2017
Level 1
—2—tF
£—E
HK$'000
FHET
At 31 December 2017 R=ZTB—tH+=A=+-—H
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVPL BAVEFABRZCREE
- Hong Kong listed equity securities — BB ETRAES 3,447
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBERER(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 DEEME(£Z)
(a) Finandial assets (Continued) (a) LTEEE (&)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) 0] NEEER (&
There were no transfers against various levels for FR-TRBRZ
recurring fair value measurements during the year. I meE R B It
NFEFE-
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and REBBNBERR
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the ZWBARERAF
end of the reporting period. BEEMEBHEA
Ko ggm o
Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded

Level 2:

Level 3:

=R

derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level
1.

RERTSEENEGRIAE(MAREENITATE BEEZFRAIHEESE
FINATEDREZHRPEROTSREATE -AEEMHFSREEMAD
MEREREFEAB - HETEAMAE—E-

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

TWEREEBRMSEENERTIA (NSIMTETR)NAFENARERNE
EoHERMEENAABEMSEE S8 KBREEBNMGT -ME—T
BN ATEMBHMAEEABABBEAFAEREE IZITEMAE_E-

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities.
M—EHZREREBARBYIFMKEIBRENSEE IR TEAMAFE=ZE-
ZIENE B IE ETRAE 5 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

As at 31 December 2017, the Group measured the
fair values of the listed equity securities classified at
financial assets at FVPL, using the quoted market
price for similar instruments.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group measured the
fair value contingent consideration receivable is
valued by an independent qualified valuer, using
probability weighted scenario analysis.

(b)  Non-financial assets

(0

Fair value hierarchy

This note explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the
non-financial assets that are recognised and
measured at fair value in the consolidated financial
statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the Group has classified its non-financial
assets and liabilities into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation of
each level is provided in note 3.3(a) above.

SRR BuEEEREARAT
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@ THEE(E)

33
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EEAFERA
B B T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMEERRERE (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 DEEME(£Z)
(b)  Non-financial assets (Continued) b) HFELEEE (&)
() Fair value hierarchy (Continued) 0 RNFEEBLRE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$-B %-EBE H%=FE @t
At 31 December 2018 Notes | HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000  HKS$'000
R-ZB-NE+=-A=1+-H Kok TERT TEL TER TERT
Investrent properties BEME
Commercial buildings and car ¥ K E REfL
parking spaces —HE A
- Mainland China 17 - - 108,423 108,423
Total non-financial assets FeREERT - - 108,423 108,423
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- £ F= @at
At 31 December 2017 Notes HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
RZE—+F+-A=1+—H Bisx FET FEL FET FEL
Investrnent properties REME
Commercial buildingsand car ~ EIEAE RE(
parking spaces —FE A
- Mainland China 17 - - 108,865 108,865
Non-current asset classified DERFE
as held for sale HENETDEE
Residential building - Hong Kong {F EAE &% 2% 12215 - - 12215
Industrial building - HongKong  TEAAE &% 2% 19,967 - - 19,967
Total non-financial assets FeMEELS 32182 - 108865 141047
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b)  Non-financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Valuation techniques used to determine level 3 fair
values

The Group obtains independent valuations for
its investment properties at least annually. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors update
their assessment of the fair value of each property,
taking into account the most recent independent
valuations. The directors determine a property’s
value within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates.

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in
an active market for similar properties. Where such
information is not available the directors consider
information from a variety of sources including:
current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature or recent prices of similar properties
in less active markets, adjusted to reflect those
differences, discounted cash flow projections
based on reliable estimates of future cash flows
and capitalised income projections based upon
a property’s estimated net market income and
a capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of
market evidence.

Refer to Note 17 for further disclosure on
quantitative information about the significant
unobservable inputs used in recurring level 3 fair
value measurements at its investment properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a) Impairment assessment of non-financial assets and
goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.11. The recoverable amounts of CGUs associated
with the goodwill have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. Non-financial assets other than goodwill,
including property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts of non-financial assets
have been determined based on fair value less costs to sell or
value-in-use valuations. These calculations require the use of
judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in impairment test,
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred
that may indicate that the CGUs/asset values may not be
recoverable; (i) whether the carrying amount of the CGU/an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount; and (jii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment
of goodwill or non-financial assets other than goodwill,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of its operations.
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Continued)

()

(b)

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets and
goodwill (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no impairment
change on goodwill and intangible assets are recognised in
profit or loss (2017: Same).

For the property, plant and equipment of the Group, an
impairment loss of HK$2,831,000 was recognised (2017:
HK$9,369,000) during the year ended 31 December 2018 for
the property, plant and equipment used in restaurant business.
If the discount rate for the Group had been 1 percentage point
higher than management’s estimate; or the annual growth rate
had been 1 percentage point lower, the impairment charge will
increase by HK$186,000 and HK$3,000, respectively.

Estimated valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by an independent and professionally
qualified valuer.

In determining the fair value, the valuer has based on property
valuation techniques which involve, inter alia, certain estimates
including comparable sales in the relevant market, current
market rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate discount rates and expected future
market rents. In relying on the valuation report, management
has exercised their judgement and is satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market condition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Continued)

(c)

Income tax

The Group is subject to current income tax. Significant judgment
is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current income tax
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled. Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The Group’s management determines the deferred income tax
assets based on the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates
(and laws) and the best knowledge of profit projections of the
Group for coming years during which the deferred income tax
assets are expected to be utilised. In assessing the amount of
deferred income tax assets that need to be recognised, the
Group considers future taxable income and ongoing prudent
and feasible tax planning strategies. In the event that the Group
estimates of projected future taxable income and benefits from
available tax strategies are changed, or changes in current tax
regulations are enacted that would impact the timing or extent
of the Group's ability to utilise the tax benefits of net operating
loss carried forward in the future, adjustments to the recorded
amount of net deferred income tax assets and income tax
expense would need to be made.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Continued)

() Income tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors have reviewed the
Group's investment properties and concluded that the Group's
investment properties, which are located in Mainland China, are
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred taxation on
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. Management will revisit the
assumptions and profit projections at each balance sheet date.

(d) Business Combinations

On 30 June 2017, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of New Fortune Holdings Group Limited (“New Fortune”).
New Fortune and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “New
Fortune Group”) is principally engaged in property leasing
business of a commercial property located in Xicheng District,
Beijing and Mainland China. The residual portion of the purchase
consideration in excess of the fair values of identifiable net
assets acquired by the Group was allocated as goodwill. The
purchase price allocation has involved significant management
judgement and estimation. Further details are given in Note 33

(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Business Combinations (Continued)

On 22 October 2018, the Group acquired 51% of the entire
issued share capital of BYL Property Holdings Group Limited
("BYL"). BYL and its subsidiaries (collectively as the "BYL Group”)
are principally engaged in environmental maintenance business
in the PRC. The residual portion of the purchase consideration in
excess of the fair values of identifiable net assets acquired by the
Group was allocated as goodwill. The purchase price allocation
and the fair value measurement of contingent consideration
involved significant management judgement and estimation.
Further details are given in Note 33(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Fair value of contingent consideration

The fair value of the contingent consideration at the date of
completion of acquisition and the end of the reporting period
were determined using discounted cash flow and probability
to meet the target financial performance. Where the estimation
on these factors is different from those previously estimated,
such differences will impact the fair value gain or loss of
the contingent consideration in the period in which such
determination is made.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The CODM has been identified as the executive directors of the
Company who review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CODM has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

During the year 2017, the Group was principally engaged in three
operating segments (i) Chinese restaurant and wedding business, (ii)
property leasing business, and (iii) securities trading business.

Apart from continuing to develop its core business, during the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Group starts to engage in the
environmental maintenance service business in the PRC through
acquisition of BYL Group. Details of the business combination are

disclosed in Note 33(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Accordingly, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as
follows:

(0 Chinese restaurant and wedding business

(i) Property leasing business

(i) Securities trading business

(iv)  Environmental maintenance business
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 oHER(E)
Segment revenue and results DR R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by AR E 2 Wi R R 2 D TR P 23
reportable and operating segment: RGEDF2F T
Chinese restaurant and Property Securities Environmental
wedding business leasing business trading business maintenance business Total
FAEERERER NEREEH BEEEEY REGEEY @it
2018 07 218 07 2018 07 2018 0m7 2018 017
ZE-NE |ZE—tF |ZB-N\§F |ZTtF |ZB-N\EF |ZT+tF |ZB-NF |ZTtF |ZB-N\f |ZTtF
HKS'000 | HKS000 | HK$'000 | HKS000 | HKS$'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKSOOD | HK$'000 | HKSDOO
TER T TR FiEn TR T TET FEL TET TR
Segment revenue 2Bl
External revenue ShEpU s 374,673 365,374 4,28 3269 19 189 31,938 - 410,858 368,832
Gain on disposal of financial HERATEA
assets at fair value through BRZGBEE
profit or loss 63 - - - - 302 2206 - - 302 2206
Segment (loss)/profit 23 (58) /&7 (15,969) (37351) 6377 2950 (916) 2405 4,654 - (5,854) (31,9%)
Finance income BIBRA 864 615
Finance costs BIBMAR (1,993) 2178)
Unallocated corporate expenses RARRARR (16,296) (21,748)
Loss before income tax BREEHAER (23,279) (55,307)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as LEDH 2 ST BEREAE BT
the Group's accounting policies. Segment (loss)/profit represents the KRR (F518) BAEESDH

loss incurred by/profit earned by each segment without allocation

of central administration costs, depreciation of certain plant and

equipment, directors’ emoluments, finance income, finance cost and
exchange gain/loss. This is the measure reported to the CODM for
purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment.

ADBEHRITRER - & THER&E
FrE EEME MBEA - PIEKA
RER W ERTEE 2B
B2EM W HHmE T ERLERK
ERRERD B AN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M 7% # 7 Jif 7t

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 oRER(E)
. Lsleas / \ 37|
Segment assets and liabilities BEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by REEEERBBEIZOMKRAZ2HR
reportable and operating segment: BEDEBZHIA0T -
Chinese restaurant and Property Securities Environmental
wedding business leasing business trading business maintenance business Total
mRERREREY NEREEY REEEEY REGREY -
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“8-N\F |ZT+tF |Z8-NF |ZT+tF |ZF-N\F |Z2+tF |ZEB-N\F |ZZ2—+F |ZB-N\F |Z2—tF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn TAL Fhn TET Fhn TR FhR TER TAR T
Segment assets AHEE 62,964 78055 130,050 130856 - 3654 245,381 - 438,395 212,565
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEED 117,635 196,335
Current income tax recoverable PUGE T - 571
Contingent consideration receivable ~ FEMRARE 6,878 -
Deferred income tax assets BRMEHER 6,473 5,345
Non-current assets held for sale BELEERDEE - 3,182
Other unallocated corporate assets ~ Hft R HEAREE 2,118 4906
Total assets #EE 571,499 451904
Segment liabilities AREE 79,828 87008 1724 3616 - - 30,717 - 112,269 90624
Loans from a director of ATHERAZ
certain subsidiaries —LEEENR 19,000 45000
Deferred income tax abilties ERAEHAR 44,048 24769
Amount due toa related company B — BB ]
HE 3,453 3621
Amount due to a director ER—2EFHE 1,100 1,100
Consideration payables FERRE 113,102 -
Loans from a shareholder BEEH 95,043 150690
Current income tax iablties MEmEREE 14,183 804
Other unallocated liabilities HEhRHEEE 6233 4335
Total liabilities aaE 408,431 320943
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LR 2 &k

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 oHER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PEHEERERB (&)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating REESHEERESFH 2HHEE
resources between segments: R
. all assets are allocated to operating segments other than FEEEASREREHH (CE
certain plant and equipment, cash and cash equivalents, certain THREREEH RekReEE
deposits and prepayment, and other receivables, current income BT iRe RIEHRIEREM
tax recoverable and deferred income tax assets. FELBZ RIHE - —ILBZEIEIJ HIFBH &
N o
. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than FEBBESREREH M (E
certain deposit and accruals and other payables, amount due to Tike REBRRAMBENRK
a director, amount due to a related company, current income tax el WN—% EEHIE EN—
liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities, loans from a director of AR A RIFE  BIHAFT ST &
certain subsidiaries and loans from a shareholder. & ﬁkﬁﬁ SHERE BTWE
NAZ —BEEERMBEEER
N o
Other segment information Hih oy HER
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by REBEEERABZHOMRAZ2®EK
reportable and operating segment: LEDHEHNIT
Chinese restaurant and Property Securities Other unallocated Environmental
wedding business leasing business trading business segment maintenance business Total
PRERRERER NEREEH BEEEER ERSRAH BREEEH f 5
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 217
SE-NE| CEtF| SE-NE| C24E | ZR-NE| CT-4F | ZF-NE| CE-4F | ¥-NE| C2-4F| Z¥-AE| S3-15
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEx Thr FEx TET TEx TER Fax FHLT Téx TER FiEn Thr
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1% * B Rk T &
equipment 13,733 23669 187 16 - - 28 215 1,176 - 15,524 23900
Impaiment of property, plantand 1%+ B R
equipment REZAE (2,831) 9369) - - - - - - - (2831) 9369)
Fairvalue changes of investments —~— RENEAFEES
properties - - 4,565 1,004 - - - - - - 4,565 1,094
Additions of non-curent assets REFRBEE 2453 26847 - - - - 782 953 7533 - 10,768 27800
Tfamfef assets to non-current assets g%ééj{%ﬁ ﬁ % Z
held for sale FRDEE - (7883) - (24299) - - - - - - (3218)
Additions of property plantand ~ EBEBAKFEL
equipmentand intangible assets 1% BERAER
thiough business combination BYEE (THE
(excluding goodill) (Note 33) B2) (W) - - - 103808 - - - - 108522 - 10852 103,808
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical Information

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is

presented based on the location of the operations. Information about

the Group's non-current assets is presented based on the geographical

location of the assets.

DERE R ()

A=
AEBMIEREBRPENMLL -
REBREINBES 2 W EN TR
CEFE 25 - A EBIERBEE
BRI R PR 2 51 o

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets

REMBEF RS FRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\F | ZZ—+tF | ZB-N\F | ZT—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET TERT FET
Hong Kong B 374,692 366,319 43,067 60,706
Mainland China B i 36,166 2513 360,578 130,835
Total BEr 410,858 368,832 403,645 191,541

The Group had no inter-segment sales for the year ended 31

December 2017 and 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, there are no single external

customers contributed to more than 10% of revenue of the Group

(2017: same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

REVENUE 6 W
An analysis of revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, is as follows: A E Y (BN RE) MO MmT :
2018 2017
—E-N\EF ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Chinese restaurant and wedding business: F = EE R IR #75:
Revenue from Chinese restaurant operations AP 3B 8 48 & ¥ 75 B I 28 374,673 362,538
Revenue from provision of wedding services 31518 IR 15 Y U s - 1,636
Revenue from distribution of goods DHEEmH IR - 671
Franchise income FEET R - 529
374,673 365,374
Property leasing business: YIEEEEK:
Rental income HEBA 4,228 3,269
Securities trading business: EHREEEK:
Dividend income R B A 19 189
Environmental maintenance business RIBHEEEK
Services income for provision of RUR IS ERTE R AR
environmental maintenance services A 31,938 -
Total revenue FLE 410,858 368,832
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6 REVENUE (Continued) 6 W= (&)
Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers HEFSYHEENEERE
&
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract REBERABUATRERBEENEER
assets and liabilities afE
2018
—ZE-NEF
HK$’000
FET
Contract assets EHEE
Classified under: DT
— non-current assets —EREBEE 13,204
— current assets —mENEE 1,742
14,946
Contract liabilities EHNEE
Classified under; DEEIT
- non-current liabilities —ERFBEE 2,260
— current liabilities - mBAaE 36,272
38,532
As at 31 December 2018, contract assets increased by HKS$ 14,946,000 KRB \FF+ZA=+—H BRA
as the Group has entered into a service contract with a customer of its SER-ZEFINRAEGERGZ
environmental maintenance business in which the Group has provided M6 4 P AR B E /A5
the relevant services ahead of the agreed payment schedule of 8 years. B & AT\ F IR ERRI AR TS A
Contract assets of HK$ 1,742,000 and HK$ 13,204,000 are classified under HVBEEIE DN 49460008 7T ° B KB E
current and non-current assets, respectively, based on the agreed 1,742,000/ 7 13,204, 0008 TR — F
payment schedule as at 31 December 2018. —N\F+ZA=+—BHERRE

BRDBDBERRE EIERBEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

REVENUE (Continued) 6

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, contract liabilities mainly include deposits
received from customers under the contracts for banquet and
wedding banquet services of the Group'’s Chinese restaurant business.
Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December 2018 that
was included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the
period is HK$36,398,000.

As at 31 December 2018, aggregate amount of the transaction
price allocated to contracts that are partially or fully unsatisfied is

Wz (&)

HEFSYHEENEERE
& (&
R-ZZ—)\FE+-A=+—HB 448
BEEXERREBRERNERFRBEER
NERERIEZRBE L8 EPUWERA
e BHE-_T-N\F+_A=+—
HIEFEERLRBANTAGHEE
£ R Y UK 25 436,398,000 TT

RZE-N\F+_A=+—Bolk%
MAREIRBEITHNANNAZFZE

HK$38,532,000. % £338,532,000/ 7T ©
OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN 7 Hag A R H bz
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FExT FET
Other income Hib A
Forfeiture of contract liabilities/ REHERE BURIES
deposits received 1,153 862
Miscellaneous income I 719 392
1,872 1,254
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

7  OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN (Continued)

7 HttAREMYE (F)

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FExT FHET
Other gain Hfth i 2
Gain on disposal of property, LEME - BE &
plant and equipment B W 206 295
-
8  COST OF REVENUE 8 W@EAAE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Cost of materials consumed BT REA BEAK AR
— Chinese restaurant business —h BB ER 103,690 97,644
— Environmental maintenance business —IRIBMEEE 2,992 -
Others H 575 1,210
107,257 98,854
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OTHER EXPENSES 9 Hpxk
2018 2017
—E-NFE | —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR BN &
— Audit services —BE R 1,500 1,246
— Non-audit services — T RIS 950 1,150
Advertising and promotions B RHEE 11,707 10,862
Cleaning and laundry expenses BRRERFAZ 7,201 8322
Credit card charges EHREA 4,222 4339
Kitchen consumables BB #EM 835 1,188
Repairs and maintenance e R HEE 5,730 4474
Consumable stores JEFEm 2,651 3,149
Insurance (1 1,940 1,987
Legal and professional fee ERERBEEER 2,938 4877
Printing and stationery EN I Fe 32 B 1,284 1,648
Staff messing BETRE 1,559 1,711
Service fee to temporary workers NFBEINREE 4,639 649
Consultancy service fee (Note 27) EEf RIS & (F3527) 3,582 3,790
Wedding banquet expenses EZR X 996 588
Transportation Eh 1,226 1,325
Share-based payment expenses BTREBCARN BERSN
granted to consultants (Note 35) KFEZ (MFEE35) 3,390 3,043
Others HAh 8,736 6,281
65,086 60,629
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (INCLUDING 10 EEEANBEXZ (BREEEMH
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) &
2018 2017
—B-N\E | ZT—+F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHExT FHET
Wages, salaries and bonuses IE #FHe ks 128,475 116,818
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE A — R ERKEE 4,957 4,520
Accrual for annual leave JEETF R 141 241
Accrual/(reversal) of long service payments fEEt (BE) REBRE 390 37)
Share-based payment expenses (Note 35) AR BEM N 3R FE X
( Mt3E35) 1,175 1435
135,138 122,977
(@) Pensions — defined contribution plans @ BARE-REHKFTE

The Group's net contributions to pension plans are mainly for
employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Summary of the
pension plans are as follows:

(i) The Group contributes to an MPF Scheme for its
employees in Hong Kong, under which the Group and
each employee each makes monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the qualifying earnings of the employee,
subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 (2017: HK$1,500) per
month. As at 31 December 2018, contributions totaling
approximately HK$605,000 (2017: HK$743,000) were paid
or payable to the MPF Scheme.

(i) The Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China also contribute
to retirement plans for its employees in Mainland China
at a percentage of their salaries in compliance with the
requirements of the respective municipal governments in
Mainland China. The municipal governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligation of all
existing and future retired employees of the Group in
Mainland China. As at 31 December 2018, contributions
totaling approximately HK$455,000 (2017: HKSNil) which
are denominated in RMB were paid or payable to the
retirement plans.
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (INCLUDING 1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

o

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year included three (2017: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements. The emoluments payable
to the remaining two (2017: two) individuals during the year are
as follows:

EERARAX (BEESH
®) (#&)

(b)

EuEEHEAL
FRAEBRAVESFALE
Bz (22—t =Z8)8
T RENFIHRAETERE
N Z oM - FREMEBTM
FZ(ZE—EE WMB)ALH
FHET

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits ~ EANEF & - ‘?%’&%ﬂ 1,192 1,256
Employer's contribution to pension BERNKRSFTEIMHE

scheme 29 36

Share-based payment expenses AR B AN X 339 152

1,560 1,444

The emoluments of the above two (2017: two) individuals above
fell within the band of Nil — HK$1,000,000 during the year.

No incentive payment for joining the Group or compensation for
loss of office was paid or payable to any of the five highest paid
individuals during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
same).

FRERAMEB (T L5
ME) ATHFHMEERN FTE
1,000,000/ 7T ©

BE-T—)/\fT=-A=1—H
HEER UEENHEN TR
&= ALRBRERIMALSE
Bz SRR E (—F 1
FAER) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

11 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS N EEFNZRER
(@) Directors’ and CEO’s emoluments EERTHERMS
The remuneration of each of the directors and the CEO for the HE—_Z2—-/\F+=-A=1+—H
year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below: IS BEE RITHAASE B
|
Employer's
contribution to
Basic salaries, Share-based aretirement
allowances  Discretionary payment benefit
Fees  and benefits bonuses expenses scheme Total
Exfie. DRGBRER  EXEAS
he  EMREN MERAL  WARRX  RRFEER oy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
47 47 A7 47 47 47
Chairman £
Mr. Sang Kanggiao ZRELE - 715 - 181 18 914
Executive directors HiEs
Mr. XuWenze FXERE - 715 - 181 18 914
Mr. Cui Peng EBRA - 585 - 181 16 782
Independent non-executive BIUFEHTEES
directors
Mr. Xu Zhihao REELE 120 - - 181 - 301
Mr. Lam Ka Tak HEERE 120 - - 181 - 301
Ms. Liu Yan (note (i) B% 7t (W) 89 = = (34) o 55
Mr.Wong Sincere (note (i)~ EHE T4
(BzEG)) 31 - - - - 31
360 2,015 - 8N 52 3,298
Note: Bt 3 -
(i) Ms. Liu Yan resigned as an independent non-executive director 0] AL+ ER_F-NFNA

on 27 September 2018.

(if) Mr. Wong Sincere has been appointed as an independent non-

executive director on 27 September 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 1 EEFNZRER (£)

()

Directors’ and CEQ’s emoluments (Continued)

(a)

The remuneration of each of the directors and the CEO for the

year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

EERTHRAZME

(%)

BE_ZT—tFT-A=t—H
HFE - BEE RITHAR S M

N
Employer's
contribution to
Basic salaries, Share-based a retirement
allowances Discretionary payment benefit
Fees and benefits bonuses expenses scheme Total
558 IWRHAEER  EXRfe
we REREN BEEL  WAREX BIEHERR @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TRT  Ter T TEn  TER  TER
Chairman IR
Mr. Sang Kanggiao REELE - 625 - 163 18 806
Executive directors HTESE
Mr. XuWenze FRRE - 625 - 163 18 806
Mr. Cui Peng EERE - 515 - 163 18 6%
Independent non-executive BV FHTES
directors
Mr. Xu Zhihao REERE 120 - - 163 - 283
Mr. Lam Ka Tak WEERE 120 - - 163 - 283
M Liu Yan flgat 120 - - 163 - 283
360 1,765 - 978 54 3157

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no CEO
was appointed to fill the vacancy upon the resignation of Mr.
Cheung Ka Ho on 27 October 2016. Thus, the remuneration of

CEO is not disclosed.

No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: same). No incentive
payment for joining the Group or compensation for loss of office
was paid or payable to any directors during the year ended 31

December 2018 (2017: same).

HE-T—\FR-T—LF
TZA=t—HALFEAN &
RRFRER T —AETS
— T BRHER DRI
BETERER At 3
R ITRBE 2 H

REBEZE-_ZT—NF+=A
=+—HILEFE BEEEK
ERRERECMNFH(=F
—tF AR - REE=F
—NF+ZA=+—HILF
EoMEE N EMERES
DA 5 (2 ) 58 8 o B b A 1
ZE—tF A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

1

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to the directors of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2018 by a
defined contribution plan operated by the Group in respect of
their services as directors of the Company (2017: same). No other
retirement benefits were paid to the directors in respect of their
other services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking (2017: same).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company did
not pay any considerations to any third parties for making
available the services of themselves as directors of the Company
(2017: same).

SRR BuEEEREARAT

11

E=NERER (F)

(b)

(9]

(d)

EERAEA
BE-Z2—/\F+=-A=+—AH
I - AR EEE Y REHK
ST B RLAND ) FATIRALAR
BEEZAEMRKER (=2
—LF R - BEREEEE
LN R e PNGE ST
2 E A AR E S A AR AR
M (=Z—tF48R) -

ESHBEAN
BE-T—/\f+-A=t+—F
LEEFE - B S B MRS S U
RAEMBBER (ZF—tF
1R -

PN EE R mE S
=AXfzRE

HE-2—\F+=A=1—8
IR AR TR RERAR
RV RIS (A 55 = 77 3t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

11 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings were entered into
by the Company or its subsidiary undertaking in favour of the
directors of the Company, a controlled body corporate or a
connected entity of such directors at any time during the year
(2017: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for transactions disclosed elsewhere in the notes to
these consolidated financial statements, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year (2017: same).

N ESRERER(F)

(e)

(f)

BRENES EEo %%
HEEREEERAR
mAZER EERKH
R 5 2 & ¥
RAEEAEMBER ARAR
EMBARBEALATES
ERFIBEELMEREA
S ANRITER EERREL
2P (—F2—+LF HERA) -

BEERRS  RHEHEW
R ERREGS

BALRA PRI TR
BBE2RSH LEEWAEE
EBMARRERER—F A
ADREERES (TEER
R A EAMERS (AARESE
SR F REMEE) HEAR
5 BHREH(ZT—LF:
1R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

12 FINANCE COSTS — NET

12 B#ERA—FE

2018 2017
—E-NFE | —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Finance income 3N
— Interest income on short-term bank — R HARITIF A A B A
deposits 50 121
— Interest income arising from discount of —JEREBHESILSAIE
non-current rental deposits EEMFBUA 688 494
— Interest income on contract assets — B HEENTEIRA 126 -
864 615
Finance costs g 3%
— Interest expense on bank borrowings —HRITERFERX - (505)
— Interest expense on loans from —EH5THEBRRZ
a director of certain subsidiaries —REEZEX
(Note 38(b)) BRI Sz (Mi5E38(0)) (1,084) (1,309)
— Interest expense on finance lease liabilites ~ —RIEFEBER
MBRX - (12)
— Interest expense on loans from —RERERFERX
a shareholder (Note 38(b)) (Bt3E38(0)) (853) (233)
~ Unwinding of discount of provision for —RBRIEER A EER
reinstatement costs (Note 32) Bh3R (K95E32) (56) (119)
(1,993) (2,178)
Finance costs — net BF RGPS — 5 58 (1,129) (1,563)
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13

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&6 W A I

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13 FiBHMEx
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017 EBFEBRHEIZ65% (- B —+H4:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during 16.5% ) I % R g F N BB E A H) b5t
the year. The applicable corporate income tax rate for the Group's PRC ERBEFFHIREE AEENF
subsidiaries is 25% on the estimated assessable profits. BB 2 BB S FT PR AR TR A 60 A
1RSI R25% o
2018 2017
—E-N\EF ZE—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Current income tax BVERFR 1S3
Hong Kong profit tax EENEH - 135
PRC enterprise income tax AR ERTSR 2,438 109
Deferred income tax (Note 31) EIEFTS L (MIFE31)
Origination and reversal of temporary R EREREE KA
differences (472) 635
Income tax expense s = 1,966 879

The tax on the Group's loss before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using weighted average tax rate
applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

e w pe

ZRER [ R P 1575 B S 18 A B0 TR B R
BEaNRTEER

RmEFOREA BN S B ZHNE

24 A PTiE

Loss before income tax

BRFTS AT E 1R

Tax calculated at the applicable tax rates
Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Deferred tax not recognised

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax

losses

AR R RS 2R
BARBA
PRI R X
REERIRIETIA

FER JE B R TR Z BLIA B 1R

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses &) FA 7t Bl R MR 2 Tt 1B E5 18
Write-off of deferred tax previously recognised — Jifl 4 5& Al #E 52 2 i FE 75 18

BT
2018 2017
—E-N\E | ZT—+F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
T FHT
(23,279) (55,307)
(2,867) (8,925)
(504) (403)
3,399 2,665
4,495 6,710
- (2,006)
(2,557) -
= 2,838
1,966 879
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

14 LOSS PER SHARE 14

()

Basic (@)
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable

to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BRER

&R
BRENEEDRAARBES
ANEIEEER AR FRRHITE
AR I EGETE -

2018 2017
—E-N\E | ZE—+F
Loss attributable to owners of NATHER ANEEEE

the Company (HK$'000) (F%&mT) (27,260) (56,186)

Weighted average number of EEITTBERINETIH
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (F1&) 533,570 528,190
Basic loss per share (HKS) FRENERE (BT) (5 cents) (11 cents)
(5784l) (117840

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 is based on the loss attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$27,260,000 (2017: HK$56,186,000) and the
weighted average of ordinary shares in issue 533,570,000 (2017:
528,190,000 ordinary shares).

HE-Z— )/ \F+=ZA=1+—H
FFEMNERERNBEDER
A BEE AFE(GE1827,260,000
BIL (ZF — -+ 1 56,186,000/
TL) R B BT R AR 0
#533,570,000f% (=& —+F:
528,190,0008% & A% ) 5T & ©

(b) Diluted b) #F

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company's E_E-N\F+A=1+—H

dilutive potential ordinary shares arising from the conversion IEFE AR ASERERERT S

of 10,800,000 share options granted under the Share Option (B4 5E35) 38 T #% tH #910,800,000

Scheme (Note 35) (2017: 24,430,000 contingent returnable mERE(ZE—tF 2R

shares (Note 27) and 11,600,000 share options granted) had an Z.24,430,0000% =k 94 7] 3R 22 R 1)

anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share, hence no diluted (Bf$5E27) F211,600,00017 & A e )

earnings per share was presented. MELE BT EE S RREER
EXREEARRETIE Bt
Wi 2REGREERTF -

15 DIVIDENDS 15 KRE

EETEEMBE_ZT-N\F+_H
=T -BLESFERNRERE(ZF
—tFE) -

The directors do not recommend the payment of final dividends for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

X ] =)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 ME -BEERRE
Leasehold Air- Furniture Motor  Leasehold land
improvements conditioning Equipment and fixtures vehicles and building Total
BRE HEL
HEEB &8 B EHEHE HE REF @it
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
TEr TET TER Thr TE#T TEn TEr
At1January 2017 W=E-tF-F-B
Cost KA 77360 11736 27653 35815 204 8600 163206
Accumulated depreciation ZitE (51,398) (8091) 21,10) (27,140) (1,660) (522) (109921)
Net book amount EEFE 25962 3645 6543 8675 38 8078 53,285
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-E-tEft-B=t-8
LEE
Opening net book amount BNEEFE 25962 3645 6543 8675 38 8078 53,285
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEMBAA (H336)

(Note 33(z) - - - - 110 - 110
Additions WE 19059 2084 1468 389 4299 - 31,000
Transfer to assets classified BRENBARELE

as held for sale (Note 24) BE (Mo - - - - - (7883) (7883)
Depreciation charge REX (13429) (2294) (2622) (3912) (1448) (195) (23900)
Impairment charge HEZH (55%) (1,065) 937) 07n - - (9369)
Exchange difference EXER - - - - 17 - 17
Closing net book amount BREEFE 259% 2570 445 6,882 3360 - 43260
At 31 December 2017 W-E-tF+-B=t-H
Cost A 69,094 9350 B0 3651 6,144 - 141,256
Accumulated depreciation and impairment - 25 & BB (& (43098) (6780) (18569) (26769) (2784) - (979%)
Net book amount REFE 259% 2570 445 688 3360 - £260
Year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ-E3-\E+-A=1-8

LEE
Opening net book amount BNREFE 25,996 2570 4,452 6,882 3,360 - 43,260
Acquisiion of subsidiares WEMB LA (H330))

(Note 33(6) = = = 6 27,861 = 27,867
Additions AE 19 - 190 1,630 8,008 - 9,847
Disposal HE - - - - (174) - (174)
Deprediation charge AEXM (8314) (123) (1,376) (2522) (2589) - (15,524)
Impairment charge RES 2714) (117) = = = = (2,831)
Exchange difference EiEE - - - - by] - m
Closing net book amount BREEFE 14,987 1,730 3,66 5,99 36,688 - 62,667
At 31 December 2018 WZE2-NE+ZA=1-R
Cost KA 69,113 9,350 23,207 35,304 58,875 - 195,849
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 25T E REE (54,126) (7,620) (19,941) (29,308) (22,187) - (133,182)
Net book amount EEFE 14,987 1,730 3,266 5996 36,688 - 62,667
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Due to the continuing unsatisfactory performance of certain
restaurants, management recognised an impairment loss of
HK$2,831,000 (2017: HK$9,369,000) for certain property, plant and
equipment during the year ended 31 December 2018, which was
estimated based on the recoverable amount of each individual
restaurant as a cash generating unit. The recoverable amount of the
restaurant cash generating unit is determined based on the value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a period of the remaining lease term. The recoverable
amount of the restaurant cash generating unit which has indictors of
impairment and being tested for impairment was HK$715,000 (2017:
HK$13,602,000) as at 31 December 2018. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections was 12.8% (2017: 12.8%).

Equipment and motor vehicles include the following amounts where
the Group is a lessee under finance leases:

16

NE BMERSZE (&)
ARETEENRE—EROAE &
BERASE-_ZT— \Ft+_A=1+—
BIEFERETYE  BE MR ERER
BB 182,831,000/ T (—F—+F -
93690008 7T) * E MR E S HIER S
EABENHRE BN ORERS
EEHE B Y AT U 1B1 & BB T LASR A R
EHTHERZVHBEEAKIEZE
eREEANZFERAEBETEMET
BREDS ZEERSELBEMNNA
hE4ERN - E—-NF+_/A=+—
BACRE R A&71500078 7T (ZF—+
F 113,602,000/ 7T ) < 3R & i = TR AT
Bz MABIRE 2128% (ZF—+t
£:128%) °

FELAEERAKEERRERE
AEEANA T2

2018 2017
—E-NFE | ZZET—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT

Equipment ®E
Cost — capitalised finance leases RAR—BIEERNRERE - 477
Accumulated depreciation Z2EHTE - 477)
Net book amount BREFE - -
2018 2017
—E-NF | ZZT—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FExT FHT

Motor vehicles RE
Cost — capitalised finance leases RA—BIEERNRERE - 1,929
Accumulated depreciation Z2EHTE - (1,929)
Net book amount BREFE - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16

The Group leased various equipment and motor vehicles under non-

17

cancellable finance lease agreements. The lease terms were between

four and five years.

ME- - BERSHE (A
AEERETAHBERART R R
ESERBRAE AHANERF -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 BREYHE
2018 2017
—E-NF | —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHExT FHT
At 1 January n—H—H 108,865 24,400
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33(a)) Ue BB B A A) (BFaE33(@)) - 103,698
Fair value gain N EYE 4,565 1,094
Transfer to assets classified as EBRESHEARBELHEEE
held for sale (Note 24) (HMI5E24) - (24,299)
Exchange difference b H Z&E (5,007) 3,972
At 31 December W+=ZRA=+—8H 108,423 108,865
The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated THREERFE 2 EBP R R AR
statement of comprehensive income for the investment properties: BYIEELER:
2018 2017
—E-NF | —T—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHExT FHT
Rental income He WA 4,228 3,269
Direct operating expenses from properties EEHSWACYEZ
that generated rental income BELERE (575) (527)
3,653 2,742
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M 7% # 7 Jif 7t

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Valuation process of the Group

17

As at 31 December 2018, investment properties were revalued by

an independent professionally qualified valuer, CHFT Advisory and
Appraisal Limited (2017: same) using direct comparison approach. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group's interests in investment properties
are held on leases of 31-32 years (2017: 32-33 years) and are located in

the PRC (2017: same).

The Group reviews the valuation performed by independent valuer
for financial reporting purposes. Discussion of valuation processes and
results are held between management and independent professional

qualified valuer for financial reporting purposes.

REWE (Z)
rEENHERRF
R-ZE—N\F+-_A=1+—0 K&REY
¥OHmBUEEABRMEMESH
AR AR (ZE—+F:ER)
REEELEFETEGR BTN
FHZA=+—B TEEREEDE
B TIRENENF (T —+F:
NEPRF) 2 HMHFE  ZEWEMR
FE(ZE—+F ER) -

M ISR E WM F - AREERNE
JEEMEL 2 EE-EEEEET
BERMEMSREERFRER
PN iRk A

Fair value measurements using

ERAUTHABE 2 AFESESRX

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs
HitE R BX
HREENER AHE TA8HE
i HRE WAHE WABE
Description (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
R (5—F) (%5=8) (%5=F)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
THET FHET TFHET
At 31 December 2018 R-ZEB-N\E
+t=A=+-—-H
Investment properties: KEYE:
Commercial buildings and RERNEREAM
car parking spaces
~ Mainland China —HRE A - = 108,423
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tHF
+t=A=t-8
Investment properties: wEME:
Commercial buildings and EREREMN
car parking spaces
~ Mainland China —REI A - - 108,865
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17

Valuation process of the Group (Continued)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of

fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable input (Level 3) are as follows:

Valuation techniques

REM* (&)
AEENEERRF (F)
REEN BRI BER WS 2 B

BAEYRAHBZHE ARARFE
ERMEAREL -

FRNF-—EB - FEERF=-EBZEL
mER-

BREREATAREHABE (5
=B WAFEIEZARMT

EERI

Relationship of
Range of unobservable
Valuation Unobservable unobservable inputs to fair
Description Fair value technique inputs inputs value
FAEE TABRZBAZE
B D¥E fEE R TABEGARE BANBEE HBATLENER
HK$'000
FHET
At 31 December 2018
RZB-NF+=ZA=+-H
Commercial buildings and 108,423 Direct comparison approach Comparable Commercial buildings: The higher the comparable
car parking spaces — (Cross-checked with sales evidence RMB80,816 to market price, the higher
No.8, Fuchengmen Road, income approach) RMB90,000 the fair value
Xicheng District,
Beijing, the PRC Car parking spaces:
RMB200,000 to
RMB480,000 per unit
BERBREA- =R 35 IV AELBHE EEINGE AT EE
T BIE R A R S A (RPN XEE) & AR¥E80816LE DNFERERL
FISM R85 12 AR #590,0007T
By BB
AR 2000007 &
AR #4800007T
At 31 December 2017
R=B-t&+=A=+-8H
Commercial buildings and 108,865 Direct Comparable Commercial buildings: The higher the comparable

car parking spaces -
Mainland China No.8,
Fuchengmen Road,
Xicheng District,
Beijing, the PRC

[EEIN: Ji&Svan
FE R
R EAE SR B X
FISMKHTBE12

comparison approach sales evidence

BREBE

RMB68,000 to
RMB86,000 per
square meter

market price, the higher
the fair value

Car parking spaces:
RMB239,000 to
RMB451,000 per unit

[EEING RPN
AR#68000TE
AR #86,0007T

AALBHESR
ATERIEL

By B
ARE239000LE
AR #451,0007C
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWHE(E)
Under direct comparison approach, fair values of the investment BRBEERLEE  REWMEZ AFET)
properties are derived from comparing the property to be valued BB HEYEITER S 2 it
directly with other comparable properties, which have recently AR ERITERLELEMGL -
transacted. However, given the heterogeneous nature of the A AR EMEZEEETER B
properties, appropriate adjustments are usually required to allow BAELEE AR MAFTFL
for any qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be HEZHMETRERCEER 2E L
achieved by the property under consideration. The most significant EZR-WHEAEINREZZERE
impact into this valuation approach is price per square meter/price per KB FEALER -
unit.
18 GOODWILL 18 BHE
2018 2017
—Z2-NEF —ZE—+F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FHT
At 1 January n—H—H 21,720 -
Addition (Note 33) wE (PEE33) 89,019 20,920
Exchange difference [EHZERE 508 800
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 111,247 21,720

SRR BuEEEREARAT



18

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

GOODWILL (Continued) 18 HE(E)
Impairment assessments of Goodwill B R E R
Goodwill acquired through business combination during the year BHE_ZT—+tFR-_ZT—N\F+HA
ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 are allocated to cash generating =T BIEFEEBREBEIKEDN
unit, namely New Fortune Group CGU and BYL Group CGU (see FMEEIEZREELSEM AR
Note 33 for details) respectively, for impairment test. The recoverable BHEEERSEXAEM LB HREER
amount of the New Fortune Group CGU and BYL Group CGU have WMeEFEM (FBE2MMTE33) A
been determined by reference to the value-in-use calculation. TRENR BEEERSES BN
EHREBER S EEBLAATIE
SRENSEGCREARFEMEE -
Exchange
Opening Addition difference Closing
54 RE EXZE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\E+=ZBA=+-H FHET FHET FTAT THET
(Note 33)
(Bi5$33)
Property leasing business - MEREEB—
New Fortune Group CGU WEEBReELEN 21,720 - (198) 21522
Environmental maintenance business - 3R 35 4 2 75 —
BYL Group CGU EHREERSEL BN - 89,019 706 89,725
21,720 89,019 508 111,247

Property leasing business — New Fortune Group (GU

In assessing the value-in-use calculation, references were made to the
valuation of the investment properties and the carrying amount of the
business unit's other assets and liabilities which approximated to their
fair values, excluding any deferred tax liabilities initially recognised on
acquisition relevant to this business unit. Fair values of the properties
were determined based on valuations performed by independent
valuer at year end (See Note 17 for details).

VEZ e Ak e
EELEN

RitEEREEFER B2ERE
MEBEREBEL 2 EMEERA
ERREE (REATERS) T8
FREAZRE EAABAERN YRR
WENETHBEAB - MEZRAFE
TRBB I hEMN FERET 2 AE
MmEE (FBFLHEME7) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

18

GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment assessments of Goodwill (Continued)

Environmental maintenance business — BYL Group (GU

In assessing the value-in-use calculation, references were made to
the calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
plans approved by management covering a forecast period of 5
years. Cash flows beyond the forecast period are extrapolated using
the estimated long-term growth rates. The long-term growth rate of
the CGU does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
environmental maintenance business in which the CGU operates.
The key assumptions applied includes pre-tax discount rate of 14.3%,
annual revenue growth rate of 96% for the first year of projection,
and 2% for the remaining years of the five year budget period and
terminal growth rate of 2%. The revenue growth rate in the first year
of projection was arrived at by taking into account of the expected
renewal of existing service contracts, the committed services contracts
awarded to BYL Group and the successful bidding and execution of
new potential services contracts as at the date of the assessment by
management.

The directors of the Company, to the best of their knowledge
information and belief, are not aware of any indications that an
impairment of the goodwill of both New Fortune Group CGU and
BYL Group CGU is required immediately after the completion of the
business combination and as at 31 December 2018 after considering
the above value-in-use calculation and the nature, prospects, financial
condition and business risks of the respective CGUs.

SRR BuEEEREARAT
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e (&)
BB R ER M ()

REEELE - BERREE
HEELEN

REHMEEREBEFER E2ZRER
[Z BTt fe 4 FEOR EA A 1S 58I (E A B
MATR S RETRAFTE - TERIHALIE M
REmEFE AT R R KR
ZREELBMMRIE R R EB
MR EABMEFNIRREERED
MERHATFHERE-AEANEEZER
REEH AR E143%  HFRAN
S IR R R o696 A I FLAF TE E A
TFE2% K KHEIE R 2% o & F T8 8
B WG R R TS RN E IR ERTE
AEEEEN R EMBEN K TE
TR R B R EGE RS 6 K R ID B 4%
REBESTEERBEL-

RERE L EREEFFEARBES
BReEABVUMNEEREERSE
EFRMRME - BTR  MIISIOR & 5%
RR1&  BARRREEHMAM BER
W WELTNBEEFIRENE
BEBEHTHRER-_Z—N\F+=
A=+ RREZERSELENIE
A ERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 BEREEE
Customer Customer
blacklogs relationships Total
2018 2018 2018
RITAK
EFEN EFBE Bt
—E-N\F —E-N\EF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FAET FAT FAET
Year ended 31 December 2018 #HE=-ZF—N\f
+=A=+—H
ILFE
Opening net book amount H¥BRmEFE - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note) W BERT B2 7] (KizE) 47913 32,742 80,655
Amortisation charge B (2,651) (539) (3,190)
Exchange differences b = 368 248 616
Closing net book amount HRERE FE 45,630 32451 78,081
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-N\F
+t=A=+-8
Cost DN 48,281 32,990 81,271
Accumulated amortisation and R RRE
impairment (2,651) (539) (3,190)
Net book amount BREVFE 45,630 32451 78,081

During the year ended 31 December 2018, amortisation of intangible
assets charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income is HK$3,190,000 (2017: Nil).

BE-Z-/\F+-A=t—HL*HF
- 5@?m£ﬁ”&ﬁn?‘%?ﬂ|§lf\mﬁﬁ/§§

) e

)2 35 453,190,000/ 7T (Z 2 —t4F -
4z
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19

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

The fair values of the customer backlogs of HK$47,913,000 and customer
relationships of HK$32,742,000 acquired through the business combination
of BYL Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 were determined by
directors of the Company, with reference to the valuation report prepared by
CHFT Advisory and Appraisal Limited, an independent valuer.

Customer backlogs represent the total estimated customer contracts that
has been secured and remain to be completed as at the acquisition date.
Customer relationships refer to the long-time business relationship and history
with key customers in Chengdu, Sichuan, the PRC. The fair values of customer
backlogs and customer relationships are determined using multi-period excess
earnings method under the income approach which is widely adopted when
market participants consider current customer contracts and relationships of
a company to be one of the core competence. The key assumptions used in
estimating the fair values of the intangible assets are as follows:

Sales amount (% annual growth rate) 2%
Gross margin (% of revenue) 28%
Discount rate 15.3%

The directors determined that, after having made all reasonable and careful
enquiries, the valuation methodology and key assumptions applied in the
valuation report prepared by the independent valuer, and after considering
the nature, prospects, financial condition and business risks of the underlying
business of the intangible assets, they are not aware of any indication of
impairment of intangible assets as at the acquisition date and as at 31
December 2018.

SRR BuEEEREARAT
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EHREENEBEMAIMEHNEFBER
327420008 THA AR ESET WKL EE
SNEERMESEATHERARMGERAE
BRE-

REREFEHECRIGBEWRE BB
RERHEPANNGEEHE TR RARER
R B AKEE 2 &P &R EREE
RES - REREFAHREFBENRTE
TYRIBRAEE R % Bl E FEREE - ik
NEDEMH2EERA - RRARANRKER
FPAOEBRERRLEF NN —HEWEZ
R AT BV EE 2 AT ERIRANE
ERFMOT

HER(FEREFOL) 2%
EFE (EREB D) 28%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 20

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to

the line items below:

BEHNEINEMTR

TR TANSABERDERR NIE
E

2018 2017
—EBE-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHExT FHETT
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet #HFEEEEBRAIEE
Finance assets at FVPL BBEm AN FEIEZ
Listed securities held for trading HIEEE EMESH - 3,447
Contingent consideration receivables WA RE 6,878 -
Loans and receivables B REKIE
Trade receivables B 5 W IR 12,024 1,955
Deposits and other receivables ZE R E A FEIGRTE 45,975 28,370
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReEFEED 117,635 196,335
Liabilities as per consolidated REEERBXRMYIAR
balance sheet
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost TEEE B A 51 BR Y
HitzmEE
Trade payables =) ANEeE 20,250 17,550
Accruals, provisions and other payables BEEA BER
H At A /IR 47,226 19,459
Amount due to a related company JET — B R B A B3R 3,453 3,621
Consideration payables ERE 113,102 -
Loans from a shareholder xR E 95,043 150,690
Loans from a director of ETMBARZ
certain subsidiaries —REBEX 19,000 45,000
Amount due to a director BN —REEHIE 1,100 1,100
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21 TRADE RECEIVABLES 21 ESEWRFRIE

2018 2017
ZE-N\E | ZT—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Trade receivables B 5 I FIA 12,024 1,955
Loss allowance E e R - -
12,024 1,955

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date is as REZAMETINE FENIERE

follows: DI :

2018 2017
—E-N\F | T tF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHExT FET
0to 30 days 0%230H 8,592 1,955
31 to 60 days 31%260H 3,432 -
12,024 1,955

208 “E-N\FEH BEEEERARAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group's revenue from its Chinese restaurant operations is mainly
conducted in cash or by credit cards. The credit periods granted by
the Group to its customers for its newly acquired environmental
maintenance business and its tenants range from 30 to 90 days. As at
31 December 2018, the Group's trade receivables mainly comprised
credit card receivables in restaurant business and receivables from
the Group's environmental maintenance business. These receivables
were not past due nor impaired and amounted to approximately
HK$12,024,000 (2017: HK$1,955,000). They are related to customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure the
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. As at 31 December 2018, no loss allowance
were made as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, being the
initial adoption of the new standard.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair
values and are denominated in RMB except for HK$825,000 (2017:
HKS$1,815,000) which are denominated in HKS. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying values of trade
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

21

ESEKFRE(£)
REFEPRNEEEERGFTEUNR
RERR#ET - AEERFKBIRE
HEEXFRPREAPRIEMEESR
NF30E208 - R -_ZE—N\E+-A
=t+—H AEENBESERFIEEE
BIREEER 2 {5 AR EWGRIE &R
A ASBIRIG MBS 2 FEUGRIE -
ZERWFIEMESBRITIERE ©
KA B12,0240008 L (ZFE—HF:
1,955,000/ 7T ) © 23T HA N0 f 38 4) R0 &%
HEFBR-

AEEERRAEBY MG LR ESR
LT ERTBIREIEEEE L &Rt
B H 5 e WA B R 2 (8 AR 0 TR B
FEREE R T \FT_A=1—
B BER - N\F+_A=+—
BE-ZF—-—NF—A—RB(BERXK
MFTERIR B R B IR -

Z SRR FIENETDERE QN FERE
WA AR E  HE825000% 7T
(ZZ—E4F 181500078 7T) JHAB T
FHERIN - AEE R FTEE SR AEE
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22 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22 B BANREREMER
E QU
2018 2017
—E-N\E | ZT—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Performance deposits (Note) BHRES (M) 10,257 -
Rental deposits Hekse 19,987 19,834
Utilities deposits NAREES 4,868 5,287
Other deposits Hike 8,005 4,109
Other receivables H fth fE Y50 IB 2,156 -
Prepaid insurance TEfT R 1,505 1,162
Prepayment for advertising and promotion B R R TR SRR 474 1,288
Prepaid rent ENEe 2,072 1,840
Other prepayments H b B 3R 3,801 1,122
Prepayment for consultancy services R TEN RIE (ME27)
(Note 27) - 3,582
53,125 38,224
Less: Non-current portion R IEENERER
— rental deposits —He%e (7,616) (12,351)
— performance deposits (Note) —BHRFES (M) (8,135) -
- prepayment for acquisition of property, — Y E &
plant and equipment HER TR FRIB (921) -
Current portion BNERER 75 36,453 25,873

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other receivable
approximate their fair values and are denominated in HKS, except for

HK$16,991,000 which was denominated in RMB.

SRR BuEEEREARAT

Be  FBA RO R R WK IR BR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22 Re FANRERHEMEK
(Continued) RIE (&)
Note: MiEE:
In accordance with the service contracts with customers and the common RIBERPHRBEE KT E i}"ﬁ%%&é%ﬁ%ﬁ’]
practice in the environmental maintenance industry in the PRC, certain —REH ETEP ERAEEBFRRE
customers request the Group to maintain deposits with them. These deposits ZERERHNIE Eﬁiﬁi”%’ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%A%Eﬁ
will be released and refunded to the Group when the relevant environmental (BER—EZ2=F)RBHRALRETAREER-
maintenance services contract expired, normally in one to three years. The ERETH2ERAEEREI RN EENE
balances are regularly reviewed by management with reference to the historical BN —ZBE-N\FE+-A=+—H #HERZ
default rates or forfeiture rate. No loss allowance were made on these deposits SRESEHEERRS-
as at 31 December 2018.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFITOR 23 ‘A FESTAEBZMNERME
LOSS =3
2018 2017
—E-N\E | ZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Listed securities held for trading, at fair value ~ JA 23 $T§ FIBRZ H1EEE
QiEEEa
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —mﬁfﬁtﬁ2%$§§# - 3,447
Contingent consideration receivable JEW S AR RAB 6,878 -
6,878 3,447

As at 31 December 2017, the fair values of the above listed securities
are determined based on the quoted market bid prices available on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at the end of the reporting period. The
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in
HKS.

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of the contingent consideration
receivable is determined by an independent valuer. Details of the
contingent consideration receivables and key assumptions of valuation
are disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no fair value gain on
financial assets at FVPL (2017: HK$108,000) and gain on the disposal
of financial assets at FVPL of HK$302,000 (2017: HKS$2,206,000) is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

RZE—+F+-_A=+—08" kit
FHEHZ AFAEDREREBARD
BRI MISEABET -
BAFEFABENSREE IS
TCET{E-

REZF-NF+-A=+—8 BK
SRREBZAFEDI BB AEME
E BB HAREREEETREER
BERERE M ISR M E33M I EE -

REBEEZZE—\F+ZA=+—AH1t
FE- ﬁ%,ﬂ%& NERFABRENSRE
EZ AT EWE (ZZF—+4 1108000
BT RHERATEFABRENS
BB E 2 W 253020008 T (ZFE—+
£ 12206000/ 7T ) RéR & 2 H W s &
wR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

24 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 24 BEHEFRRDEE
All industrial properties and residential properties of the Group in Hong REBRBEBZERNMBSBERE
Kong previously classified under investment properties and property, BEMERME WFE LFE TR &
plant and equipment, totaled HK$24,299,000 and HK$7,883,000, FEMED RI4AFT 724,299,000/ 7T &
respectively, were reclassified to non-current assets held for sale 7,883,000/ 7T - DEARE B EE T H
following the entering into sale and purchase agreements between ZEARZE—+FTAT=AR=E
the Group and several third parties on 13 October 2017 and 27 —+tF+—AZt+tHITLEEHZE
November 2017. BB EAFIEHE 2 IR EE -
2018 2017
—EB-N\EFE —E—tF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHExT FHET
At 1 January n—H—H 32,182 -
Transfer from property, plant and EBREME BERHK
equipment (Note 16) (FF3E16) - 7,883
Transfer from investment properties HEBIREWE (KF17)
(Note 17) - 24,299
Disposal e (32,182) -
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H - 32182

As at 31 December 2017, the non-current assets held for sale were
pledged against certain banking facilities of the Group (Note 39). The
pledges were released upon the completion of the sale.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the sale of non-current

assets held for sale was completed.

SRR BuEEEREARAT

RZZE—tF+=-A=+—8 &1E
HEZERBEECHAEELR TR
TTRVE B R (FIRE39) - iZ 3R 1B E
& TR 18 R R o

WE-F—\FT-A=+—BIF
B HER AR AN SR
Ak o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 HERBREEEY
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash at banks RITRE 114,395 194,235
Cash on hand FERE 3,240 2,100
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEEY 117,635 196,335
Maximum exposure to credit risk E=EERR 114,395 194,235
Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank ROTRSRRTERERSXNEHY

deposit rates. Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the

FEROAE -REeRRSFEYN

following currencies: THEEEHE
2018 2017
“E-N\F | ZZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
RMB AR 28,133 13,329
HKS BT 89,502 183,006
117,635 196,335
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

26 BARRMGRE

Number of Nominal value
ordinary of ordinary Share
shares shares premium
EEREA EREREE B 1RE
Thousand HK$'000 HKS$'000
Tk FET FET
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZE—+F
as at 31 December 2017 and +ZHA=+—H8k
31 December 2018 —E-N\F
+ZA=+—H
FREE0OET
ZEBK 10,000,000 100,000 -
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAHE:
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F
—H—H 465,000 4,650 90,326
Issue of ordinary shares by BBRERTERR
placing (Note) (f3E) 93,000 930 145794
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+5F
+=-A=+—H 558,000 5,580 236,120
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F
—A—H 558,000 5,580 236,120
Transfer from share-based B AR R RBERR
payment reserve to share NREREERE
premium (Note 27) Bt m B (FisE27) - - 18,950
At 31 Decernber 2018 RZE-N\F
+=ZA=+—~H 558,000 5,580 255,070

Note:

On 4 January 2017, the Company entered into an agreement for the placing of
up to an aggregate of 93,000,000 new ordinary shares to not less than six places

at a price of HK$1.61 per share.

On 23 January 2017, the conditions set out in the placing agreement was
fulfilled and the placing were completed on the same date, in which 93,000,000
shares were placed to not less than six places at HK$1.61 per share. The net
proceeds of HK$146,724,000 (after deduction of the placing commission and
other expenses from the gross proceeds of HK$149,730,000) were raised from
the placing and credited to the share capital and share premium account of the

Company.

SRR BuEEEREARAT
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27 RESERVES 271 R
Share-based
Capital Exchange payment  Accumulated Statutory
reserve reserve reserve losses Reserve Total
MR 6
REBH
EXGiE EXfE D1 2 ER EERE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 January 2017 RZZ-tF-f-A 4,986 (53) 18,950 (86,173) - (62,290)
Comprehensive income: 2EBA:
Loss attributable toownersof AR IR AEIEER
the Company - - - (56,186) - (56,186)
Other comprehensive income:  EftZ2EKA :
Currency translation differences  EHHMEZE - 3,259 - - - 3,259
Comprehensive income; 2EBA: - 3,259 - (56,186) - (52,927)
Transactions with ownersin BB ANEEB A
their capacity as owners: SREANRS:
Share-based payment (Note 35) AR 13 AERER T3
(Bi5E35) - - 4,478 - - 4,478
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t&
+ZR=+-H 4,986 3,206 23,428 (142,359) - (110,739)

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2018

215



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

27 RESERVES (Continued) 27 f#E (&)
Share-based
Capital Exchange payment  Accumulated Statutory

reserve reserve reserve losses Reserve Total
AR 1R
RERN

EXEE  ERRE  NREE  ZHEE ETHE Eh

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

TEL TEL TAL TAL TEL TEL

At 1 January 2018 R=E-NE-A-A 4986 3206 23428 (142359) - (110739
Comprehensive income: 2EMA:
Loss attributable to ownersof AR EEA AEIEER

the Company - - - (27,260) - (27,260)
Other comprehensive income: Et2EKA :
Currency translation differences S HEZE - (3599) - - - (3599)
Comprehensive income: 2EKBA: - (3599) - (27,260) - (30859)

Transactions with ownersin BB ANEEB AN
their capacity as owners: SHEANRE:
Share-based payment (Note 35) AR D AERER T

(Fit3E35) - - 4565 - - 4565
Lapsed of share options BREAN - - (247) 247 - -
Transfer from share-based ERaNRNHAERN
payment reserve to NHkEE
share premium (Note) Ria sl (M) - - (18950) - - (18,950)
Transfer to statutory reserve BREETHE - - - (331) 650 319
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+ZB=1-H 4986 (393) 879 (169,703) 650 (155,664)
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RESERVES (Continued)

Note:

On 10 May 2013, Choi Fook Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
allotted and issued 75,000 new shares to Century Great Investments Limited
(“Century Great”), which was entirely exchanged to the shares of the
Company upon completion of the reorganisation on 19 November 2013 at
a consideration of HK$75,000 and the services to be provided by Century
Great which include, inter alia, reviewing the Group's business operations
and development and management policies from time to time, devising the
Group's marketing plan, seeking strategic investors for the Group and arranging
regular trainings for directors and members of the senior management for a
term of five full financial years after the listing (“the vesting period”). Century
Great is liable to compensate the Group for all losses and damages resulting
from its failure to provide the abovementioned services at any time during the
vesting period.

Century Great undertakes that within the five full financial years after the listing,
it will not, for each year, sell, or dispose of more than 20% of the entire shares
which are beneficially owned by it upon the listing. Non-vesting condition refers
to the lock-up period for the shares which are taken into account by adjusting
the fair value of the shares so that the amount reflects the discount for the
lock-up period. The shares in Century Great is converted to the shares of the
Company of 24,430,000 shares and are restricted for a period of 5 years.

The fair value of the shares issued in return for services received approximates
the fair value of services received by the Group. The estimate of fair value of
services received was measured based on the discounted cash flow model. The
fair value of the shares issued as at 10 May 2013 as determined by using the
discounted cash flow was approximately HK$18,950,000, discount rate of 15.0%,
lack of control discount of 26.7% and terminal growth rate of 2.8%.

The services received by the Group commenced upon the listing. Consultancy
service fee of HK$18,950,000 was recognised as prepayment which is to
be amortised over the vesting period of 5 years. During the year ended 31
December 2018, HK$3,582,000 amortisation charge of the consultancy service
fee was recognised in “other expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (2017: HK$3,790,000).

Upon the completion of the 5 years service period during the year ended
31 December 2018, the share based payment reserve of HK$18,950,000 was
transferred to share premium.

27
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28 TRADE PAYABLES 28 ESEMNNRE
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as REZAMEYINE S ENFIERER
follows: ST
2018 2017
—EBE-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FHTT
0to 30 days 0%230H 12,492 10,338
31 to 60 days 31%260H 7,595 6,314
61 to 90 days 61290H 163 898
20,250 17,550
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair values Z D REMNFIENREAEM LA TER
and are denominated in HKS. & WIABTTRHE
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ACCRUALS, PROVISIONS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 29 EBIER BREREMEN
DEPOSITS RECEIVED REUREWEZES
2018 2017
—E-NFE | ZZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Accruals, provisions and other payables  FExtE A - BER
H e TR
Accrued wages, salaries and bonuses EHIE HFekiEs 13,380 7,264
Accrued rental expenses EEreMR X 4,515 7,040
Accrued utilities expenses NS R 541 175
Payables for purchases of property, BEWE WEREED
plant and equipment FERTRUIE 13,309 -
Other accrued expenses H > 19,995 12,020
Provision for unutilised annual leave RENBFBEME 1,109 968
Provision for long service payment ARG S BB 1,651 1,261
Total accruals, provisions and other payables — FEETE F - B # K H b JE 1
IR 54,500 28,728
Less: T
Non-current portion — accrued rental expenses FEBNEAEE D — fEFH A& (2,997) (4,500)
Current portion of accruals, provisions and JEETE A - B M A
other payables SRIAR BN EARL 51,503 24,228
Deposits received glize
Deposits received for banquets BWERZES - 41,051
Tenants' deposits received BWHEFES 1,300 1,440
Other deposits received HEfheWize 803 2,739
Total deposits received BUIL S B 2,103 45230
Less: NEaE
Non-current portion — deposits received for JERNERE D — B WEEIE S
banquets - (4,653)
Current portion of deposits received Bz e/ ENEFEE 5 2,103 40,577

The carrying amounts of accruals, provisions and other payables and
deposits received approximated their fair values and are denominated
in HKS, except that an amount of HK$28,565,000 (2017: HKS$3,475,000)

is denominated in RMB.
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30 LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR OF CERTAIN SUBSIDIARIES

30

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

HETHEBARZ-—RESEH

£h
TA

2018 2017
—EB-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current BN A
Loans from a director of certain HETHBRARZ
subsidiaries — Unsecured —HREFER—EEA 19,000 45,000

On 9 May 2017, U Banquet Group Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a loan facility agreement with a director of
certain subsidiaries of which the director has agreed to make available
to the Group from time to time an unsecured loan facility amounting
to HKS$60,000,000 with an interest rate of 4.5% per annum for a
term of 2.5 years from 9 May 2017. As at 31 December 2018, a total
of HK$19,000,000 (2017: HK$45,000,000) was drawn down and the
carrying amounts approximate their fair values, denominated in HKS
and repayable on demand.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, this director had confirmed his
intention not to demand for repayment of the outstanding balance as
at 31 December 2018 and all the fund subsequently remitted to the
Group for coming twelve months from the date of this report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31 EZEMRSBH
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax BRI E ERIEEREHBED
liabilities is as follows: HranT
2018 2017
—E-N\E§ Tt F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FExT FET
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFTISHEE
— Deferred income tax assets to be — 48 5121E A & Uk el HY
recovered after more than 12 months RIEFTIS TR EE (5,705) (5,345)
— Deferred income tax assets to be — #1218 A WUk E A
recovered within 12 months FIEFTSREE (768) -
(6,473) (5,345)
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEEMSHEE:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — ¥ 2E A & U B
recovered after more than 12 months RIEFTISTHAE 23,328 23,051
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — 1351218 A A UL e A
recovered within 12 months RIEFSHaE 20,720 1,718
44,048 24,769
37,575 19,424
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 31 EEFRSHR (&)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during FRRLEMSHEAERBSENES (I
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances At R AP RS EE)
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: LU N
Deferred income tax assets EEFEBEE

Decelerated

tax
depreciation Tax losses Provisions Total
RERERE HEEE B fst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TET TAT TET

At 1 January 2017 R=-F—+t&—HF—H 5126 1448 408 6,982

Credited/(charged) to the consolidated A (R BE)FE

statement of comprehensive income EHEREE (2552) 2113 (376) 815)
At 31 December 2017 and R=Z—+t#F
1January 2018 +T=ZA=+—-BRK
—E-N\E¥—-H—H 2574 3,561 32 6,167
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) L B B BB 2 =)
(P E33) - - 191 191
Charged to the consolidated statement Mk BEHRE2EKEE
of comprehensive income (159) (326) (40) (525)
Exchange difference TE 3 =58 - - 2 2
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE-N\F
+=-—HA=+—H 2415 3,235 185 5835
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise
deferred income tax assets of HK$13,848,000 (2017: HK$11,910,000)
in respect of its losses amounting to HK$83,927,000 (2017:
HKS$72,185,000) that can be carried forward against future taxable
income. The tax losses can be carried forward against future taxable
income.

The retained earnings of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC would
be subject to additional taxation if they are distributed to the holding
companies incorporated outside the PRC. In the opinion of the
directors, these retained earnings, at the present time, are required
for financing the continuing operation and expansion of the Group's
business in the PRC and no distribution would be made in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, no deferred liabilities in respect of
withholding tax on dividend have been provided. As at 31 December
2018, the Group has deferred tax liabilities in respect of withholding tax
on dividend of HK$4,838,000 (2017: Nil).

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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EEFEBHREE (£2)
RIS A E T A B BIS A =
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T —+14F 172185000870 ) B B 2 BT
TRIE&E 1384800087 (ZE—tF:
11,910,000/ 7T ) » i #5518 n] A5 42 A LA
HESH AR R E SRR

iR HA R B SR SN M AR 2 9 PR AR 2 B &
DIRIRBREF - AIAEE+F M BEAR
WRBENBRNEINHIE-ZEZR
B BAIME ZEREBINEABE
CEEBARAEEERERRER
BNES AT eEa BAERERD
B2 o Rt - EE B AR S FE R (e R IR AT
BEBE N N\F+ZA=1+—
H AEEFREBEIHNELHIES
548380008 L (ZE—+HF &) o

223



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M 7% # 7 Jif 7t

31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 31 EEFRSHR (&)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during FRRLEMSHEAERBSENES (I
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances At R AP RS EE)
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: LU N
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFfESHARE
Revaluation Fair value
Accelerated  arising from gains through
tax investments business
depreciation properties  combination Total
EBaf
RENE EEH
MERBERE EEMNER LAFEKE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TRT TAT

At 1 January 2017 R=ZE—+t&—HF—H 3,010 - - 3,010
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) U & B B A &)
(Bt3E33) - 21,802 - 21,802
(Credited)/charged to the (ztAN) Tk atzds
consolidated statement of EHEER
comprehensive income (470) 290 - (180)
Exchange difference E 3 =5 - 959 - 959
At 31 December 2017 and R-ZZE—tF
1 January 2018 +=—A=+—-BK
—E-N\E¥—H—H 2,540 23,051 - 25,591
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) U BBt /& A )
(B3E33) 69 - 20,163 20232
(Credited)/charged to the (5t AN) Ik BirE
consolidated statement of EHERER
comprehensive income (1,341) 1,141 (797) (997)
Exchange difference N EE - (1,593) 177 (1,416)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—N\F
+=—HA=+—H 1,268 22,599 19,543 43,410
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33

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

PROVISION FOR REINSTATEMENT COSTS 32 BEREXEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F | —ZT—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

At 1 January m—H—H 3,451 3332
Unwinding of discount of provision (Note 12) &R B 898537 (FisE12) 56 119
Utilisation A (390) -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8© 3,117 3451
Less: Non-current portion R IEENEREL (1,565) (3,278)
Current portion BVHAER 55 1,552 173

Provision for reinstatement costs is recognised for the present value of
costs to be incurred for the reinstatement of the properties used by the
Group for its Chinese restaurant business operations upon expiration
of the relevant leases. As at 31 December 2018, the Group expected
that the total undiscounted costs required in the future amount to
approximately HK$3,541,000 (2017: HK$3,931,000).

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a) Acquisition of property leasing business
On 16 June 2017, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed
to purchase and the vendor, a third party, conditionally agreed
to sell the entire issued share capital of New Fortune Holdings
Group Limited ("“New Fortune”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
as “New Fortune Group”), together with the loans from the
then shareholder, at a total consideration of RMB76,500,000
(equivalent to HK$87,800,000).

33

BERABERAEENEERE
BRI BEEF R BEEREENA
MIEMEEKNANREMER KT
—N\FE+ZA=1+—8 A&EBEEHK
IRET S B AR AG IR AN AR BE XY /53,541,000
BT (ZF— 1 :3,931,00087T) °

St

@ WEMEREEK
RZE—tF XA+ E &%
B EEHS Bt A%
EEKHREBEMNES (—%
BYE=0)ERERELER
HIEREBBR AR ([HE])
REMBRAR (FHEIHFES
@J)Z%%ﬁaﬁéﬁﬁx$ ERE
BRECER BREAARE
76,500,0007T ( 155 7487,800,0007%5
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M 7% # 7 Jif 7t

33 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(a)

Acquisition of property leasing business (Continued)

On 30 June 2017, upon the fulfillment of the conditions
precedent set out in the sale and purchase agreement, the
Group has completed the above acquisition. As a result of the
acquisition, the Group held a commercial property located
in Xicheng District of Beijing, Mainland China, with a total
gross floor area of approximately 2,389.9 square meters. The
commercial property comprised a whole office floor and
twenty-four basement car parking spaces. The directors consider
the acquisition will be able to generate a stable and constant
stream of rental income to the Group’s new business segment —
Property leasing business.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
the acquisition, the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date.

33

et (&)

(a)

WEMEREEK
(#&)
RNZZE—+tFA=1+H FE
B 19 5 P 8 S0 R AR iR 1R
AREE B TRk Ui o RN
B AEEFA MRS BERDIL
AR —REEET
48 4% T B 7 492,389.9°F 5 oK ° 5%
HAVMERE—EERLARK
ZtHEEFEMN-EER
B WEEAASERNFES S
BB — M E E TR E M
BHHS AR -

THRBER B AIRE 2 A8 R
WS AERFRAEY
ATE-

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FHET

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets BRI BREERFIAREAGZ

acquired and liabilities assumed ERIALHE

Property, plant and equipment ER N 110
Investment properties wEYHE 103,698
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBELFEY 4,728
Deposits received BliEE (4,462)
Accruals, provisions and other payables FERT B - B R H Ath FE T 5B (1,255)
Amounts due to related companies FEAS BREG A B RAR (14,117)
Current income tax liabilities BVERFR 1S I BB (20)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE (21,802)
Total identifiable net assets at fair values BRAVEFENTERNEEFELSE 66,880
Purchase consideration BERE 87,800
Goodwill (Note 18) A& (KfEE18) 20920
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

33 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 33 EBEH(E)
(a) Acquisition of property leasing business (Continued) @ WEMEREXERK
(#&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the above acquisition MEMWBECReRESTN
is as follows: T
2017
—tF
HK$'000
FHET
Cash outflow on the acquisition WEBEENESRH
—Total purchase consideration settled in cash R eENNEEERE 87,800
— Cash and cash equivalents in the —-RARERBARNREEMREE
subsidiary acquired =47 (4,728)
83,072
Acquisition-related costs of HK$407,000 have been charged to BHE_Z—+F+-H=+—H
other expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive LEFE - U0 B AR RA RK Z5407,0007
income for the year ended 31 December 2017. TEFFAGZEEEWRERE A
M o

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

The revenue and net profit contributed by the newly acquired
subsidiaries and recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income since 30 June 2017 are HK$2,513,000
and HK$1,043,000 respectively.

Had New Fortune Group been consolidated from 1 January
2017, the Group's consolidated statement of comprehensive
income would show pro-forma revenue of HK$370,817,000 and
loss for the year of HK$57,596,000.

B ERABERAERME T
AT HIRL

BB AR MEMEAZE
—tEFRNAZTABRGEEEE
WS FRIER 2 W AL 7 R =
2,513,000 7T 5. 1,043,00078 7T ©

BRERHEEBR=_Z—tF—A
—HRBREAUAR  BIASELR

AEERERNFABE R R
B 1815 5 Bl /4370,817,00078 7T &
57,596,000/ JT °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

33 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of environmental maintenance business

On 9 February 2018, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Purchaser”) and Mr. Wan Zhong (the “Vendor”) entered
into a sale and purchase agreement in which the Purchaser
has conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Vendor has
conditionally agreed to sell 51% of the entire issued share capital
of BYL Property Holdings Group Limited, ("BYL"), at aggregate
consideration of RMB132,600,000 (subject to adjustments)
(equivalent to approximately HK$154,106,000). BYL and its
subsidiaries (collectively as “BYL Group”) is principally engaged
in the environmental maintenance business in the PRC. The
completion of the agreement is subject to certain conditions
precedent.

On 22 October 2018, upon the fulfillment of the conditions
precedent set out in the sale and purchase agreement, the
Group has completed the above acquisition. As a result of
the acquisition, the Group expands its business scope to
environmental maintenance business in the PRC which, the
directors of the Company believe, will enjoy a sustainable
growth in the future.

The following table summaries the consideration paid for
the acquisition, the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date.

SRR BuEEEREARAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

33 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b)

33 EBEH(E)

Acquisition of environmental maintenance business ) WBREHEBEK
(Continued) (#&)
2018
—Z2-N\F
HK$’000
TET

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets

BRI EERAEREZE

acquired and liabilities assumed BREEHE

Plant and equipment TR 5= K 5 27,867
Intangible assets (Note 19) mZEE (M) 80,655
Deferred income tax assets BEFTE R EE 122
Amount due from related companies JE U BE B A B FRIE 540
Trade receivables B 5 B F IR 31,897
Contract assets BHEE 14,705
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e - B IR K E b FEWGRIE 22,456
Cash and cash equivalents RehkREeEED 2,841

Trade payables Z S ENIE (12,544)
Accruals, provisions and other payables FERTE A - B R E A 5RIE (23,060)
Current income tax liabilities BVEARR ST BB (11,099)
Deferred income tax liabilities BREFREMAE (20,163)
Total identifiable net assets at fair values RAFEHEZABRAIEEFEERE 114,217

Non-controlling interest FEPERR M (55,966)

58,251

Purchase consideration BERE

— Consideration paid —B2FRE 41,875

— Consideration payables —JERRAE 52,163

— Contingent consideration payables (Note (i) — s ARAE (BTREG) ) 60,068
- Contingent consideration receivable (Note (ii)) — RIS AR B (B EEG) (6,836)
Goodwill (Note 18) 2 (M5E18) 89,019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

33 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of environmental maintenance business

(Continued)

Note:

(i) At the acquisition date, other than the agreed consideration
of RMB79,560,000 (equivalent to HK$94,038,000), contingent
consideration payables of RMB53,040,000 (equivalent to
HK$60,068,000) was recognised and shall be settled within seven
business days upon the fulfilment of certain payment conditions
as stipulated in the sale and purchase agreement.

(if) In accordance with the sale and purchase agreement, the Vendor
irrevocably and unconditionally warrants and guarantees to
the Purchaser that the audited profit of the BYL Group for the
three financial years ending 31 December 2020 as stated in the
audited consolidated financial statements of the BYL Group
for the underlying years shall not be less than the total sum of
RMB94,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$118,125,000)
(the “Guaranteed Amount”). If the audited profit is less than
the Guaranteed Amount, the Vendor will pay the Purchaser a
compensation based on the formula prescribed in the sale and

purchase agreement.

At 22 October 2018, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable is determined by a professional
valuation conducted by an independent valuer, at RMB6,036,000
(equivalent to HK$6,836,000) using probability-weighted scenario
analysis and with reference to a discount rate of 4.3%. The fair
value of the contingent consideration receivable is considered as
a level 3 measurement and the movement is presented in Note

3.3(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

33 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 33 EBEH(&E)
(b) Acquisition of environmental maintenance business b) WERRRHEZEER
(Continued) (4&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the above acquisition B E 2 RS R E AT
is as follows: T
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FET
Cash outflow on the acquisition WEEEAMIRER
—Total purchase consideration settled in cash —NBReENNEEERE 41,875
— Cash and cash equivalents in the —RETIBEM B RRIMIRE &
subsidiaries acquired ReEEY (2,841)
39,034

Acquisition-related costs of HK$1,396,000 have been charged to
other expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Goodwill mainly represents the reputation and future potential
growth of the acquired subsidiaries for providing wide array
of cleaning and environmental maintenance services for local
government authorities in the PRC. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

The revenue and net profit contributed by the newly acquired
subsidiaries and recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income since 22 October 2018 are
HK$31,938,000 and HK$4,654,000 respectively.

Had BYL Group been consolidated from 1 January 2018, the
Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income
would show pro-forma revenue of HK$516,921,000 and loss for
the year of HK$6,520,000.

BE-_Z—)\F+-_A=+—HItF
- W BB B RARK AN1,396, 00078 T E 5T A
GeErmRERENEMAY -

FETEEWENBARRTEE
BUT# B Rt S BB R MR F &R
BB E N ARREAE K- RHC
RBEERAETME AR

FUENBARMERKAEZZ—N
FTAZTZHRRGE 2ERGER
MR 2 Was K 4B F 5 51l /531,938,000
T N4,654,00078 JC ©

BEBBHREER_Z—N\F—A—
HEREAMFAR AAEEGEEE
W a3 B F N E W R E 1B S 5 7B
7$516,921,0007% 7T 56,520,000 7T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT 34 SZESHEREBRME

(@) Cash generated from/(used in) operations @ REMSE/(FFA)RE
2018 2017
ZB-N\NF | ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHT
Loss before income tax FRFTIS IR E 18 (23,279) (55,307)

}.

Adjustments for: P

— Depreciation of property, plant and — W% BB REETE (K

equipment (Note 16) 16) 15,524 23,900
— Finance costs (Note 12) — ISR (M5E12) 1,993 2178
— Finance income (Note 12) — BB (FI5E12) (864) 615)
— Amortisation of consultancy service — B RIS E A
fee (Note 27) (PFI&E27) 3,582 3,790
~Share-based payment expenses — AR BEROMNREL
(Note 35) (Pi&E35) 4,565 4,478
— Forfeiture of contract liabilities/ —RkEHEaE
deposits received (Note 7) BddEE (H&E7) (1,153) (862)
— Amortisation of intangible assets — R EEHE (FIE19)
(Note 19) 3,190 -
— Gain on disposal of property, —HEWE WEREH#HZ
plant and equipment (Note 7) Wz (PFEE7) (206) (295)
— Fair value gain of investment —REWME N ERE
properties (4,565) (1,094)
— Impairment of property, plant and —ME BERERERE
equipment (Note 16) (MI5E16) 2,831 9,369
- Gain on disposal of financial assetsat ~ — & &R A FEFF AR
fair value through profit or loss T RE E 2 W (302) (2,206)
—Fair value gain of financial assets at —RATEIAERT
fair value through profit or loss TREE A FEYR - (108)
Operating loss before changes EEECEHINKCEBE
in working capital 1,316 (16,772)
Changes in working capital: EEEDH
— Trade receivables —E%JEWTAIE 22,069 38
— Deposits, prepayments and —&e FENFIER
other receivables A JiE W 5k I8 5,881 4,217
~Trade payables — B SR 5IE (9,941) 3,905
— Accruals, provisions and other —EFtEBR BEX
payables A JE - FRIE 2,656 (3,505)
— Deposits received —BiLE (3,282) 12,999
— Provision for reinstatement —B1EREE (390) -
- Amount due from/to related — P e 1~ A it
companies R aEIFIA 538 (10,544)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations £ FT15,/ (FTA) R & 18,847 (9662)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

(9

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the principal

non-cash transactions were:

(i) Amortisation of consultancy service fee charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the year amounted to approximately HK$3,582,000 (2017

HK$3,790,000) (See Note 27).

(i) Share-based payment expenses of HK$3,390,000 (2017:
HK$3,043,000) and HK$1,175,000 (2017: HKS1,435,000)
granted to consultants and directors and certain
employees, respectively are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the year.

3 HREREREBRMETE (F)

(b)

_+ Etﬁ? IE#
ReX%H:

) FR BEGEEZEKZ
FINBRAER RSB A
4 49 /43,582,00078 7T ( =
T — 4 4F 1 3,790,000/ 7T )
(RMiFE27) ©

(i) BTFERMNEERETE
B G BEROMR
7 X 5 51l £3,390,000/% T
(=T — 5 13,043,000
78) B1,17500058 7T (=&
— 4 4F 11,435,000 7T )
ZERTRERD B AL

ArEBETRNG-e
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from (0 REGEEBEREXRT H
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: EM¥E- -BERRZEZHR
BRERE:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Net book amount (Note 16) BREDFE (MizE16) 174 -
Gain on disposal of property, LEME  BE KRB WS
plant and equipment (Note 7) (F3E7) 206 295
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEE- l#b%j B3
plant and equipment FriS sk 380 295
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34 NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS STATEMENT 34 #HZKEBERERME (£)

(Continued)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing d RMEITBEENEEY
activities BRINT :
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements RENEF| & FT R AR B TS T RE
in net debt for each of the periods presented. REBFEEH 29
2018 2017
—e-N\F | —2tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) ReRIReEEY (HiE25) 117,635 196,335
Loans from a shareholder (Note 38) A% R E 7 (FIFE38) (95,043) (150,690)
Loans from a director of certain ETMEBERARIz —REFER
subsidiaries (Note 30) (BffE30) (19,000) (45,000)
Net cash ReF8E 3,592 645
Finance
lease Finance Bank Bank
liabilities lease  borrowings  borrowings  Loanfroma
due liabilities due for due for director
Cashand cash no later duelater ~ repayment  repayment of certain  Loansfroma
equivalents  than1year  thanlyear within1year  after1year  subsidiaries  shareholder
—£R -£f T
HEm HEm R-%R R-5% WELH
ReR REHE REHE HHEEN HHEEN Z-%
REZEN 8k B8R  BROBR  BAEX  EBER  RRER
HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK000 HKS000
TEL TEL TERL TEL TEL TERL TEL
Asat 1 January 2017 W=2-tE-A-H 298,604 198 207 20650 23474 - 280387
Cash (outlows)/infows,net R (i) /WA F8 (101966) (189) (20 (22650) (23474 45000 (129697)
Foreign exchange adjustments SMEZ% (303) - - - - - -

Asat 31 December2017and K=t

1 January 2018 TZA=1+-8RK
ZE-N\%-A-H 196,335 - - - - 45000 150,690
Cash outflows ReR (77851) - - - - (26000) (55,647)
Foreign exchange adjustments SMEEE (849) - - - - -

Asat31December2018  R=B-N\E
+ZB=1-H 117,635 - - - - 19,000 95,043
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (“Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Company's shareholders
on 19 November 2013 for the primary purpose of providing
eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company and to motivate, attract and retain the eligible participants
whose contributions are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include
any employees, any executives, non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), advisors, consultants of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (excluding options
lapsed pursuant to the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company) must not exceed 10% of the issued shares of the Company.
The total number of shares issued and to be issued to each eligible
participant under the Scheme in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the issued shares of the Company unless approved in
advance by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

Any option to be granted under the Scheme to a director, chief
executive officer or substantial shareholder of the Company or to any
of their respective associates must be approved by all independent
non-executive directors of the Company (excluding independent non-
executive director who is the grantee). In addition, any option to be
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or to any of their respective associates which
will result in the shares issued and to be issued in excess of 0.1% of the
issued shares or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000 within
any 12-month period is subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.

The offer of a grant of options under the Scheme may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer and by payment of HK$1.00 as
consideration for the grant of an option. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period
as to be determined and notified by the directors to each grantee, but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant
of option.

35

BRERE
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HEMBARERPBERIANLR
BEEZABERSEE GHENAERS
BEBFEAR R RE NSRRI
EREE - EMHITRIERITES (B
EEMFATES) BRREHAA-
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e R BB ER (KNG RARE A
AR BRI KRR
fet) R R A2 BT #910% © A
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B ETRETRITRNDBETSE
BARBEEITRODM% FRIFEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

35 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35 BRESE(Z)
The Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten years FEBBEARNR LT AR+
commencing on the listing date of the Company. The exercise price is NEMREM - TEEREEETE A
determined by the directors and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the TRERUTEE &EE  (REEH
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's BREZANZA (ARRS B )BT
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant of an option, BEBRERMIARTRG 2 HHE
which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the (NEEREBEREZ O 2 HAT R ER
Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations 5 BB BIREMFI AR RRD
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of ZFWTE RV R BN EE
grant of an option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's shares.
Details of the movement of the share options under Share Option BRETESIET 2 EREZHF BN
Scheme are as follows: T
2018 2017
—B-N\E¥ “T—tF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price in pricein
HKS per HKS
share Number per share Number
g ¥
THE TR fE
BhRET ] BRET L
At January R—A 199 11,600,000 - -
Granted during the year ERRE - - 199 11,600,000
Forfeited during the year FRRIK - (560,000) - -
Lapsed during the year FRXE - (240,000) - -
At 31 December WtZRA=+—H 199 10,800,000 1.99 11,600,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, 3,240,000 (2017: Nil) outstanding options
granted under the Scheme were exercisable (2017: Nil). Terms of share
options at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

35 BRESE(£E)
RZE—NF+=-RA=+—8 &2
T8 13,240,000 ( ZZ—+4F ) ik
TEBREE FITHE(ZZE—+F:
M) NS R ERESFED

T
Exercise
price
per share Number of share options
BRITEE BREHE
HKS 2018 2017

BT | ZB-N\E | _T—LF

17 May 2018 to 17 May 2027 —E-\FRA+tAE
ZE-t+FAAT+A
17 May 2019 to 17 May 2027 “T-AFRA+LHE
—“Z-+FRA+EH
17 May 2020 to 17 May 2027 —T-ZFRAt+tHE
ZE-+FAHTEHA

1.99 3,240,000 3,480,000

1.99 4,320,000 4,640,000

1.99 3,240,000 3,480,000

1.99 10,800,000 11,600,000

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company offered to
grant two consultants, several directors and employees of 8,000,000,
2,400,000 and 1,200,000 share options respectively of HK$0.01 each in
the capital of the Company on 17 May 2017 (“2017 Grant").

REE-Z—tF+=-A=+—HL
FE ARRIAMEER - BETESK
EEDRREARTR_E—+tFH
A++tBRAGEFREBEOETZ
8,000,000 * 2,400,00017 K 1,200,00017 &
([ ZE—tF/H]) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

35 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35 BRERE(E)
The valuation was based on a Binomial Model with the following data HERE ZEXEX A TSR R R
and assumptions: HETE
2017 Grant
—E—tF
&
Fair value of share options ElE 2 A THE 12,094,000
Closing share price at grant date AEL BB W AR E 1.98
Exercise price T (B 1.99
Annual risk free interest rate FEERARFE 1.39%
Expected option life TE HA RS AR FE o HR 10years + &
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B % 0%
Expected volatility TEHRZ B) % 52.5%
During the year ended 31 December 2018, HK$3,390,000 (2017: REE_Z-NF+_A=+—H
HK$3,043,000) share-based payment expenses granted to consultants IEFEE - HTREBOARG SER
and HK$1,175,000 (2017: HK$1,435,000) share-based payment 07 23,390,000 7T (Z T — 4
expenses granted to certain directors and employees were included 30430008 L) RETETERRIER
in “other expenses” and “employee benefits expenses” of the B LA RR (7 AR B BB 21,175,000
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, respectively. 7T (ZZ—+45F 1 1435000787 ) 9 BllET
AfRe2ERERE T [EHMH X
RMEERAALZ] -
36 CONTINGENCIES 36 HAEIR

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31

December 2018 (2017: same).

SRR BuEEEREARAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

37 COMMITMENTS 37 A
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) KEHERIE
The Group leases various restaurant properties and equipment REBRBET RS EHER
under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease IR EZIEAE Y KRR %
agreements are between two and four years, and majority of EHEWRRA_EME - KE
lease arrangements are renewable at the end of the lease period DG BRI AT B RI2 1R TR
with either pre-set increment rate or market rate to be agreed hab b da e gt o thal: Dk
with landlords. tEERFUAELSE -
The operating leases of certain restaurant properties also subject ETEEMENKEHEREK
to turnover rent, which will be based on a certain percentage of Re¥EL NS EEHSR
revenue of the operation being undertaken therein pursuant to BEMAETAR BRI
the terms and conditions as stipulated in the respective rental WEEG 2 W —E B D LE
agreements. As the future revenue of these restaurants could H o MRS EE R R e
not be accurately determined as at the balance sheet date, the ERESEE BERET IS
relevant contingent rent have not been included. YRR S RS o
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- RIET ARG S HE RN Y
cancellable operating leases in respect of properties and FREBEARRSEEE S EEE
equipment are as follows: LUNE
2018 2017
—E-N\F | ZE—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
No later than 1 year TBR—F 62,590 74,209
Later than 1 year and BR—FETERATF
no later than 5 years 63,250 54,672
125,840 128,881
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

37 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 37 EIE(E)
(a) Operating lease commitments (Continued) @ REHERE(E)
The future aggregate lease payments under optional operating BB R B ST S RS2
leases in respect of properties are as follows: RARMERNFAEZEOT
2018 2017
—E-N\F | ZZT—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Later than 1 year and BR—FETERRT
no later than 5 years 76,503 117,766
Later than 5 years BRAFE 13,626 5,554
90,129 123,320
(b) Operating lease receivables (b)) ERKLHEENRIE
The Group leases out certain commercial buildings under non- REBRE TGS S HE R
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are BOEETEERE BN T
between one to two years, and the majority of lease agreements —E2F AEHEHEEEHE
are renewable at the end of the lease period at market rate. AT BRAE RIB IR TI5 L3R T LA
EFEE
The future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable TAREEE 2 EEE T EES A
operating leases in respect of the commercial buildings RIREYMENEEREREYCR
classified as investment properties are as follows: REEAERIENT
2018 2017
—E-N\F | ZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
No later than 1 year TIBR—F 3,075 9
(c)  The Group did not have any significant capital commitment as (0 R=T-N\F+=A=1+—8"
at 31 December 2018 (2017: same). AR AL B RAESE

“E—LFAER) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38 ARG
Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has the B B Al B s B AR R EE
ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise control or significant influence BETS S g e R R AT R R R S pE AN &
over the Group in making financial and operating decisions, or vice AEE ZHARREREREHA K
versa. Related parties may be individuals (being members of key 2NN - B T Al R EA (BN E2E R
management personnel, significant shareholders and/or their close AB FERERHEEARRENK
family members) or other entities and include entities which are under B EMER  BIEX AREEE
the significant influence of related parties of the Group where those (BEANEXRZENER -WERT
parties are individuals. Parties are also considered to be related if they X ARG ARG R AEREE
are subject to common control.
(a) Related parties @) EBEER

The directors of the Company are of the view that the following RRAREERBATRRHRE

companies were considered related parties that had transactions REREREEF RS AEHRE

or balances with the Group during the year: Rl T -

Name Relationship with the Group

BE LB BE A S BB 1R

Mr. Sang Kanggiao Controlling shareholder and chairman of the Board of director

EREBEE TRBRRFEEEER

Mr. Xu Wenze Controlling shareholder and executive director

FFOE A ERIRRRNITES

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Director of certain subsidiaries of the Group

REZFEE rEEBETHEBARIES

Guorun Construction Group Co. Ltd.

BHEREEARAR]

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38 BABAERS (£)
(b) Transactions with related parties () BEABEBLTNRS
Except for the transactions disclosed elsewhere in this report, FRBRAREE I DT E
the Group had the following significant transactions with its LRGN ANEE H B H B T AT
related parties during the year: BUATERZS:
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FET
Interest expense to a shareholder S FREMFSHAXZ
(Note (c)(iii)) (B EE i) 853 233
Interest expense to a director of TR TETHWEARK
certain subsidiaries (Note (c)(iv)) —HREENFEMAEZ
(P @) 1,084 1,309
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

() Balances with related parties (c)

The Group had the following balances with related parties:

(M)

(ii)

Amount due to a related company

MBEXS (&)

SLBARE 77 MY A B
752 (B BB 05 A A T A

(i) FEN—EBEHLA

2018 2017
—EB-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Non-trade payable to a related FEA — el R B X &)
company: IEESHIE

— Guorun Construction Group —BEHREREEBR AR

Co. Ltd 3,453 3,621

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, payable to a related
party is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The carrying amount of amount due to a related
party approximated its fair value and is denominated in
HKS.

RZB-NFR-_FT—t
FH-RA=+—RH EfH
— A BB 77 IR B IR
B NAEERKE
B JEN — I RE R T 50R
MEREEZEE A FENR
&= WAETEHE.

Amount due to a director (i) MEf—EEEFHE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$'000 HKS'000
THET FAET
Amount due to a director Bt —REFEFIE
— Mr. Xu Wenze —FBEE A 1,100 1,100

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, amount due to a
director is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The carrying amount of amount due to a
director approximate its fair value and is denominated in
HKS.

RoZ-\FR-F—+
F+-F=+—8 8l
—REFRERMIER
%8 RAE EEHEE-
R — & E BB R
EEEATEIE B
T
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

Balances with related parties (Continued)

(i)

Loans from a shareholder

38

BEAERS (&)
(0 ERREEESHIEERR (2
(i) REE

2018 2017

—Z2-N\F —tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Loans from a shareholder R R E 95,043 150,690
On 1 November 2016, the Company and Mr. Sang RZE—RFE+—A—H KAAFHE
Kanggiao, entered into a loan facility agreement under EREREFTC—BERRE R

which Mr. Sang Kanggiao has agreed to make available
to the Company from time to time an unsecured loan
facility amounted to HK$300,000,000 with an interest
rate of 4.5% per annum. As at 31 December 2018, a total
of HK$95,043,000 (2017: HK$150,690,000) were drawn
down. The carrying amounts of loans from a shareholder
approximate their fair values, denominated in HKS$ and
repayable on demand.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date in March 2019
the Group further drew down a total of HK$50,000,000
loans from the shareholder. Mr. Sang Kanggiao had
confirmed his intention not to demand for repayment of
the outstanding balances as at 31 December 2018 and all
the fund subsequently remitted to the Group for coming
twelve months from the date of this report.

SRR BuEEEREARAT

Bt 2FESELERBETEHHARR
FR 4 — 55 5 %300,000,00058 7T * G FI| &

BaswH IR ERRE - R =T — N\
F+=-HB=+—8 " # 95043000
T (ZZF—+4%F: 150690000/ 7T) 2

RECBRRERNEEERELAFE
HE B TTAHEA AR ERIEE

%iElfé T-NF=A £&

— Mk % 7 BUAB $£50,000,0007%
ZER ZESEERR BEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38 BEEAERB (&)
(c) Balances with related parties (Continued) (0 ERREEESHIEERR (2

(iv) Loans from a director of certain subsidiaries (i) ZTFHELEH—

EEENEF
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TET FHET

Loans from a director of certain ETHBARN —RESEH

subsidiaries BR 19,000 45,000

As disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 9 May 2017, the Group entered into a loan
facility agreement with a director of certain subsidiaries
in which the director has agreed to make available to the
Group, a subsidiary of the Company, from time to time an
unsecured loan facility amounted to HK$60,000,000 with
an interest rate of 4.5% per annum for a term of 2.5 years.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in January 2019,
the Group further drew down a total of HK$15,000,000
loans for capital expenditure of existing shop renovation
and new shop decoration. This director has confirmed
that he will not demand for repayment of the outstanding
balances as at 31 December 2018 and all the fund
subsequently remitted to the Group for a period of twelve
months from the date of this report.

U BANQUET GROUP HOLDING LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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SERETHBARN—FZE
EIIVEFRREHE B 7%
EEORETHMOAER (AR
AM—RENE AR RESEA
60,000,000/ JT + F F| & 54.5%H)
EEAERGE  BE2SF-

REZEBB R_T—NLF—
A AEBEE-FTRERRAH
150000008 L2 B - EAIRE
EHEM LG HEECER
X ZEBFCWR 84A®RER
HE+—EASMEAN BB Te
BREEN_Z—\F+_-A
—t+—HOKEEEHRIEER
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 38 BBAXRS (&)
(d) Key management compensation d FTEEBEASHMHM
Key management personnel are those persons having authority TEEBABEERLBEAE
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the BB =E RIEHIAREEFEH
activities of the Group. During the year, key management AL RERN FTE2EEAER
includes three (2017: three) executive directors and one (2017: BZ2(ZFE—tF:=Z8)H
one) senior management. The remuneration paid or payable to TEER—EZaREEE (=%
key management for employee services is shown below: —tF:—F) BNRENEE
E1E A B R B RISHFBHF a0
T
2018 2017
—E-N\NF | ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits B ¥ & 28 K& F| 2,795 2,552
Employer's contribution to B ERAKRSFTEIHK
pension scheme 72 71
Share-based payment expenses LARR 19 /5 EERE 0 1T 50 =2 712 642
3,579 3,265
The remuneration of key management fell within the following FTEBTEAEBNTFHEENT
bands:

Number of individuals

A

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF

Remuneration bands: N E
Nil = HK$ 1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 4 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %: & M # # 7 It 7F

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total banking facilities of
HK$14,000,000 (2017: HK$29,000,000) available for use, of which
HK$11,086,000 (2017: HK$11,086,000) was utilised for letters of bank
guarantee for rental and utility deposits. The unutilised portion
amounted to HK$2,914,000 (2017: HK$17,914,000).

EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

(i) As disclosed in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
in March 2019, the Group further drew down loans from a
shareholder, totaling HK$50,000,000 to bridge the liquidity
requirement for settlement of consideration payables.

(i) Asdisclosed in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
in January 2019, the Group further drew down a total of
HK$15,000,000 loans from a director of certain subsidiaries
for financing anticipated renovation of existing shops and
decoration of a new shop.

39

40

RITAE

R N\FE+-_A=+—0 &&£H
Al A AV ERTT L& & &t 414,000,000
7 70 ( = Z — £ 4 £ 29,000,000/ 7T )
H F111,086,0008 T (ZF— £ 4F:
11,086,000/ 70) AR & R A AR
B ZRITERE - KBBE S A
291400078 7T, ( =& —+4F : 17,914,000
EIL) °

HERREE

()  HAERE B IS SRR T T2 AT I
B R-ZE-NF=R ~%H
i — 2[R IR R HEERAB 250,000,000
B BRI ERENRER
HBERBES -

(i) LS MR 2178
BRZZE-NEF—A X5E
E—FRETHEBATESRR
& 1500000078 L2 ER ATE
HIR A S BN S I AR R
HES-
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41

SUBSIDIARIES N HERF
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December UTARZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H
2018: TEMBAREE:
Country/ Particulars
place of Date of of issued Interest  Principal
Company name incorporation incorporation share capital held activities
NEER A L AR A & ERTRAFE Fiss TEEH
AR/ th%
Directly held subsidiaries
ERGAMEAF
YuYan Group (HK) Investment  British Virgin Islands 1 March 2013 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
Limited of US$1 each
BEEE (FR)ERDA RERLES —T-=F 10000 & B E E REERK
=R—H 1ETHEBR
YuYan Group Trading Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 1 March 2013 1 ordinary share 100%  Investment holding
of USS1 each
BEEEESARNA ABRAHS —Z-=5=A-B REKREE REZR
1ETHEBR
YuYan Group Distribution British Virgin Islands 1 March 2013 T ordinary share 100%  Investment holding
Limited of USS1 each
BEEERBARAA RBRLES “E-=F-A-H 1REREBEIETH REZR
gl
YuYan Group Wedding Limited ~ British Virgin Islands 1 March 2013 T ordinary share 100%  Investment holding
of USST each
BEEEERARAF RERAHS —E-Z5=R—H REREEIETH REER
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

21 MEBAT(E)

Country/ Particulars
place of Date of of issued Interest  Principal
Company name incorporation incorporation share capital held activities
DREH AL L AR A & ERTRAFE FisER TEER
BX/th%
Kind Access Development British Virgin Islands 23 July 2014 T ordinary share 100%  Investment holding
Limited of USST each
Kind Access Development EBRUHE —T-mE REREEIETH REER
Limited tA=+=H i
Wild South Limited British Virgin Islands 4 Noverber 2016 1 ordinary share 100%  Investment holding
of USST each
Wild South Limited RBREIES —E-NF RS REEIRTH RERK
+—AmA gl
New Fortune Holdings Group ~ British Virgin Islands 17 November 2016 1 ordinary share 100%  Investment holding
Limited of USS1 each
WEEREEERAF RBRAEHS “ERF IREBREEIETH RERK
+—A++H LBk
Indirectly held subsidiaries
BEFENELR
U Banquet Group Limited Hong Kong 18 June 2010 100 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
EEEEBRAA 30 —B-TF 100A% & 3B AR RERK
AATNE
Choi Fook Holdings Limited Hong Kong 25 June 2009 1,075,003 ordinary 100%  Investment holding
shares
MRERERAR 30 “BENF 1,075,003 & 18 RERK
~NAZT+AAE
Step Up Corporation Limited Hong Kong 2 December 2005 3,000,000 ordinary 100%  Restaurant operations
shares and licence holding
ERARAT BA —TThF 3,000,0008% & % EREBREREE
+ZAZH
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41

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

21 MEBAT(E)

Country/ Particulars
place of Date of of issued Interest  Principal
Company name incorporation incorporation share capital held activities
DREH =LA AR A & ERTRAFE Fisgs TEEH
X/
Million Talent Investment Hong Kong 4 November 2006 4,000,000 ordinary 100%  Restaurant operations
Limited shares and licence holding
BRREBRATA B 3 YAN:2 4,000,000/ & 1 i BEERLERER
T—AWmA
Choi Fook Seafood Restaurant  Hong Kong 9 January 2002 800,000 ordinary 100%  Restaurant operations
Limited shares and licence holding
PREEEXERAR 30 “BE_F 800,000 & 1 A BEXBREREE
—RANA
Vast Rainbow Limited Hong Kong 16 August 2007 5,000,000 ordinary 100%  Restaurant operations
shares and licence holding
EBYERRA 30 “BRLF 5,000,0008% & A BEFELERER
NA+7<A
Elite Rainbow Corporation Hong Kong 27 March 2009 100 ordinary shares 100%  Restaurant operations
Limited and licence holding
BYARAF B35 “ZTNEZR 100REBER EEEB R EREE
~++H
Smiling Profit Limited Hong Kong 11 December 2009 100 ordinary shares 100%  Restaurant operations
and licence holding
BYARRA EE —ETNE 1008 & Ak EEXBREREE
+ZA+—-AH
Choi Fook Royal Banquet Hong Kong 6 July 2009 100 ordinary shares 100%  Restaurant operations
Limited and licence holding
VREZHARRA B —ETNF 100A & A% BRERLERER
T ARH
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

21 MEBAT(E)

Country/ Particulars
place of Date of of issued Interest  Principal
Company name incorporation incorporation share capital held activities
DREH =LA AR A & ERTRAFE Fisgs TEEH
X/
Indirectly held subsidiaries
(Continuea)
BESEMELR (£)
Good Fortress Inc Limited Hong Kong 11 December 2012 100 ordinary shares 100%  Restaurant operations
and licence holding
EBEAERAT 30 k3 100 & 3B A BEFELERER
+ZA+-H
Great Business (China & HK) Hong Kong 17 April 2012 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Sales of furniture and
Trading Limited fixtures
¥ (PE)EHBERAR  &A “T-CF 10,0008 & & AR HEGRMNETEE
mA+tH
Modern Management Hong Kong 26 April 2013 4 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
(Restaurant) Limited
RRER (HR)BRAR  FA —E-=fmA ARERR REER
iy NS
Smart Award Limited Hong Kong 23 April 2012 10,001 ordinary shares 100%  Sales of frozen food
("Smart Award") and high value
dried food
BEEBRAR (X)) B “TCF 1000188 & AR HELRRMK
mMA=-+=H BEELE
General Corporation Limited Hong Kong 16 August 2012 10,001 ordinary shares 100%  Sales of fresh
(‘General Corporation”) vegetables
EEEBR AR (DEE]) B —E-CF 100018 & AR HEMBRK
NA+RA
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41

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

21 MEBAT(E)

Country/ Particulars
place of Date of of issued Interest  Principal
Company name incorporation incorporation share capital held activities
DREH AL L AR A & ERTRAFE FisER TEER
BX/th%
U Weddings Studio Limited Hong Kong 26 April 2013 T ordinary share 100%  Provision of wedding
services
BEBYARRA 0 —E2-=F REBR REERRYE
MA=17xA
Billion Treasure Property Hong Kong 24 October 2007 3,200,000 ordinary 100%  Lease of investment
Development Limited shares properties
EXMEEREBRAF 30 it 5 o2 3,00,0008% & 3 % REMFHE
+A=+mA
Wah Shuk Holdings Limited Hong Kong 30 October 2015 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Securities investment
ERERARRAA EE —_T-IfF 10,0008 & 8 A EHFRE
+A=+H
Top Fortune Group Limited Hong Kong 16 September 2014 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
WEEERNERRAF 0 —E-|mE 10,0008% & 8 A% REZR
NA+7RE
Shenzhen Top Fortune The people Republic of 29 January 2015 RMB1,000,000 100%  Investment holding
Information Development ~ China (‘PRC’)
Limited
A BEEESER REARANE < —T-1F AR ¥1,0000007 REER
BRAT ([hEl) —R=thA
Beijing Huashu Property, PRC 22 October 1999 RMB10,000,000 100%  Lease of investment
Development Limited properties
It REMFHERE i —hWANE A #10,000,0007C HEREME
BARRA +AZ+=H

SRR BuEEEREARAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

1 KELAR (&)

Country/ Particulars
place of Date of of issued Interest  Principal
Company name incorporation incorporation share capital held activities
DREH AL L AR A & ERTRAFE FisER TEER
BX/th%
BYL Property Holdings Group ~ British Virgin Islands 25 November 2016 50,000 original shares 51%  Investment holding
Limited of USST each
BRREXZBREE RBRLES “ERF 50,000 SR E(E RERK
BRAF +—A=Z+HA 1EXHRBRRA
BYL Property Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong 26 October 2016 HK$10,000 51%  Investment holding
ERREXERBRAR  BE “ERF 100007 7T RERK
+A=+x8
Shenzhen Baorunlai Property ~ PRC 7 December 2016 RMB500,000 51%  Investment holding
Company Limited
RYEBREXBBAR  HHE SN2 AR 5000007 REZK
+ZA+H
Chengdu Sanchuang Cityscape  PRC 22 October 2004 RMB60,000,000 51%  Provision of
Environment Management environmental
Company Limited hygiene and
cleaning service
REB=gImARRER i “ZTNF AR 860,000,007 RERFHER
BRETAF +A-+=H BRI
The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the FRAVZAATMB AR TIEERR
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the year or BHRNEEEEBE AT ERBERAKN
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give EEFEAEE T BN -EERE

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

BBk

REEMBHBARZABESHESR
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42 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 42 EARTREEEMERX
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries (Note (b)) RIBARIRE (b)) 116,824 75,906
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE RS 1,092 738
117,916 76,644
Current assets REBEE
Deposits and prepayments e RENHKE 1,054 583
Amounts due from subsidiaries I ENGIE S 13,195 32436
Cash and cash equivalents RekBELZEY 78,658 157,240
92,907 190,259
Total assets BEE 210,823 266,903
EQUITY 5
Equity attributable to owners of the Company EREHER AEGER
Share capital (Note 26) B (BisE26) 5,580 5,580
Share premium BiniaE 236,120 236,120
Other reserve (Note (a)) Hibfe (@) 42,394 38,076
Accumulated losses (Note (a)) ZErEE (i) (166,508) (148,809)
Total equity R 117,586 130,967

254 “E-NFEHR BREEERARAE




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & 7% # 7€ Iff it

42 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued) 22 FXRTREERER(Z)
2018 2017
—E-N\F “E—+F
HK$'000 HKS'000
T FET
LIABILITIES =X

Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals and provisions [EFT B R R EE 4,016 4335
Amount due to subsidiary FERBT B A RIFIE 1,368 1368
Loans from a shareholder BEEX 87,853 130233
Total liabilities BmeE 93,237 135,936
Total equity and liabilities ERRAEAR 210,823 266,903

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
directors on 27 March 2019 and was signed on its behalf

Sang Kanggiao
RED
Director

BF

Xu Wenze
BF3OE
Director

EF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %45 & #f 75 # 7 Iff it

42 BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note (a):

Note (b):

Reserve movement of the Company

2 ARFAEEREXR(E)

B b ) < AR T2 B D

Share-based
payment Other Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
R 5
EROARERE Hit &% it ER wct
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1January 2017 R=Z—tF-A-A - 33,598 (66,983) (33,385)
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEBIERZEEEEE
loss for the year - - (81,826) (81,826)
Transaction with ownersin ~ SHEBANEFEE AN
their capacity as owners: FRETNRS:
Share-based payment WARR 1D BEREA R 4478 - - 4478
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=B=+-H 4478 33,598 (148,809) (110,733)
At 1 January 2018 R=%-NF-A-A 2,478 33,598 (148,809) (110733)
Loss and total comprehensive  FE 18 Kk 2 EEE
loss for the year k) - - (17,946) (17,946)
Transaction with ownersin ~ SEHEAANEHEF AN
their capacity as owners: SHETHRS:
Share-based payment PAR D BE R 4,565 - - 4,565
Lapse of share option BRI (247) - 247 -
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\f
+=B=+-8 8,796 33,598 (166,508) (124,114)
Investments in subsidiaries MiEk@o) : ROHIE R RIRE

Due to the continuous weakness in sales performance of restaurants
and wedding business segment, an impairment testing of
investment in subsidiaries was performed by the directors of the
Company. An impairment charge was recognised in the Company’s
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted

to HK$956,000 (2017: HK$66,400,000).

SRR BuEEEREARAT

AR RIEE R D A S RIS
BRS ANRARESHNE AR
BEELRENS - KR FREE
—E-NE+_A=+—BHLHF
E WA FIERIRE X 956,000 7T
(ZZ—+t%F: 66400,000/87C) °
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BANQUE'T" Grouwp
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